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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Dong Ping (Chairman)
Mr. Xiang Shaokun, Steven
(Chief Executive Officer)

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Ning Hao
Mr. Xu Zheng
Mr. Gao Zhikai

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Su Tuong Sing, David
Mr. Li Xiaolong
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Wong Tak Chuen (Chairman)
Mr. Gao Zhikai
Mr. Su Tuong Sing, David

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Su Tuong Sing, David (Chairman)
Mr. Dong Ping
Mr. Li Xiaolong

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Su Tuong Sing, David (Chairman)
Mr. Dong Ping
Mr. Li Xiaolong

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.
China Construction Bank Corporation
DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited
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LEGAL ADVISERS TO THE COMPANY

AS to Hong Kong Law
Weil, Gotshal & Manges
Robertsons

AS to Bermuda Law
Appleby

REGISTERED OFFICE

Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM12, Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

11th Floor

Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road
Admiralty, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HMO08

Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR IN
HONG KONG

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17/F

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

STOCK CODE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited: 1003

WEBSITE

http://www.huanxi.com
Www.irasia.com/listco/hk/huanximedia
http://www.huanximedia.com/

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT

info@huanxi.com
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
B

Dear Shareholders,

Huanxi Media Group Limited (the “"Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) started in the second half of 2015 to
diversify its business to cover the People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC") film and TV entertainment market and the year under
review was a start-up and investment period for the Group which
made good progress in 2016. During the year, the Group actively
looked for opportunities to cooperate with renowned directors
and succeeded in forging a number of agreements with many
famous international award winning directors with different
directing styles and approaches, marching in strides towards the
goal of strengthening and enriching its film and TV production
contents. It has a content portfolio of film and TV productions
in various categories including modern drama films, youth
drama, romantic comedy, postmodern fiction, real life drama,
independent films and documentary, etc.

The Group also actively pushed forward construction of its online
multimedia platform during the year under review. It signed
strategic cooperative agreements with Hong Kong and overseas
online platform operators, thus has laid a solid foundation for its
video platform scheduled to go online in this year. Targeting to
offer the best online film and TV productions to audiences in the
Greater China region, the Group used a two-pronged approach
in developing its business during the year. At the same time as it
actively rallied the support of famed international directors to help
enrich its high quality film and TV rights portfolio, it also worked
hard at developing and building an excellent high-tech online
video platform which could satisfy the needs of online patrons.
Its goal is to become a leading film and TV entertainment media
group in China which owns top film and TV production contents,
the best planning and production teams, extensive domestic and
overseas distribution market, exclusive online broadcast right, as
well as a self-operated online video platform.

HUANXI MEDIA GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

According to the findings of the “2015 China Media Consumer Survey
Report” published in 2016 by Deloitte China, “content” continued
to be paramount, as both film types and content were the main
factors Chinese viewers consider in choosing which film to watch.
Chinese viewers' decisions are also more easily swayed by word
of mouth. Thus, the Group believes quality film and TV content is
crucial for a player to be successful in the entertainment industry in
the PRC. Looking back at 2016, the most important event for the film
industry had to be the signing of the Order of the President No.54
by Xi Jinping giving approval to the enforcement of the China Film
Industry Promotion Law, which marked the beginning of a new era
of sustainable development for the film market in the PRC. The law,
which took the country 14 years to draw up, is expected to ensure
the country’s film market operate with greater transparency and
follow a better regulated development path. The enforcement of the
law also showed the weight the film industry carries for the central
government and that the government is keen at supporting and
encouraging the healthy growth and prosperity of the industry. Apart
from securing better policy protection, the film sector in the PRC
grew steadily in 2016 with total annual box office receipts amounting
to RMB45,712 million, representing a year-on-year growth of 3.73%.
City cinemas admitted a total of 1,372 million viewers during the year,
an 8.89% growth year-on-year.

And, when it comes to the online video platform, the number of
viewers is growing at exponential rate. According to a China Internet
Network Information Center report, as at the end of December 2016,
there were 731 million Internet users in China, equivalent to the total
population of Europe, and the country’s Internet penetration rate was
53.2%. According to the “2016 Consolidated Report on Information
Dispatch” (20165 E 8B M & #HE) published by iResearch,
China’s online video platform market worth RMB60.9 billion, up
by 56% year-on-year, and that fuelled by the consistently growing
Internet user population in the country, the online video market
would worth more than a hundred-billion dollar by 2019. Watching
movies online is the new and prevalent consumption mode today
among core movie fans born in the 1970s, 80s and 90s in China.
These information and rocketing numbers are evidence that China’s
online video media market is expanding rapidly. Thus, the Group
will capture the arising opportunities to produce more films and TV
dramas on popular topics and contents and create a quality online
video platform.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

Forged strategic alliance with famous
international and Asian directors Increased

investment in film and TV content
During the year under review, capitalizing on the rich experience

and wide network in the film industry of the senior management
team, the Group actively explored cooperation opportunities with
famous international and Asian directors and new directors, and
established strategic partnership with a good number of famed
directors in the PRC and from overseas. After Mr. Xu Zheng (“Mr.
Xu") and Mr. Ning Hao (“Mr. Ning") became director shareholders
in 2015, the Group brought in four more director shareholders,
namely Mr. Wong Kar Wai (“Mr. Wong”), Mr. Chan Ho Sun Peter
(“Mr. Chan”), Mr. Gu Changwei (“Mr. Gu") and Mr. Zhang Xiaoling
("Mr. Zhang”, also known as Mr. Zhang Yibai), during the year,
signing agreements with them regarding TV and film content
creation, investment, production and distribution in the coming six
years.

The Group also paid close attention to international film industry
development. During the year under review and subsequent to
the financial year, it signed cooperative agreements with famous
directors in the PRC, including Mr. Li Yang, Mr. Liu Xingang, Mr.
Manfred Wong, Mr. Chen Daming, Mr. lJia Zhangke and Mr. Wang
Xiaoshuai from the PRC, securing the copyright and investment
right of related films and online TV series, thus strengthened the
foundation and edges of its film and TV content rights investment
business. Subsequent to end of the year, the Group has kept up
its effort and signed cooperation agreements with Mr. Jia Zhangke,
dubbed a “film genius”, and Mr. Wang Xiaoshuai, a pioneer
independent director.

Looking at this and the coming year, most of the shareholder
directors and partner directors of the Group will start or finish
their films or TV productions. Many films and TV series will
complete shooting or post-production in these two years as well.
Of them, Mr. Pig, a fantasy comedy written, directed and starred
by Mr. Xu, is in final preparation stage and is expected to start
shooting in 2017. Mr. Xu's team has also started planning the next
movie, the new “Lost” series of films. Furthermore, a new film
directed by Mr. Ning, Crazy Alien, is expected to be completed in
2017 or 2018. And, the first season of the Chinese Internet drama
series produced and co-directed by Mr. Wong is expected to be

HUANXI MEDIA GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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completed partly or whole by end of 2017. Preparation of filming
of the new movie The Passage of Time by famous international art-
house director Mr. Jia Zhangke, who just became partner with the
Group this January, is underway and the same goes for another film.
The two productions will start shooting this year respectively. It is
clear that the Group’s hard work in the past year will ensure it has a
wide variety of TV and film content including online film and TV drama
series, postmodern scientific content, fantasy comedy, youth drama,
etc. in the future.

Partnered with technology industry leaders to
create a new world of online film and TV

Seeing enormous development potential in the online video platform
in the PRC, the Group joined hands with PCCW Media Limited
("PCCW"), the largest and leading multi-media and entertainment
group in Hong Kong, during the year to develop in the prosperous
online video platform sector in the PRC, hoping to tap the huge
opportunities in the online multimedia industry. PCCW has abundant
experience in and advanced technology for designing and developing
online video platform, whereas the Group has quality film and TV
content and a management team with finger on the pulse of PRC
media and entertainment industry trends. As such, we have full
confidence in building together with PCCW a unique, innovative and
quality online film and TV service platform that can please audiences
in the PRC, achieving an all-win scenario.

Currently, construction of the video platform is progressing well with
operation expected to start in the second half of 2017. The Group will
make full use of the expertise of PCCW in online video development,
as well as the professional know-how, information and leading
technology in the online video platform realm of another strategic
partner MUBI Inc., a global video-on-demand platform operator, to
build a new world of online films and TV in the PRC.
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BUSINESS STRATEGIES AND PROSPECTS

The year 2016 marked the beginning of China’s 13th Five-Year
Plan, while the movie, TV and entertainment industry in the
country, as an important means to satisfy the spiritual and cultural
demands of the citizens in China, is in its golden era. To seize a
favorable position in the burgeoning industry, the Group increased
related investments and allocated considerable resources to
develop media, entertainment and related businesses during the
year, with the aim of becoming a leading, all-round media and
entertainment group in Greater China.

The cultural and entertainment industry in China is in the period
of rapid development. The Group strongly believes the film-related
entertainment business will continue to grow and become a pillar
industry in the Chinese economy in the future. It also sees quality
film and TV content as crucial to the success of the business,
which is why it intends to enhance its capability in film and TV
content creation in the coming year. It will capitalise on the close
relationships with the six director shareholders, namely Mr. Xu,
Mr. Ning, Mr. Wong, Mr. Chan, Mr. Gu and Mr. Zhang, and its long-
term partnerships with renowned directors including Mr. Li Yang,
Mr. Liu Xingang, Mr. Manfred Wong and Mr. Chen Daming, plus
two more respected directors, namely, Mr. Jia Zhangke and Mr.
Wang Xiaoshuai, who signed cooperation agreements with the
Group subsequent to the financial year, to bring more diverse,
creative and quality productions to audiences in Greater China.

Regarding online video consumption, its popularity is growing fast
and such pay-to-view has become a new consumption norm. To
fully realise its strategic goal of achieving holistic development of
its media, entertainment and related businesses, from content to
platform and in all different dimensions, the Group has devoted
major efforts to developing an online video platform that can
keep pace with time. With an experienced management team
that can accurately grasp trends in the media and entertainment
industry as well as processes an acute sense of the preferences of
Mainland China audiences, and at the backing of strong technical
partners, PCCW and MUBI, the Group has been exploring the
development in the new media industry and striving to become an
integrated film and TV entertainment media group that operates
high growth potential offline and online entertainment and media
businesses.

HUANXI MEDIA GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

YRERERE

“E-RERITZRAINFARF  RRREEX
ERmEBABEXEEBRAFRKNEZEY Lk
RAFARENESRNR - BEBRTEIRERTH
BRI - REERFRNEBMARA > FBRAE
BRNEBERRE - REMMERAERT - RERBATF
ERAREMUN SRR MIREER -

FREMEREEXRLRNZERERFGH - A REER
FHEEYHENREEXSEBER /R KTEE
REEBENXEERZ— - AR AEEREEEN
FRABTTIRNNER - Bt AEBERRF A4S
MBFRABTWENERE S - BB ENIEERR -
TREEE BEE - ETRE REE BEEERKS
H-ZETAE MERFBEE - BIOEILE -
EXESELE BRRPLL - WERFEEHIZRTA
EBBECERMELER T N EESZRANEE
BEVRHAFERE  SRTPEMENERERE
Zfe - BT RBENEM -

SR BEAAEENERICBENES - £
MEANBBEITARRHTE BBEEREE
RARB T2 ZAEMMEKRE  RENE
FAXRBOEEBIE  AREROARERKEDN
RERATE  BELREENERENR  LHER
BN BRERIREE R BB EILEN S
RAMEBREFHHHEE - FARKEEAZBM
MUBER AT S 45 - BB EME T aREZMKE
BEE BHERKABLERT R LRERKE
EBAARERENNGATRRERKEEE -



CONCLUSION

Although the Chinese economy grew slower in the past year,
according to the forecast in “The Global Entertainment and Media
Outlook 2016-2020" published by PricewaterhouseCoopers, the film
and entertainment industry in China will grow at a CAGR of 19.1%
in the coming five years up to 2020, which is notably higher than
that of the world at large for the same period. Furthermore, with
the Central Government implementing favourable policies such
as the PRC Film Industry Promotion Law, the Group has utmost
confidence in the future of the industry. Leveraging the experience
of the renowned directors who have signed contracts with the Group
and their prominent standing in the film industry in China and the
world, the Group will forcefully amass film and TV resources and
target to invest in the development of or participate in more quality
film and TV productions. It will also actively increase its holding of
intellectual property rights in Asia and overseas, plus reinforce its core
advantages in investment, management and operation of film, TV and
new media businesses so as to bring lucrative returns to shareholders.

The Group generates and preserves value by actively developing
its film, TV and entertainment business in the PRC and capture
opportunities with a pioneering spirit, dedication and professionalism.
Its strategy is to continue to develop the growth business and to
capitalise on the brilliant investment vision and flexible management
and operational models the management team affords, looking
at 2017, we will invest in quality film and TV copyrights with huge
development potential in the market, and also actively explore
possible projects with more famous or promising new directors in
the country or overseas so as to gradually build up quality and highly
competitive TV and film copyright resources and hasten setting up of
a leading online video platform and building a full industrial chain that
covers from film and TV content creation, shooting and production
to distribution and marketing, to consolidate and expand the Group’s
competitive advantages and generate greater long-term returns for
shareholders.

Last but not least, | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to all
Board members, and our management team, business partners and
staff for their contributions to the Group’s business.

On behalf of the Board
Dong Ping
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2017
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APPENDIX: FAMOUS DIRECTORS WHO SIGNED COOPERATION AGREEMENTS
WITH THE GROUP
iR BAKERISFESHZANREE

Director Background

B& BEEN

2015

Xu Zheng . Gained national fame staring in the TV series Sunny Piggy (&Yt 855 )\ ), also
R played leading role in the comedies Call for Love(E W & 7%), Lost on Journey

(ATEE&) and Lost in Hong Kong (7 )
BREGBE(GEARER \BR)EFA2EBEE AR TEZE(EBTFUERE) -
(ANEBERY RCGERD

o In 2012, His directorial debut Lost in Thailand (ATEE % 2 Z=H), which he also
wrote, produced and starred, earned over US$200 million in box office receipt, and
became the highest-grossing PRC film ever
02FEXREREEAEREL AR EBCALERZ 2ZRA) - BFE 200,000,000
ET KATEBELUREERELZEY

. In 2014, Xu produced and starred in the film Great Hypnotist (f&f& AEf) which
became a classic in the PRC suspense and thriller film market
20145 - RERHEW T EBEREBRSTZ(EIRAM)  KAEZEREREL TS

e
Ning Hao ° Famous internationally for his unique directing style, all films he made brought
i strong investment returns. His directorial debut Incense (& A) and another
work Mongolian Ping Pong (#k & ) were nominated in over 50 international film
festivals

BREABREARSZFERR 2HEXHEREBEREL R HABREER(E
MO EH) R A+ Z EABRREZHER

D Crazy Stone (Ja L #A2E), a low budget production he directed in 2006, won at the
Taiwen Golden Horse Award for Best Original Screenplay. Crazy Racer (JRJEHIEES)
(2009), which he wrote and directed was produced with an investment of RMB10
million, recorded box office receipt of over RMB100 million
R2006F HENAEZ(RENAE) LTS LSS REERZR AL - AL
BiR B8R E R AE A R10,000,0007T 2 CRIERESE)(2009) - EEZREA
R #100,000,0007T °

. He also directed the huge box office hit Breakup Buddies ({2 fEEE ) (2014) grossed
RMB1,169 million in box office receipt in the PRC and was the highest-grossing
domestic Chinese movie of the year
BEBZOLIEE M) (2014) - ABEIANEEFE ARM1,169,000,0007T £ & # B 4 &

= = 2
REREZEY

HUANXI MEDIA GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016



11

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
3 HoE
Director Background
EBE EEEN
2016
Chan Ho Sun Peter ° He is the first director named the "Best Director” at the Taiwan Golden Horse

PR AT

Award, the Hong Kong Film Award and mainland China’s Golden Rooster Award.
His films Almost a Love Story (#{% %) and Dragon (& %) had made it among Time
Magazine's 10 Best Movies of the Year

ERBENNRESH —ESESRR EFEXEREURTEEFY S H R &
FEHEBEINANMELE HRENEL(HEE) R FEMEREEFZBEK KA
HNFETEER

Wong Kar Wai

== /A

FXaE

o Dubbed a “movie poet”, renowned movie director, producer and screenwriter
wong Kar Wai won the “Best Director” title at the Hong Kong Film Awards and the
Golden Horse Awards for the movie Days of Being Wild (] 7K 1E %)
NIEXFAIZBNAERELEE LREREFEE - HRENEZ(WRIEFE) LR
BEAETY R REEEERL S REEEFEHE

. He also won the “Best Director” Award for Happy Together (& ¢ /E %) at the 50th
Cannes International Film Festival
BE(ENER)EREFE0EIIHET IREERE

Li Yang
15

° PRC director Li Yang is good at making documentaries of social phenomena and
movies that portray real life stories. His work Blind Shaft (§3) has won more than
30 awards, including the Silver Bear for Outstanding Artistic Achievement at the
53th Berlin International Film Festival
ERAAEFEMEE KRR EMELEEFREENSTEL PR ARES:
BEGER) FLREESTRLEENBEMMBBREL SR EEM AR EA
B = + £R 1 B B K 82

&

Z—E

priily
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ZOIm
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Liu Xingang
2105

o He has years of experience shooting movies and TV drama series and was the
Art Director of The Sorrow of Brook Steppe (15 & 7) and The Phone (F 1)
nominated two times for the “Best Art Direction” Award at The Golden Rooster
Awards. He won the “Best Director” award at the public TV Double Ten (KR E %
& +4-1%) for I'm Looking Forward to Being Loved (41817 8 # &4 E) and his movie
Five Star Hotel (F £ # K&k JE) was named “TV Drama of the Year” by sina
BEZFNETREREBELR MUEEXRMESNGEBEMER)IMCFE)
SDRRERETREY e HRGEERMBIRS - BEMEBE(TETFEHXEE)M
(REZRRE)D R EARERETEREGERNFTRFEERE 2
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
¥ W b
Director Background
BE BEEN
Gu Changwei ° One of the few Chinese members of the Academy of Motion Picture Arts and
BRE Sciences (AMPAS), long-been hailed as the “master cinematographer in Asia” and

subsequently became a director

BRE/VEEARBNRZE PEIDMNE—RBEMIZ2E  REEBHEEY
. Was the cinematographer of and also directed a number of iconic movies

including Love for Life (& &), Peacock (L), Red Sorghum (41 = 32) and Farewell
To My Concubine (%8 T 5I4E), won accolades in international film festivals

known as Zhang Yibai)
sREEME (X HBR—A)

HERMBEHSANBEY - BIE(EE) (FLE) (A e R) k(BT Rkt R R
TR 1518 R B R R A
Zhang Xiaoling (also | e Dubbed “Godfather of Youth Films” in the PRC, his love story movies enjoyed wide

acclaims and among them the 2016 production / Belonged to You (#E{RE) & tt 523
i) brought in box office receipt of near RMB900 million, a record among movies of
its kind

WEAITFRESERAR]  ERNENEZHTEBELHRTRRNETT  HFR =S
—NEFEFMMTMNEEARB EENSEEOIVEL A THREEBRETZNERT

. The box office receipts of his films totaled more than RMB2.8 billion, putting him
in the league of the most commercially successful directors and producers in the
PRC today
R EMERNEL RERFBARKE28ET
FERANGRERER Y —

T EBERRAEBRXEENERAR

Chen Daming
CONCE

o Mr. Chen went to the United States in the 90s to study screenwriting, directing
and acting, and had starred in a number of Hollywood movies. Many of the films
he directed were honored with international awards. He is currently a visiting
professor at the Beijing Film Academy and Vice President of the Shanghai
International School of Beijing Film Academy

ROOFREXBEEBRE  EREMKE  BLESHAFREEY HHEZZHE
IR INRE - 1ﬁﬁtﬁjt§?‘-€$?%ﬁ?u§?$&&&it??€$§%Em£/ilﬁf%ﬂTEJ z

&
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
E

Director
EBE

Background
BEBEN

Manfred wWong
EXE(XREXE)

A veteran filmmaker in Hong Kong who has directed, produced, and acted in
movies and is also a screenwriter for films and TV dramas
EEERETA BEAEFERE  EE - BENMYSREESEA

Ventured into the film industry in the early 1980s and was involved in the
production of over 150 films. Co-founded “&EEE & 2 A" in the mid-90s with
wong Jing and Andrew Lau, which made films including the Young and Dangerous
(& & A¥) series, The Storm Riders (E.E) and A Man Called Hero ( EEEQ*’E)
MRBOFERFALIT - 2HE{ERIBIRIS0E - MOOFRAHET & - 2EREAREHE
B nd BET(ERE)RY (RE)RC(PELZHE)IZEER

Started making movies in mainland China in 1991, produced “In the Heat of the
sun” directed by Jiang Wen. The film Roots and Branches (F &) 5261515k he
produced in 2001 has won several awards
NERNMNFREANMIF - BRBEXRE 2 EL(GHEFOBF) - 20014
BRI DR ERNZEEFRIE

His most recent Chinese mainland commercial productions included Lost On
Journey (ATEE#), The House That Never Dies (F3£815%) and Cook Up A Storm
(ORELR ), etc.

MEEPHERZAEEENEY  BEATRZE) - (2819 R CAB R 1#)

&=
~T
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

F W ek

Director Background

BE BEEN

2017

Jia Zhangke A distinguished international art-house director, he has received Lifetime

EEMA

Achievement Awards from several international film organizations
BERELBMELEE  CYEZEREELHGEE KA E]

Directed 11 feature films, all nominated for awards at the Berlin, Cannes and
venice International Film Festivals. In 2013, A Touch of Sin (X7E7E) won the award
for Best Screenplay at the 66th Cannes International Film Festival

HEFENFRA - 2BAEENK - BER - BRMERE - 2013F - WEH(KFEE)
BEFOEENBIBRELEH R EREI L2

In 2015, he received the Carrosse d'Or at the 68th Cannes International Film
Festival
2015%F  EEWBBREFHEFEFE LR INM & HEHE]

Wang Xiaoshuai
E /BB

A pioneer independent film director in the PRC and a recipient of the Ordre des
Arts et des Lettres by the French Minister of Culture
REE Y EELR - W BRRSEABR LSS T8 E /Y INET

Directed 11 films and nominated eight times in the “Big Three” international film
festivals
HHPGENPETERRE  \AAB=ARBEBREXHHEE T

In 2005, Shanghai Dreams (& #I) won the Jury Prize at the 58th Cannes Film Festival
20054 - (BAL)HTEFSSEEMBE R E BT 5 B K%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS AND OPERATION REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group continued to
tap the immensely high potential media and entertainment market
of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and it has devoted
considerable management resources into identifying suitable
opportunities for high quality film and TV rights investment. It
also worked hard at rallying and forming long-term strategic
partnership with celebrated directors in Asia and around the
world in order to enhance its competitiveness in the PRC media
and entertainment market. During the year, the Group brought
in four new director shareholders, namely Mr. Wong Kar Wai
("“Mr. Wong"”), Mr. Chan Ho Sun Peter (“Mr. Chan”), Mr. Gu
Changwei (“Mr. Gu”) and Mr. Zhang Xiaoling (“Mr. zZhang", also
known as Zhang Yibai). Meanwhile, the Group signed cooperative
agreements with a number of famous Chinese directors
appreciated for their different directing styles and film types.
Such moves have laid a solid foundation for the Group to build an
extensive and diversified film and TV production content portfolio,
and have also substantially boosted the Group's ability to develop
and create film and TV content.

FILM RIGHTS INVESTMENT BUSINESS

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the revenue and
segmental loss from film rights investment business was
HK$5,073,000 (2015: HK$217,701,000) and HK$1,191,294,000 (2015:
segment profit of HK$33,170,000) respectively. The revenue was
mainly contributed by the Group’s investment in “Mr. Nian” (&t
KYE#E), a Chinese animation movie screened during 2016 Chinese
New Year, whereas the segmental 10ss was mainly attributable to
the non-cash expenses incurred in association with the allotment
and issuance of new shares to the four new director shareholders
and impairment loss on available-for-sale investment during the
year.

Since Mr. Xu Zheng ("“Mr. Xu") and Mr. Ning Hao (“Mr. Ning")
became director shareholders in FY2015, the Group has
been actively exploring opportunities for cooperating with
internationally renowned directors, so as to strengthen the
foundation of its film rights investment business. Four new
director shareholders joined the Group during the year under
review, and cooperative agreements were signed with Master
China Films Limited (“Master China”, a company owned by Mr.
wong), Mr. Chan, Mr. Gu and Mr. Zhang (the “Agreements”).
Pursuant to the Agreements, Master China, Mr. Chan, Mr. Gu
and Mr. Zhang have conditionally agreed to provide to the Group

o B W K g B

EBOEREEDRE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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with certain services, investment rights and other rights in relation to
film and media productions as set forth in the Agreements. And the
Company allotted and issued 100,000,000 shares, 144,500,000 shares,
75,000,000 shares and 140,000,000 shares to Mr. Wong, Mr. Chan,
Mr. Gu and Mr. Zhang respectively (collectively, the “Issuances”). The
amount of HK$1,120,472,000 was recognised as an expense for the
year under review in relation to the new shares issued pursuant to
the Issuances.

The terms and structure of the Agreements signed with the four
director shareholders (including the new shares issued pursuant
to the Issuances), would enable the Group to benefit from the
opportunities to cooperate with Mr. Wong, Mr. Chan, Mr. Gu and
Mr. Zhang without any immediate cash outlay by the Group. This
means the Group can retain more cash as general working capital
and to fund development of the film rights investment business
and future cash in other related investments (including investments
in the productions of Mr. Wong, Mr. Chan, Mr. Gu and Mr. Zhang).
In addition, these arrangements (including the Issuances) would
broaden the Company’s shareholder base and also facilitate the
Group as well as Mr. Wong, Mr. Chan, Mr. Gu and Mr. Zhang to
explore potential opportunities in the media, entertainment and
related businesses.

Other than bringing in director shareholders, the Group also
established strategic cooperative relationships with a number of
famous directors in Asia during the year under review, including the
signing of agreements with renowned Chinese directors, Mr. Li Yang,
Mr. Liu Xingang, Mr. Chen Daming and Rui zhi Workshop Company
Limited (that Mr. Manfred Wong is a director), in June, September
and December 2016 respectively. Pursuant to those agreements, the
abovementioned directors and company have conditionally agreed
to provide to the Group with certain services, investment rights and
other rights in relation to film and internet drama productions as
set forth in their respective agreements. Such partnerships have
bolstered the Group's foundation and the strength of its film rights
investment business.

On 7 November 2016, the Group signed a platform development
agreement with PCCW Media Limited (“PCCW"), in relation to a
technical cooperation arrangement whereby PCCW would be a
technical partner of the Group responsible for developing an online
video platform (the “Online Video Platform”) for the Group’s online
film and TV business. PCCW would design and develop the Online
Video Platform under the agreement with a term of three years. Given
the technical experience and expertise of PCCW, the Group believes
that the platform development agreement is an important step in
its plan to build the Online Video Platform for the provision of digital
content to customers in the PRC.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On the same day, the Group entered into a series E preferred
stock purchase agreement and other related transactions with
MUBI, Inc. ("MUBI"), pursuant to which the Group subscribed
series E preferred shares of MUBI at a consideration of
US$2,000,000 (representing 2.03% of the issued share capital of
MUBI as at 31 December 2016). In the meantime, MUBI would
transfer or license to the Group the know-how, information
and technology that can assist, support or enhance the Online
Video Platform and provide to the Group support services and
deliverables with respect to the Online Video Platform according
to the Group’s specifications and timeline. The subscription
was completed on 11 November 2016. At the completion of the
subscription, the investment in MUBI by the Group was classified
as an available-for-sale investment. For the year ended 31
December 2016, after discussing with the auditor, the Group had
an impairment of HK$15,333,000, which resulted from writing
down the carrying amount of the available-for-sale investment to
its recoverable amount of HK$208,000 as at 31 December 2016,
and recognised the amount as an expense for the year under
review. Details are set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PROPERTY AGENCY BUSINESS

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’'s property
agency business recorded revenue of HK$11,039,000 (2015:
HK$49,212,000) and segmental loss of HK$1,193,000 (2015:
HK$9,690,000). The segmental contraction was mainly a result
of the management allocated more resources to the media,
entertainment and related businesses which believes will emerge
as the Group's future growth drivers.

SECURITIES TRADING AND INVESTMENTS
BUSINESS

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s securities
trading and investments business recorded a segment loss of
HK$2,816,000 (2015: HK$1,832,000) which was mainly due to the
loss from change in fair value of investments held for trading.

The Group signed a 5-year framework agreement with an
independent third party (“Investor”) in January 2017, pursuant to
which the Investor has the rights to invest on film and TV rights
under an agreed list of film and TV rights. The maximum amount
of the investment portfolio is RMB1,000,000,000.

o B W K g B
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Review of Results

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group recorded revenue
of HK$16,112,000 (2015: HK$266,913,000) and net loss attributable
to the owners of the Company of HK$1,253,745,000 (2015:
HK$92,796,000). The loss was principally due to the one-off non-
cash expenses including share-based payments of HK$1,120,472,000
for the Issuance, being the fair value of the Company’s shares
issued, and impairment loss on available-for-sale investment of
HK$15,333,000. Excluding the aforesaid one-off non-cash expenses,
net loss attributable to the owners of the Company amounted to
HK$117,940,000 for the year under review.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, selling and distribution costs
were HK$12,112,000 as compared with HK$921,000 in 2015. The
increase was mainly due to expenses incurred in relation to planning
and promotion of the film rights investment business.

Administrative expenses were HK$110,938,000 for the year ended 31
December 2016 (2015: HK$47,361,000). The increase was primarily
from the Group’s expenses on expanding and developing the Online
Video Platform and media related businesses.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, l0ss per share of the Group
amounted to HK$0.51 (2015: HK$0.08) and net asset value per share
attributable to the owners of the Company was HK$0.30 (2015:
HK$0.43).

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group's capital expenditure, daily operations and investments
are mainly funded by cash generated from its operations and
equity financing. As at 31 December 2016, the Group maintained
sufficient working capital in the amount of HK$575,603,000 (2015:
HK$988,290,000), with bank balances and cash of HK$309,062,000
(2015: HK$726,598,000). As at 31 December 2016, the total equity of
the Company amounted to HK$826,911,000 (2015 HK$990,116,000)
with no borrowings (2015: nil). The Group’s gearing ratio, expressed
as the percentage of total borrowings over total capital, was zero
(2015: nil) as at 31 December 2016. Total capital is calculated as total
equity plus total borrowings.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2016, the Company had 2,768,055,408 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each (the “Shares”) in issue.

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2016, the
movement in the issued share capital of the Company and the use
of proceeds from fund raising activities are as follows:

a. On 14 April 2015 and 13 May 2015, the Company entered
into a subscription agreement and an amendment
agreement with Newwood Investments Limited, Numerous
Joy Limited, Pacific Wits Limited, Tairong Holdings Limited,
Wise Dragon International Limited, Gold Shine Investment
Company Limited, Dayunmony Investment Corporation,
Concept Best Limited and REORIENT Global Limited
(collectively the “Subscribers”), pursuant to which the
Company conditionally agreed to allot and issue, and
Subscribers conditionally agreed to subscribe for, a total
of 1,701,416,556 new Shares (“Subscription Shares”) at
an issue price of HK$0.40 per Share (the "Subscription”)
with the aggregate subscription price of approximately
HK$680,567,000. The Company had also agreed to allot and
issue 30,000,000 new Shares (“Fee Shares”) to financial
adviser for the settlement of the financial advisory service
fee in respect of the Subscription. The Subscription
Shares represented approximately 294.8% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at 14 April 2015 and
approximately 73.7% of the enlarged issued share capital
of the Company as enlarged by the allotment and issue
of the Subscription Shares and Fee Shares as at the date
of the Subscription. The subscription price of HK$0.40 per
Share represented a discount of approximately 79.17% to
the closing price of HK$1.92 per Share as quoted on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 14 April 2015,
being the date on which the terms of the Subscription
were fixed. The net subscription price, after deducting the
relevant expenses, was approximately HK$0.395 per Share
and the aggregate nominal value of the Subscription Shares
and Fee Shares issued were approximately HK$17,015,000
and HK$300,000 respectively. The net proceeds of
approximately HK$672,622,000 (excluding the financial
advisory fees in respect of the Subscription settled by Fee
Shares) from the Subscription was intended to be used
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for (i) providing the Group an opportunity to leverage on the
extensive experience, expertise and business connection of
the Subscribers to develop existing and new business in the
advertising, media and entertainment industry, and (ii) the
Group’s general working capital. As at 31 December 2016,
approximately HK$579,284,000 was used for investments in
films and TV rights, approximately HK$2,018,000 was used for
investments in securities listed in Hong Kong, HK$1,000,000
was used for acquisition of a subsidiary, approximately
HK$11,342,000 was used for the payments of the legal claim
(details are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements), HK$20,000,000 was used for the purchase of art
work, and the remaining approximately HK$58,978,000 of the
net proceeds was used for the Group’s operating expenses.

b. On 17 June 2016, the Company allotted and issued 100,000,000
Shares and 144,500,000 Shares to Mr. Wong and Mr. Chan
respectively pursuant to the Agreements on 1 June 2016.
These Shares issued to Mr. Wong and Mr. Chan pursuant to
the Agreements represented approximately 3.92% and 5.66%
respectively of the issued share capital of the Company as
enlarged by such issuances.

C. On 14 December 2016, the Company allotted and issued
75,000,000 Shares and 140,000,000 Shares to Mr. Gu and
Mr. Zhang respectively pursuant to the Agreements on 6
December 2016. These Shares issued to Mr. Gu and Mr. Zhang
pursuant to the Agreements represented approximately 2.71%
and 5.06% respectively of the issued share capital of the
Company as enlarged by such issuances.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016, the Group's short-term payable of
HK$111,161,000 was secured by a deposit of HK$111,161,000 (2015:
nil).

EXPOSURE TO EXCHANGE RATE

The Group’s cash flow from operation, cash on hand and assets are
denominated mainly in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars and Renminbi.
Presently, the Group does not have any currency hedging policy but
will closely monitor the Renminbi exchange rate and take appropriate
measures to minimise any adverse impact that may be caused by its
fluctuation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RISK MANAGEMENT

During the year, the Group regularly reviewed the risk and credit
control systems of its profit centers to improve the overall control
system and mitigate credit risk. There has been no major changes
in the Group's risk management policy since 31 December 2015.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities (2015: nil) with the exception of matters related to a
litigation as described in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statement.

LITIGATION

Details of the litigation are set out in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statement.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group firmly believes that high-caliber people are the most
valuable asset of a corporation. The Group thus places great
attention on attracting talents and nurturing its people. It has kept
optimizing its staff structure according to its development strategy
and business needs. As at 31 December 2016, the Group had 55
(2015: 32) employees and 3 (2015: 167) agents. The Group hired
more employees during the year to support the development of
its media, entertainment and related businesses, and the number
of agents decreased due to the downsizing of the property
agency business, as well as the Group’s shift in focus towards
the high-growth media and entertainment industry. The Group
has developed comprehensive remuneration management and
incentive mechanisms, with employees remunerated based on
their positions and work performance as well as industry trends.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
% 3 E

Set out below are the biographical details of the directors of the
Company (the “Directors”) as at the date of this annual report of
27 March 2017:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Dong Ping (“Mr. Dong")

Mr. Dong, aged 55, was appointed as an executive Director on
2 September 2015, redesignated as the chairman (the “Chairman®)
of the Board on 15 January 2016 and is also a member of
remuneration committee and a member of nomination committee
of the Company. Mr. Dong is also director of a number of
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Dong has extensive experience,
knowledge and connection in investment and operation of
Chinese media, advertisement, satellite TV, film productions and
media fields and was the former Chairman of ChinaVision Media
Group Limited (now known as Alibaba Pictures Group Limited), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1060). Mr. Dong has been the principal investor, producer
and co-producer of various internationally renowned films,
including Crouching Tiger Hidden Dragon {BA i & ) (directed
by Mr. Ang Lee (Z %)), Devils on the Doorstep (BT T )
(directed by Mr. Jiang Wen (Z3¢)), Peacock {FL# ) (directed
by Mr. Gu Changwei ( Ei&f)), Let the Bullets Fly (GEF58ER)
(directed by Mr. Jiang Wen (2£3X)), Journey to the West 77 f B )
(directed by Mr. Stephen Chow (/&£ 8t)), Dearest (FHEH)
(directed by Mr. Chan Ho Sun (BRA]=¢)) and Breakup Buddies
CLFERE D (directed by Mr. Ning Hao). Some of these films have
won numerous major awards in both domestic and overseas
film festival. From August 2003 to April 2005, Mr. Dong was the
president of Asian Union Film and Media. Between 31 May 2005
and 11 January 2008, Mr. Dong was appointed as an executive
director of Asian Union New Media (Group) Limited ( ZE{E 1L
(@) AR AA]), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 419), and was the chairman of the board of
directors from 12 May 2006 to 11 January 2008.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this report of 27 March 2017, Mr. Dong
was deemed to be interested in 1,431,304,354 Shares (being
461,711,082 Shares held by Newwood Investments Limited
("Newwood"), 92,342,216 Shares held by Numerous Joy Limited
("Numerous Joy"), 438,625,528 Shares held by Pacific Wits Limited
("Pacific Wits") and 438,625,528 Shares held by Tairong Holdings
Limited ("Tairong") within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"). Please refer to the section
“Directors’ Interests in Securities” in the Directors’ Report of this
annual report for details.

Mr. Xiang Shaokun, Steven (“Mr. Xiang")

Mr. Xiang, aged 54, was appointed as an executive Director on
2 September 2015 and the Chief Executive Officer of the Group
on 18 September 2015. Mr. Xiang is also director of a number of
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Xiang was a partner of Weil,
Gotshal & Manges LLP, an international law firm, where he has led
its China practice since 2004. Previously, Mr. Xiang was a partner
in the Shanghai office of Clifford Chance, an international law
firm from 2002 to 2004. A specialist in mergers and acquisitions,
Mr. Xiang has acted as the principal counsel in many significant
transactions including representing Lenovo Group Limited in
its acquisition of IBM's global personal computer business. He
holds a degree of juris doctor from Vanderbilt University School
of Law, U.S.A. and a Bachelor of Arts from Beijing University of
International Studies. Mr. Xiang is licensed to practice law in New
York and in Hong Kong. Mr. Xiang has been consistently ranked as
one of the top mergers and acquisitions lawyers by Chambers.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Ning Hao (“Mr. Ning")

Mr. Ning, aged 39, was appointed as a non-executive Director on
2 September 2015. Mr. Ning majored in photography and obtained
a bachelor degree from Beijing Film Academy (JtREBFER),
PRC, in 2003. Mr. Ning is a film director and screenwriter who
has directed seven films between 2003 and 2014, which were
engraved with his unique personal style and won international
acclaim. All of Mr. Ning's films have achieved strong investment
returns. His directorial debut Incense (& A )(2003) and his second
film Mongolian Ping Pong {#x & i) (2004) were nominated in
more than 50 international film festivals, including the Berlin Film
Festival, Locarno Film Festival and the Hong Kong Film Festival.
Among these, Incense won the Grand Prize at the Fourth Tokyo
FILMeX Festival in 2003 and the Golden Prize (Asian Digital Films)
at the 28th Hong Kong International Film Festival in 2004. In 2006,
Mr. Ning directed his small budget film Crazy Stone {EIERIAEE),
which won the Taiwan Golden Horse Award ( Z/&% 552 ) for the
Best Original Screenplay. Crazy Racer ( {JaZHEE)) (2009),
which was wrote and directed by Mr. Ning, was produced for
an investment of only RMB10 million and achieved over RMB100
million at the box office. In 2013, Mr. Ning directed No Man’s Land
(% A[Z), which won the Annual Tribute Movie by One Hundred
Media (AREHFEBHMES) at the 14th Chinese Film Media
Awards (FEEEZEHE AH). Mr. Ning also directed the huge
box office hit Breakup Buddies {:OEREH) (2014) which grossed
RMB1,169 million at the PRC box office and became the highest
grossing-domestic Chinese film of the year.

As at the date of this report of 27 March 2017, Mr. Ning was
deemed to be interested in 1,431,304,354 Shares (being
461,711,082 Shares held by Newwood, 92,342,216 Shares held
by Numerous Joy, 438,625,528 Shares held by Pacific Wits and
438,625,528 Shares held by Tairong) within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO. Please refer to the section “Directors’ Interests
in Securities” in the Directors’ Report of this annual report for
details.
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Mr. Xu Zheng (“Mr. Xu”)

Mr. Xu, aged 44, was appointed as a non-executive Director on
2 September 2015. Mr. Xu graduated with a bachelor degree from
Shanghai Theatre Academy (_E/8BIBIZET ), PRC, in 1994. Mr. Xu
is an actor, director, screenwriter and producer. He started his
career as an actor in the 1990s. Mr. Xu rose to national stardom in
2000 with the TV series Sunny Piggy (E K%\ ), followed
by other successful TV dramas such as Li Wei the Magistrate
(EREE) (2002). Mr. Xu then focused more on films, starring in
comedies Call for Love (EEMFAYEER) (2007) and Call for Love I
(EIBWIEER 2) (2008), Lost on Journey { AFEEE ) (2010), No
Man's Land (& A[&) (2013) (for which he was awarded the best
lead actor by the Chinese Film Director Association (FFEIE R E
SEE ) in 2014) and the huge box office hit Breakup Buddies .
TEBEHR) (2014) and Lost in Hong Kong B[ ) (2015). In 2012, his
directorial debut Lost in Thailand ¢ AZEM#% 2 Z=ME) (a road trip
comedy) which he also wrote, produced and starred in, earned
over US$200 million and became the highest-grossing domestic
Chinese film ever. In 2014, he produced and starred in The Great
Hypnotist (fEBEKE) (@ suspense thriller film), which achieved
groundbreaking box-office success and a great reputation in the
Chinese suspense thriller film market.

As at the date of this report of 27 March 2017, Mr. Xu was deemed
to be interested in 1,431,304,354 Shares (being 461,711,082
Shares held by Newwood, 92,342,216 Shares held by Numerous
Joy, 438,625,528 Shares held by Pacific Wits and 438,625,528
Shares held by Tairong) within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.
Please refer to the section “Directors’ Interests in Securities” in
the Directors’ Report of this annual report for details.
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Mr. Gao Zhikai (“Mr. Gao”)

Mr. Gao, aged 55, was appointed as a non-executive Director
on 2 September 2015. Mr. Gao was appointed as a member of
the audit committee of the Company on 30 September 2016.
Mr. Gao is the vice chairman of Sino-Europe United Investment
Corporation. Mr. Gao has extensive experience, knowledge and
professional expertise in law, investment banking, venture capital
and private equity, and corporate management. In the 1980s,
Mr. Gao was an English interpreter for the Second Generation of
Chinese leaders, including Mr. Deng Xiaoping, and also worked
with the United Nations Secretariat in New York City. Mr. Gao’s
main working experience since graduating from Yale Law School
in 1993 with a Juris Doctor degree included working as a lawyer
with the New York City-headquartered law firm, Milbank, Tweed,
Hadley & McCloy, as an investment banker with Morgan Stanley
and its joint venture investment bank in China, China International
Capital Corporation, as the China Policy Advisor with the SFC,
and with major corporations including PCCW Limited, Henderson
Land Development Company Limited and China National Offshore
Oil Corporation (“CNOOC"). At CNOOC, Mr. Gao was a senior vice
president, general counsel, company secretary, and a member
of the CNOOC's Investment Committee, and a director of CNOOC
International, the holding company for all the overseas operating
assets of CNOOC. Mr. Gao was the first secretary general of
China Private Equity Association (which was subsequently
renamed China Association of Private Equity). Mr. Gao was also
an executive vice president, managing director and co-chairman
of China at Daiwa Capital Markets (Hong Kong) Limited. Over
the past two decades, Mr. Gao has extensive experience as a
director and/or advisor to major corporations, both in China and
internationally, including a number of Fortune 500 companies.
At present, Mr. Gao is a member of the Global Council of Asia
Society, a member of the International Advisory Board of the
Brookings Doha Energy Forum, a member of the International
Advisory Board of the Energy Intelligence Group, the chairman of
China Energy Security Institute, and a member or an advisor at
a number of other non-profit and charity organizations. Mr. Gao
has a Bachelor of Arts degree in English Literature from Suzhou
University, a Master of Arts degree in English Literature from
Beijing University of Foreign Studies, a Master of Arts degree in
Political Science from the Graduate School of Yale University, and
a Juris Doctor degree from Yale Law School. Mr. Gao is licensed as
an attorney-at-law in the State of New York of the United States of
America.
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As at the date of this report, Mr. Gao was deemed to be interested
in 46,171,108 Shares (being 46,171,108 Shares held by Dayunmony
Investment Corporation) within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.
Please refer to the section “Directors’ Interests in Securities” in
the Directors’ Report of this annual report for details.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Su Tuong Sing, David (“Mr. Su”)

Mr. Su, aged 45, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 2 September 2015. Mr. Su is also the chairman of
the remuneration committee, the chairman of the nomination
committee and a member of the audit committee of the Company.
Mr. Su is a managing partner at Matrix Partners China, a venture
capital firm specializing in, early and growth stage investments
and focused primarily on internet, mobile, software and medical
technology investments. Mr. Su, through Matrix Partners
China and other investment vehicles, has been investing in
China for the past 15 years and his investments include Baidu
Inc. (NASDAQ: BIDU), China Kanghui Holdings Inc. (NYSE: KH),
AAC Technologies Holdings Inc. (stock code: 2018), Bona Film
Group Limited (NASDAQ: BONA), DiDi-Kuaidi, Shanghai Kingnet
Technology Co. Ltd, and Reach Surgical, Inc.. Prior to joining
Matrix Partners China, Mr. Su was a co-founder and general
partner of TDF Capital and KPCB China Fund, both of which
are venture capital firms specializing in early and growth stage
investments. Prior to joining the venture capital industry, Mr. Su
worked at Lotus Development, IBM Software Company for seven
years and he had made significant contributions to Lotus’s overall
software and services business in the Greater China region. Mr. Su
started his career at Port of Singapore Authority, responsible
for information system development and management. Mr. Su
graduated from Nanyang Technological University with a Bachelor
Degree in Computer Engineering.
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Mr. Li Xiaolong (“Mr. Li")

Mr. Li, aged 51, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 2 September 2015. Mr. Li is a member of the
remuneration committee and a member of the nomination
committee of the Company. Mr. Li has more than 20 years
of experience in the industry of information technology and
telecommunications. He is the founder and chairman of Net 263
Ltd. (Shenzhen Stock Exchange: 002467), a company based in
Beijing and which provides integrated communication services
for medium-and small-sized enterprises and professionals. Since
September 2004, Mr. Li was the director and general manager
of Net 263 Ltd., and since August 2006, the director of Net
263 Ltd. He has been an independent director at E-Commerce
China Dangdang Inc. (NYSE: DANG) since December 2010,
and an independent director at Kongzhong Corp. (NASDAQ:
KZ) since 2012. Mr. Li studied Computer Science at Beijing
Industry University. Mr. Li attended the undergraduate program
in software engineering in Beijing University of Technology. In
January 2013, Mr. Li was appointed as a committee member of
the telecommunications and economic experts of the Ministry of
Industry and Information Technology.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Tak Chuen (“Mr. Wong")

Mr. Wong Tak Chuen, aged 52, joined the Company as an
independent non-executive director on 10 April 2014. Mr. Wong
is the chairman of the audit committee. Mr. Wong is a fellow
member of both Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
in the United Kingdom, as well as a member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He has over 20
years of experience in auditing, financial management, mergers
and acquisitions gained from certain senior finance related
positions in an international accounting firm in Hong Kong,
companies listed in Hong Kong and a company listed in the United
States of America. He is currently the chief financial officer and
the company secretary of a company listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Wong has been
(i) an independent non-executive director of Eternity Investment
Limited (stock code: 764, a company listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited) (the “Stock Exchange”)
since 7 November 2011, (ii) an independent non-executive director
of Man Sang International Limited (stock code: 938, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) since 12 July
2016; and (iii) an independent non-executive director of China
Healthwise Holdings Limited (stock code: 348, a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) since 11 October 2016.

The remuneration of the above Directors are determined by
the Board with reference to their experience and the prevailing
market rate.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board considers that maintaining corporate governance
at high standard is essential for enhancing accountability and
transparency of a company to the investing public and other
stakeholders. Therefore, the Company is committed to good
corporate governance practices for corporate sustainability and
business growth.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company has
applied the principles and complied with the code provisions set
out in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (the “CG Code") as listed out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
except for the deviations from Code A.2.1, A.2.7 and A.6.7 details
of which are described in this Corporate Governance Report.

CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules on terms no less
exacting than the required standard set out in the Model Code.
Having made specific enquiry, all Directors confirmed that they
fully complied with the Model Code throughout 2016.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is vested with the key roles of formulating the
Group’s corporate strategic directions and policies; monitoring
the financial performance and internal control system of the
Group and overseeing the performance of management, which
is delegated with the responsibilities of executing the Board's
decision and in-charging day-to-day operation.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company. The statement made by the
auditor of the Company regarding their reporting responsibilities
on the financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report of the annual report.
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The changes in the directorships during 2016 are as follows:

1. 0On 15 January 2016, Mr. Dong Ping, an executive Director,
has redesignated as the Chairman of the Board with effect
from 15 January 2016.

2. 0On 30 September 2016, Mr. So Chak Kwong has resigned as
a non-executive director of the Company and ceased to be
a member of the audit committee of the Company. Mr. Gao
Zhikai, a non-executive director of the Company, has been
appointed as a member of the audit committee of the
Company on 30 September 2016.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises two executive Directors, three
non-executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors, whose biographies are set out in the Biographical
Details of Directors of the annual report. All the Directors are high
caliber executives with diversified industry expertise and bring a
wide range of skills and experience to the Group.

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Dong Ping, an executive Director, was appointed as the
Chairman of the Board on 15 January 2016.

With effect from 12 July 2016, Mr. Wong Tak Chuen, an
independent non-executive Director, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of Man Sang International
Limited, the shares of which are listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 938). With effect from 11 October
2016, Mr. Wong Tak Chuen has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director of China Healthwise Holdings Limited,
the shares of which are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 348).

Following the resignation of Mr. So Chak Kwong on 30 September
2016, Mr. So has ceased to be a member of the audit committee
of the Company. Mr. Gao Zzhikai, a non-executive director of
the Company, has been appointed as a member of the audit
committee of the Company with effect from 30 September 2016.

Save for above, there is no change in Directors’ information
for the year ended 31 December 2016, which is required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

18 & B R

“E-REFRAESHRBEHNT

1. RZE-RE-ATHAB HOTEFETEL
ACERHEREEEIFE BT —R"F—
A+HBRER-

2. RIE-—RFLA=TRH HFEXELECDEH
EARARBFRNTES A TBREARAE
“EEEKE - R_ZE—R"ENLA=1TH"
ARBFQTEESSIALEZELEAR
AEZEREENKE -

EEEEM

EXeTAMBNITES ZBFATEFR=A
BUFNTESENX  EFEEIRAEHRESRE
FE—f - 2BEFHR/RARBEHIITRAER - A
TRATEER AAKRETRSERMELR -

ARACHBRBIIFATESRELTRAE
BNBRMER ZIBEF B R YR REIBILIE
WITEFEBBILAL

HITEFEFEER T R"F-ATHRAEZ
TREFEXR -

BUFRTEZTERRALRZERRLEBERA
RARZEBYIFATEE BT R"RFLA+TZ
R AR © 5%~ B RO B (D IO B 32 P AR £ 7 (B A
Ho%:938) - EmRBEERRER/TEEEEE
TRERRAZEBILIFNTES BT~ F+
A+ — BB - ZAFNRMDRE AP ER £
(B fn 5% : 348)

HEAEER _T-R"ENA=ZTHBEER &
ETBREEARRAEZZBENE - ARFIHIT
EERTI AL EZERARAERZEEN
B B-Z-RFALA=THEBER-

BLERES  BE-E-AF+ZA=t+—BILE
[ EEE R T AR L TARAIE13 518(1)
T BB B -

BESREBARLT —TFFM



32

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
1t & B R

The composition of the Board and their respective attendance #Hz-—ZET—XF+-_B=-+—H|FEF e
in the general meetings, Board meetings and other committee AR EEENREAS BETeeEREMES
meetings during the year ended 31 December 2016 are as follows: @& > HBEEZRM | :
No. of meetings attended/eligible to attend
HE/ BRERLREEENR
Regular Audit  Remuneration Nomination
General full board Committee Committee Committee
meetings meetings meetings meetings meetings
gxg =31 M R%
krAg 2BEHEAfE ZEESH ZEEEE ZEEER
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(K1) (FizE2)
Number of meetings SHNY 1 5 2 2 2
Executive Directors HTEZE
Mr. Dong Ping (Chairman) BELR4E(ZR) 17 5/5 N/A T8 202 202
Mr. Xiang Shaokun, Steven ERBEE
(Chief Executive Officer) (7T #%) 11 5/5 N/A T ER N/A T B N/A TE B
Non-executive Directors FHTEE
Mr. Ning Hao BEEE 01 3/5 N/A N N/A R A N/A R
Mr. Xu Zheng RELE on 2/5 N/A R iE R N/A @R N/A &R
Mr. Gao Zhikai BEHEE 0/1 4/5 N/A T ER N/A T B N/A TE B
Mr. So Chak Kwong BEfEE
(resigned on 30 September 2016) (RZB—RE Al 3/4 112 N/A @R N/A T ER
NA=+HEHF)
Independent non-executive Directors BUEHITEE
Mr. Su Tuong Sing, David GEREE Al 3/5 22 2/2 2/2
Mr. Li Xiaolong FNEEE 0/1 5/5 N/A T 2/2 2/2
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen BEbEE 11 4/5 2/2 N/A T A N/A TR
Note 1: Under the CG Code provision A.6.7, non-executive Directors and  FizE1: IRIBEETRIEXEA 6T FERMITEE MBI
independent non-executive Directors should attend general meetings. HWTEEFEEFERRAEGE -FAN BEFHMEH
During the year due to Directors’ other commitments, not all of the BR - WIETHMARABFERITERT LB ILIFNTE
non-executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors of EHNELERZZS—R"FNA—BRITZRERAF
the Company attended the annual general meeting held on 1 June RE o
2016.
Note 2: Under CG Code provision A.2.7, the chairman should at least annually {2 : BRIBGEFRAEXEA2.7E EHFEAE LS FHEI]E

hold meetings with the non-executive directors, including independent
non-executive directors, without the executive directors present. In
2016, the Chairman did not hold meetings with the non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) without
the executive Director present, which deviates from Code provision
A.2.7. However, in each Board meeting, the chairman of the meetings
would ensure that all Directors were able to make a full and active
contribution to the Board’'s affairs and encourage all Directors with
different views to voice their concerns, allow sufficient time for
discussion of issues and ensure that the Board decisions fairly reflect
Board consensus.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Pursuant to provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Prior to 2 September 2015, the
Chairman of the Board was Mr. Lei Hong Wai. After the resignation
of Mr. Lei Hong Wai as an executive Director and the Chairman of
the Board on 2 September 2015, there is no specific designation of
Chairman of the Board from 2 September 2015 until Mr. Dong Ping
was redesignated as the Chairman of the Board on 15 January
2016.

On 18 September 2015, Mr. Xiang Shaokun, Steven, an executive
Director (appointed as an executive Director on 2 September
2015), was appointed as the chief executive officer of the Group.
Mr. Dong Ping focuses on the leadership role in the Board
to ensure that the Board works effectively in discharging its
responsibilities whilst Mr. Xiang Shaokun, Steven focuses on
day-to-day corporate management matters of the Group. The
Board considers that the segregation of responsibilities among
the Board members meets the requirements under the CG Code.
Since 15 January 2016, Mr. Dong Ping was redesignated as the
Chairman of the Board and therefore Code provision A.2.1 of the
CG Code has been complied with since then and the roles of the
Chairman (by Mr. Dong Ping) and chief executive officer (by Mr.
Xiang Shaokun, Steven) are therefore separate and exercised by
different individuals.

TRAINING

The Company has from time to time provided Directors with
materials relating to the business and operations of the Group,
latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and their
responsibilities under the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory
requirements.
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During the year ended 31 December 2016, all existing Directors HE-Z—XF+_-_A=+—BItFE  AERT

have received the following trainings: BEFOKLL2ETIE -
Training on
corporate
governance,
regulatory
development and
other relevant
Directors = topics
BBLEES-
EERRRHEAM
HEREZ &I
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Dong Ping (Chairman) BERRE(EE) v
Mr. Xiang Shaokun, Steven (Chief Executive Officer) TB#RIRSE (7THARZE) 4
Non-Executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Ning Hao =SS v
Mr. Xu Zheng wiE & 4
Mr. Gao Zhikai =LA v/
Mr. So Chak Kwong (resigned on 30 September 2016) &EXEE (R T — X NFNLA=ZTHET) v
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIYFHITES
Mr. Su Tuong Sing, David REREE v
Mr. Li Xiaolong FNEESEAE v
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen HEREAE v
DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS' LIABILITIES EEReRBEZERERE
INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover for ARBERERETRIFEANGERA R R R EMK
liabilities in respect of legal actions against Directors and officers BARES MMM E FAAKE N DR XA
of the Company and its subsidiaries arising out of corporate EHHIERFARZEBETLHBEEE NORR
activities of the Group under Code A.1.8 of the CG Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board has undertaken to perform corporate governance
duties and adopted the terms of reference on corporate
governance functions on 27 March 2012 for better management of
the business and affairs of the Group.

The duties of the Board in respect of corporate governance
functions shall be:

(i)  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

(i) to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

(v) to review the Company’s compliance with the code
provisions set out in the CG Code contained in Appendix 14
of the Listing Rules on Stock Exchange and its disclosure
requirements in the Corporate Governance Report.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established 3 Board committees, namely audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee
to oversee particular aspect of the Group's affair. Each of the
committees had defined terms of reference setting out its duty,
power and functions. The committees report to the Board and,
where appropriate, make recommendations on matters discussed.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

As at 1 January 2016, the audit committee comprises three
members, namely, Mr. Wong Tak Chuen (committee chairman
and an independent non-executive Director), Mr. So Chak Kwong
(resigned on 30 September 2016 and ceased to be a member of
the audit committee and a non-executive Director) and Mr. Su
Tuong Sing, David (an independent non-executive Director). On 30
September 2016, Mr. So resigned as a non-executive Director and
ceased to be a member of the audit committee of the Company.
Mr. Gao Zhikai, a non-executive Director, has been appointed
as a member of the audit committee of the Company since 30
September 2016. During 2016, the main role and functions of the
audit committee are to review the financial information of the
Company, to oversee the Company’s financial reporting system,
risk management and internal control procedures and maintain
relations with the auditors of the Company.

Under the terms of reference of the audit committee, the audit
committee shall, among others, to monitor the integrity of the
Company’s financial statements and annual report and accounts,
half-year report and to discuss the risk management and internal
control system with management to ensure that management has
performed its duty to have effective risk management and internal
control systems. The written terms of reference are posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

In 2016, the audit committee had held 2 meetings. During one of
the meeting, annual results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015 was reviewed with the auditor of the Company.
The audit committee also reviewed the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and discussed internal controls
and financial reporting matters with the management team of the
Company. Another meeting was also held during 2016 that interim
results of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2016 was
discussed. The audit committee also reviewed the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and financial
reporting matters with the management team of the Company.
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Besides, the audit committee, with the assistance of the
management and an external internal control and risk
management consultant (the “Consultant”), has conducted interim
and annual reviews on the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems of the Group for 2016 and considered the
Group has operated an effective and adequate risk management
and internal control systems (based on discussion between
the audit committee and the Consultant and the findings of the
Consultants’ internal control review reports).

Please refer to the section “Internal Control and Risk
Management” in this Corporate Governance Report for the details
on the review by the audit committee on the Group's internal
control and risk management for 2016.

The audit committee is also responsible for performing the
corporate governance functions set out in the code provision
D.3.1 of the CG Code for the year 2016. The audit committee
reviewed the Consultant’s report on the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, the Company's policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements
and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in this Corporate Governance Report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company was set up with key
responsibilities for considering and approving the appointment
of members of the Board and will meet to discuss when
nomination of new director(s) is received or when circumstances
require. In considering the suitability of a candidate for
directorship, the Board will take into account the candidate’s
qualification, experience, expertise and knowledge as well as the
prevailing composition, structure and size of the Board and the
requirements under the Listing Rules.

Under the terms of reference of the nomination committee, the
nomination committee shall, among others, identify individuals
suitably qualified to become Board members and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of, individuals
nominated for directorships; the candidates for directorship
will be selected taken into account a wide range of factors,
including but not limited to, gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
service term. The written terms of reference are posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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During 2016, the nomination committee composed of Mr. Su
Tuong Sing, David (committee chairman and an independent non-
executive Driector), Mr. Dong Ping (an executive Driector and the
Chairman of the Board) and Mr. Li Xiaolong (an independent non-
executive Director). The committee member met twice in the
year ended 31 December 2016. A meeting held to discuss and
approve the redesignation of Mr. Dong Ping as the Chairman of
the Company. Mr. Dong abstained from voting in relation to his
redesignation as chairman. Another meeting was held to discuss
the re-election of Directors at the annual general meeting held on
1 June 2016.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company was set up with key
responsibilities of recommending to the Board (i) the policy and
structure for remuneration of Directors and senior management;
and (i) the remuneration package of executive directors and
senior management. The Board retains the final authority to
approve the remuneration packages.

Under the terms of reference of the remuneration committee,
the remuneration committee shall, among others, make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy. The remuneration committee
also make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management. This should include benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment. The written
terms of reference are posted on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

During 2016, the remuneration committee composed of Mr. Su
Tuong Sing, David (committee chairman and an independent non-
executive Director), Mr. Dong Ping (an executive Director and the
Chairman of the Board) and Mr. Li Xiaolong (an independent non-
executive Director).

The committee members met twice in the year ended 31
December 2016. A meeting was held to discuss remuneration-
related matters. Another meeting during the year ended 31
December 2016 was held to review the remuneration packages of
the retiring Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERN

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chow Fuk Wai, the Company Secretary of the Company, has
undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
for the year ended 31 December 2016.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

Risk management and internal control are essential parts
of corporate governance. The Directors have the overall
responsibility for internal control and risk management systems,
and review their effectiveness. The Group has established
policies and procedures for risk management and internal control
to ensure the proper monitoring and control of major risks
arising from the Group’s activities. The Group has engaged an
external internal control and risk management consultant (i.e.
the Consultant) to perform the Group’s internal audit function,
to review and improve the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems. The Company has put
in place risk management and internal control systems which
enable the Group to respond appropriately to significant business,
operational, financial, compliance and other risks. Furthermore,
they help ensure the quality of internal and external reporting
within the Group and the compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, and also internal policies with respect to the conduct
of businesses of the Group.

The Board, through the audit committee and with the assistance
of the Consultant, have conducted reviews on the effectiveness
of risk management and internal control systems of the Group
for 2016 and considered the Group has operated an effective,
appropriate, and adequate risk management and internal control
systems (based on the findings of the Consultants’ internal control
review reports and discussion with the Consultant). In respect
of the Group's internal control systems, it aims at safeguarding
assets from inappropriate use, maintaining proper accounts
and ensuring compliance with regulations. The management
is primarily responsible for the design, implementation and
maintenance of the internal control system. The internal
control and risk management systems are designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss, and to manage, rather than eliminate, risks
of failure to achieve business objectives.

Along with the internal control review, the Consultant has
prepared interim and annual review reports on overall
effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal control over
various aspect including financial, operational and compliance
issues, in particular, the key business cycles of property agency
business in Hong Kong, the Group’s media and entertainment
business and corporate finance function were reviewed for the
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year ended 31 December 2016. Along with the risk management
review, the Board, through the audit committee and with the
assistance of the Consultant, have, among others, identified,
evaluated and assessed the key risk factors affecting the
Group’s business and operation in the Group’s media and
entertainment business and property agency business. During
the risk assessment process, the management of the Company
has reviewed aspects including operation, compliance and
strategic areas. High-priority risks identified included strategic
risk of investing in entertainment industry, operation risks such
as uncertainties in production quality of media projects, credit
risk in relation to distributors and risks involved in compliance
with various censorship regulations, listing rules compliance,
and financial data reporting standards. Management would from
time to time review the key risks identified and determine their
responses to high-priority risks and where necessary, report
on significant changes and effectiveness of the systems of risk
management.

The Board had adopted a whistle blowing policy including
procedures for employees to report any irregularities on the
affairs of the Company.

INSIDE INFORMATION POLICY

Pursuant to the statutory regime for disclosure of inside
information sets out in Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) with effect
from 1 January 2013, the Board has adopted an inside information
policy in 27 August 2013 which sets out the guidelines to the
directors, officers and all relevant employees of the Group
to ensure that the inside information of the Group is to be
disseminated to public in equal and timely manner in accordance
with the applicable laws and regulations, which includes, among
others, all inside information must be treated strictly confidential
and disclosure of inside information must be made in a manner
that provides the public with an equal, timely and effective access
to the information, such as through the electronic publication
system operated by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
Generally, no employee or director may disclose, discuss or
share with outside parties (except for communication with the
Group's advisers who owe a duty of confidentiality, e.g. lawyers,
and other categories of persons as allowed under the art XIVA)
the information of price-sensitive nature about the Company that
has not been released to the public. Please refer to the website
of the Company http://www.huanximedia.com/ under the section
“Corporate Governance” for the Company’s inside information

policy.

HUANXI MEDIA GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

REMREXFEANEIREXZHETENETEZER
kEBERBRAZETH  FEEFEFIHE R
R EBIET  ARAREEECHEE ARk
REEE T EELHR - ERIIEZRE R BIBRET
ERERBAR KN BERREEXRTRELER
- BERTHEBNEERR  EFCEEEELA
B AR LETRAARURMBERRERER S
KeyE g o B2 E e M i a EH 5 T EER &
EEHsELEARARZELER  mMAELER
REREERGNERNEGH LA ETER -

EECCRMBEBER  ETHARE LBAEHREAL
REEEHZERITIRZEFR -

REHEBXR

BIEBEZTE—=F—A—HBERNEEEZNE
S57T1EFH M E IR EXIVASATE K B A &E B
CEREX  EFeR_T—=F/\AZ+tHE
MANEBRIE - ZEREFNHALEEE - &
BENMTEEBEENIES - LEERREEE X
BEHRRNTERFHRAARBMHAEE 2 NEHEE
BEEBBE MBANE BB ERRRZ AR
BHEBZHEBANEAFEARTSE B KA B E
FHE  WREBBESRIMERARCETFEH
REHE e —MmE EEXNESTAEINAALT
BE BidsoZ(MEEEEREECZASERE
B (40« 200 R EXIVASI A 2 E 4885 A
TEMAIRIN) BRI R AR 2 AR TR E R
B BEARATNARELEEK  F2HAQF
#ufihttp://www.huanximedia.com/[ (R 2 &4 | —
£ o



CORPORATE GOVERN

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Shareholders’ communication policy was adopted by the Board
on 27 March 2012. Shareholders’ communication policy and
shareholder’s rights are published on the designated website of
the Company.

RIGHT TO PUT ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may direct their enquiries about their shareholdings
to the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F., Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong. Enquiries other than shareholdings
may be directed to the head office and principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong as set out in the Corporation
Information of this annual report for the attention of the Company
Secretary.

RIGHT TO CONVENE SPECIAL GENERAL
MEETING

Pursuant to Section 74(1) of the Bermuda Companies Act and the
bye-law 62 of the Bye-Laws of the Company, the shareholder(s) of
the Company holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company as
at the date of the deposit carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company may request the Board to convene a
special general meeting.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must
be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered
office of the Company at Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda for the attention of the Company
Secretary and may consist of several documents in like form each
signed by one or more requisitionists.

If the directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half of
the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a
meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of three months from the said date.
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RIGHT TO PUT FORWARD PROPOSALS AT
GENERAL MEETINGS

On the requisition in writing of either (i) any number of
shareholder of the Company representing not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all the shareholders
having at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the
meeting to which the requisition relates; or (ii) not less than
100 shareholders, the Company shall, at the expense of the
requisitionists:

(@) to give to shareholders of the Company entitled to receive
notice of the next annual general meeting notice of any
resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to
be moved at that meeting; and

(b) to circulate to shareholders entitled to have notice of any
general meeting sent to them any statement of not more
than one thousand words with respect to the matter referred
to in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt
with at that meeting.

The requisition must be signed by the requisitionists and
deposited at the registered office of the Company at Canon’s
Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda for the
attention of the Company Secretary.

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2016, remuneration in
respect of audit and non-audit services provided by the auditor of
the Company to the Group are approximately HK$1,726,000 (2015:
HK$1,280,000) and HK$690,000 (2015: HK$380,000) respectively.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company maintains websites at http://www.huanximedia.com
and http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/huanximedia where
information and updates on the list of directors and their roles
and functions, terms of reference of the Board committees,
procedures for nomination of directors for election,
announcements, circulars and reports released to the Stock
Exchange and other information are posted.

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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The Directors present their annual report together with the
audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in media and entertainment
and related businesses, advertising agency business, provision of
property agency and related services and securities trading and
investments.

Details of the activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 40 to the consolidated financial statements. An analysis of
revenue and results by principal activities of the Group are set out
in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of this annual report on page 82. The
Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2016.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business performance of the Group during 2016
using financial key performance indicators and discussion on the
important events affecting the Group since the end of 2016 and
the Group's future business development that the Group may be
facing are provided in the Chairman’s Statement and Management
Discussion and Analysis of this annual report, the discussions
thereof form part of this Directors’ Report.

Discussions on the Group’s environmental policies, relationships
with its key stakeholders and compliance with relevant laws and
regulations which have significant impact on the Group are set out
below in the Directors’ Report of this annual report. Please also
refer to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report for the
Group's policies in this regard.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The following are the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group as required to be disclosed pursuant to the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong) and are in
addition to the matters referred to in the Chairman’s Statement
and Management Discussion and Analysis of this annual report.

1. OPERATIONAL RISK

In respect of the risk factor relating to the Group’s media
and entertainment businesses, as set out in the Company’s
circular dated 5 August 2015, given that the Company will
invest in a limited number of films, the success or failure
of these films could have a significant impact on the
Company'’s results of operations in both the year of release
and in the future. Besides, the film industry is fragmented
and highly competitive, the number of films invested by
competitors may create an oversupply of films in the market.
Further, unauthorised copying and piracy are prevalent in
the PRC and other countries in Asia, whose legal systems
may make it difficult for the Company to enforce its
intellectual property rights.

In 2015, the Group signed several agreements to invest
in films, including two exclusive service agreements with
renowned directors, Mr. Ning Hao (“Mr. Ning") and Mr. Xu
Zheng (“Mr. Xu"”), who have become the Company’s
shareholders and non-executive directors. Under the terms
of the service agreements, they are required to produce
one to two films every three years by 31 December 2020,
which can considerably enhance the Group’s capabilities
in film content creation and development. Mr. Dong Ping,
Mr. Ning and Mr. Xu have extensive experience, strong
expertise and a wide business network in the media and
entertainment industry. Mr. Dong, the Company’s substantial
shareholder and the Chairman of the Board, has extensive
experience, knowledge and connection in investment and
operation of Chinese media, advertisement, satellite TV, film
productions and media fields, whilst Mr. Ning and Mr. Xu are
prestigious and successful directors and actors in the PRC
movie industry. Please refer to (i) "Biographical Details of
Directors” in this annual report for the biographical details
of Mr. Dong, Mr. Ning and Mr. Xu; and (ii) the announcement
of the Company dated 13 May 2015 and the circular of the
Company dated 5 August 2015 for details.
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On 1 June 2016, the Group entered into two cooperation
agreements with Mr. Chan Ho Sun Peter and Master China
Films Limited (a company indirectly wholly-owned by
Mr. Wong Kar Wai) respectively, pursuant to which each
of Mr. Chan Ho Sun Peter and Master China Films Limited
has conditionally agreed to provide to the Group with
certain services, and investment and other rights, relating
to film and media productions as set forth in the relevant
agreements. Further, on 6 December 2016, the Group
entered into two other cooperation agreements with Mr. Gu
Changwei and Mr. Zhang Xiaoling (also known as Zhang
Yibai) respectively, pursuant to which each of Mr. Gu and
Mr. Zhang has conditionally agreed to provide to the Group
with certain services, and investment and other rights,
relating to film and internet drama series productions as set
forth in the relevant agreements.

Given the above, the Directors are of the view that the
participation of Mr. Dong Ping, Mr. Ning, Mr. Xu, Mr. Chan
Ho Sun Peter, Mr. Wong Kar Wai, Mr. Gu Changwei and Mr.
Zhang Xiaoling in the Group and through corporation with
them would be instrumental in the Company’s development
in the media and entertainment industry and could migrate
the risk.

2. FINANCIAL RISKS

Details of the Group's financial risks relating to the
operations of the Group include market risk (including
foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and equity and other
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk are set out in note 30
to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARES ISSUED IN THE YEAR

Details of the ordinary shares issued by the Company in 2016 and
details of movement in the share capital of the Company in 2016
are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and
the Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 84 and note 28 to
the consolidated financial statements of this annual report
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE

Details of the distributable reserve of the Company as at 31
December 2016 are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2016, the Company did not have distributable
profit to shareholders (2015: Nil).

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION OF HOLDERS
OF LISTED SECURITIES

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption available
to the shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of
the Company’s securities.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During 2016, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed
securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws (the “Bye-laws”) or the laws of Bermuda
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis to existing shareholders.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover
for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
against its Directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities. The permitted indemnity provision is in force
for the benefit of the Directors as required by section 470 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong)
when the Directors’ Report prepared by the Directors is approved
in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Directors during 2016 and up to the date of the annual report
were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Dong Ping (Chairman)
(appointed as an executive Director on 2 September 2015 and
redesignated as Chairman on 15 January 2016)

Mr. Xiang Shaokun, Steven (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ning Hao

Mr. Xu Zheng

Mr. Gao Zhikai

Mr. So Chak Kwong (resigned on 30 September 2016)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Su Tuong Sing, David

Mr. Li Xiaolong

Mr. Wong Tak Chuen

RESIGNATION OF DIRECTOR

On 30 September 2016, Mr. So Chak Kwong has resigned as
a non-executive Director and ceased to be a member of the
audit committee of the Company to pursue his other business
commitments. Mr. So has confirmed that he has no disagreement
with the Board and are not aware of any matters relating to
his resignation that need to be brought to the attention of the
shareholders of the Company.
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RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with Bye-law 99, Mr. Dong Ping, Mr. Ning Hao and
Mr. Xu Zheng shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. Each of them, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Brief biographical particulars of the existing Directors are set
out in the Biographical Details of Directors of this annual report.
Directors’ other particulars are contained in this report and
elsewhere in this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The existing Directors including the executive Directors, the non-
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors
are for a term of 2 years (except Mr. Xiang Shaokun, Steven, an
executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer of the Group,
there is no specific term or proposed length of services for
Mr. Xiang's appointment). All of the existing Directors shall be
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance
with the Bye-laws of the Company and the Listing Rules.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of each
director and chief executive in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO, as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or the Model
Code under the Listing Rules, or known to the Company, were as
follows:

Long Positions in the Ordinary Shares of
HK$0.01 Each of the Company (the “Shares”)
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Approximate
percentage of the

Number of Shares issued Shares
HERTRA
Name of Director EEHR :&vig - Q=] BABEDLE
1,431,304,354 (Note 1)
Mr. Dong Ping B¥EE (B EE) 51.71%
1,431,304,354 (Note 2)
Mr. Ning Hao ByEEE (P 5E2) 51.71%
1,431,304,354 (Note 3)
Mr. Xu Zheng TRUF S A (Bt 5E3) 51.71%
46,171,108 (Note 4)
Mr. Gao Zhikai mael s (P 5E4) 1.67%
Notes: MieE -
1. These Shares include Shares held by Newwood Investments Limited 1. Z % K 8 BNewwood Investments Limited

("Newwood”) as to 461,711,082 Shares and Numerous Joy Limited
("Numerous Joy") as to 92,342,216 Shares, both of which are companies
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability and
ultimately wholly owned by Mr. Dong Ping. On 14 April 2015, Mr. Dong
Ping, Newwood, Pacific Wits Limited (“Pacific Wits"), Mr. Ning Hao,
Tairong Holidings Limited (“Tairong”) and Mr. Xu Zheng entered into a
shareholders agreement (the "'Shareholders Agreement”), which sets
forth certain rights and obligations of each of the parties in respect of
the governance of the Company following completion of the subscription
for new shares in the Company pursuant to a subscription agreement
dated 14 April 2015, details of which are set out in the Company’s
circular dated 5 August 2015. As Mr. Dong Ping and Newwood are parties
to the Shareholders Agreement, Mr. Dong Ping is therefore deemed
to be interested in all the Shares in which Newwood, Pacific Wits and
Tairong are interested by virtue of section 317 of the SFO and Newwood
is therefore deemed to be interested in all the Shares in which Mr. Dong
Ping, Pacific Wits and Tairong are interested by virtue of section 317 of
the SFO.
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Bl HP#HEREEBHA-_T—AFMNA+HE
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HEARAARRZETRMNEERY  BEFBEIREA
RIBEMA-—ZT—REFN\ARBZER - AREFRE
KNewwood &R B i 2 51 4077 « MURIEE S RIBE
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2. These Shares include 438,625,528 Shares held by Pacific Wits, which is
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability
and ultimately wholly owned by Mr. Ning Hao. Mr. Ning Hao and Pacific
Wits are parties to the Shareholders Agreement, and are therefore
deemed to be interested in all the Shares in which Mr. Dong Ping,
Newwood and Tairong are interested by virtue of section 317 of the SFO.

3. These Shares include 438,625,528 Shares held by Tairong, which is a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability
and ultimately wholly owned by Mr. Xu Zheng. Mr. Xu Zheng and Tairong
are parties to the Shareholders Agreement, and are therefore deemed
to be interested in all the Shares in which Mr. Dong Ping, Newwood and
Pacific Wits are interested by virtue of section 317 of the SFO.

4. These Shares are held by Dayunmony Investment Corporation, which is
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability
and ultimately wholly owned by Mr. Gao Zhikai.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company or any of their
associates had any interests or short positions in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 37 to the financial statements headed
“Related Party Disclosures” and the section headed "Directors’
Interests in Competing Business” of the Directors’ Report and
elsewhere in this annual report, no Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party during 2016.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER'S INTERESTS
IN SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 37 to the financial statements headed
"Related Party Disclosures” and the section headed “Directors’
Interests in Competing Business” of the Directors’ Report and
elsewhere in this annual report, at no time during 2016 had
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and the controlling
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) or any of its
subsidiaries entered into any contracts of significance or any
contract of significance for the provision of services by the
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries to the Company
or any of its subsidiaries.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the Directors’ Report and elsewhere in this
annual report, in particular the section “Directors’ Interests in
Competing Business” and "Directors’ Interests in Securities” of
this Directors’ Report, at no time during 2016 was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debenture of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

COMPANY'S CONTRACTS INVOLVING ISSUE
OF NEW SHARES

A. AGREEMENTS WITH MR. CHAN HO SUN
PETER AND MASTER CHINA FILMS LIMITED

On 1 June 2016 (after trading hours), the Company and
one of its indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries entered into
an agreement (the “Chan Agreement”) with Mr. Chan Ho
Sun Peter (“Mr. Chan”) pursuant to which Mr. Chan has
conditionally agreed to provide to the Group with certain
services, and investment and other rights, relating to film
and media productions as set forth in the Chan Agreement.
Pursuant to the Chan Agreement, the Company allotted and
issued 144,500,000 Shares to Mr. Chan under the general
mandate (“General Mandate”) granted to the Board at the
annual general meeting held on 1 June 2016 (the "Annual
General Meeting”), representing approximately 5.22% of the
existing issued share capital of the Company as at the date
of this annual report.
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Under the terms of the Chan Agreement, Mr. Chan will
provide to the Group certain services, and investment and
other rights, relating to film productions as follows:

(@)

the Group will have priority over others to invest in Mr.
Chan's Productions (i.e. a film directed (or co-directed)
by Mr. Chan that is or is intended to become publicly
screened at cinemas in the PRC) during the service
period, up to a maximum of 60% of the total investment
amount in each of Mr. Chan’s Productions (the “Film
Production Investment Rights”). The exact investment
amount in each of Mr. Chan’s Productions is to be
agreed between the Company and Mr. Chan prior to
the production of the relevant film;

Mr. Chan will ensure that, within the initial service
period for a term of six years, the Group would be able
to successfully exercise its Film Production Investment
Rights with respect to, and would be able to participate
in the investment of, at least two of Mr. Chan's
Productions;

the Group will have priority over others to purchase
exclusive global distribution licenses in new media with
respect to Mr. Chan’s Productions (the “New Media
Distribution Rights”). The amount of the consideration
for New Media Distribution Rights is subject to
negotiation and agreement;

Mr. Chan will use his best endeavours to provide
the Group with participation rights with respect to
investments in other productions being films and
programmes not directed by Mr. Chan but in respect of
which he is either the producer, screenwriter, or other
creative member; and

Mr. Chan will be appointed to the Company’s Artistic
Advisory Committee and will also, from time to time,
provide consultancy services to the Company in
respect of films and programmes.

The Group contributed HK$100 million for the development
of Mr. Chan'’s Productions.
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The Board is of the view that, having regard to the highly
competitive film industry, the participation of Mr. Chan in
the Company and the services and opportunities he would
be providing under the Chan Agreement would help the
Company secure film investment opportunities and would
also further strengthen the Group’s advertising, media
and entertainment businesses. The Board considers that
the Chan Agreement represents a key step forward in the
implementation of the Company’s development plan as set
forth in the Company’s circular dated 5 August 2015.

On 1 June 2016 (after trading hours), the Company and one
of its indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries entered into an
agreement (the “Master China Agreement”) with Master
China Films Limited (“Master China Films”), a company
indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Wong Kar Wai (“Mr. Wong"),
pursuant to which Master China Films has conditionally
agreed to provide to the Group with certain services,
and investment rights, and other rights relating to film
productions as set forth in the Master China Agreement.
Pursuant to the Master China Agreement, the Company
allotted and issued 100,000,000 Shares to Mr. Wong under
the General Mandate granted to the Board at the Annual
General Meeting, representing approximately 3.61% of the
existing issued share capital of the Company as at the date
of this report.

Under the terms of the Master China Agreement, Master
China Films will provide to the Group certain services,
investment rights, and other rights, relating to certain film
productions as follows:

(@) during the service period, the Group will have the
exclusive right to invest in an internet drama series
with two seasons (with a total of eighteen episodes)
produced by Master China Films and partially directed
by Mr. Wong with respect to themes to be agreed by
the Company and Master China Films (“Mr. wong's
Productions”);
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(b)  Master China Films will grant internet distribution rights
to the Group in new media with respect to each of Mr.
Wwong's Productions on a global and exclusive basis for
a term of ten years commencing from the delivery of
the relevant production to the Company;

(c) Master China Films will use its best endeavours to
procure Mr. Wong to provide the Group with priority
participation rights with respect to investments
in other productions being films and programmes
that Mr. wong is either the director, the producer,
screenwriter, lead actor or other creative member; and

(dy Mr. Wong is expected to be appointed to the
Company’s Artistic Advisory Committee to provide
consultancy services to the Company in respect of the
Company’s films and programmes.

The Group will contribute an amount equivalent to between
RMB20 million to RMB25 million for the development of each
episode of Mr. Wong's Productions, RMB100 million of which
was paid to Master China Films.

The Board is of the view that having regard to the highly
competitive film industry, the collaboration with Master
China Films and the services and opportunities it would be
providing under the Master China Agreement, especially
in internet drama series and new media, would help the
Company secure film investment opportunities and would
also further strengthen the Group’s advertising, media and
entertainment businesses. The Board considers that the
Master Chan Agreement would be beneficial to the Group, as
it represents a key step forward in the implementation of the
Company’s development plan as set forth in the Company’s
circular dated 5 August 2015.
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On 17 June 2016 (the “Date of Issuances”) the Company
allotted and issued 100,000,000 Shares to Mr. Wong Kar
Wai and 144,500,000 Shares to Mr. Chan Ho Sun Peter
(collectively, the “Issuances” and the Shares issued pursuant
to the Issuances, the “New Shares”) that the New Shares
have been vested. The Issuances were recognised as share-
based payment expenses and charged to the Group’s
statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2016. Based on the closing price of the Shares on the Date
of Issuances of HK$2.1 per Share, the fair value of the issue
of New Shares pursuant to the Issuances is approximately
HK$513.5 million.

Such expense is of a non-cash nature.

Please refer to the two announcements of the Company
dated 1 June 2016 and the announcement dated 17 June
2016 for details.

AGREEMENTS WITH MR. GU CHANGWEI
AND MR. ZHANG XIAOLING

On 6 December 2016 (after trading hours), the Company and
one of its indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries entered into
(i) an agreement with Mr. Gu Changwei (“Mr. Gu") (the “Gu
Agreement”), and (i) an agreement with Mr. Zhang Xiaoling
(also known as Zhang Yibai) ("Mr. Zhang") (the “Zhang
Agreement”), pursuant to which Mr. Gu and Mr. Zhang have
respectively and conditionally agreed to provide to the
Company (or its designated group member) with certain
services, and investment and other rights, relating to certain
film and internet drama series productions. Pursuant to the
Gu Agreement and the Zhang Agreement, the Company
allotted and issued, respectively, 75,000,000 Shares to Mr.
Gu and 140,000,000 Shares to Mr. Zhang, representing
approximately 2.71% and 5.06% of the existing share capital
of the Company as at the date of this report respectively,
and the Shares were allotted and issued under the General
Mandate granted to the Board at the Annual General
Meeting.
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Under the terms of the Gu Agreement, Mr. Gu will provide
to the Company (or its designated group member) certain
services, and investment and other rights, relating to certain
film and internet drama series productions as follows:

(@)

during the initial cooperation period of the Gu
Agreement for a term of six years, (the "Gu Initial
Corporation Period”), the Company (or its designated
group member) will have the exclusive right to invest
in two seasons of an internet drama series directed
(or co-directed) by Mr. Gu (the “Gu Internet Series”)
(the "Gu Internet Series Investment Right”). The exact
investment amount is to be agreed between the
Company (or its designated group member) and Mr.
Gu;

the Company (or its designated group member) will
be granted exclusive global distribution rights in new
media with respect to the Gu Internet Series (the “Gu
Internet Series New Media Distribution Rights”);

Mr. Gu will use his best endeavours to provide the
Company (or its designated group member) with
priority rights to invest in Mr. Gu's Productions (i.e. a
film directed by Mr. Gu that is or intended to become
publicly screened at cinemas in the PRC) during the
Gu Initial Cooperation Period. The exact investment
amount in each of Mr. Gu's Productions is to be
agreed between the Company (or its designated group
member) and Mr. Gu,

the Company (or its designated group member) will
have the right to purchase exclusive global distribution
licenses in new media with respect to at least two of
Mr. Gu's Productions (the “"Gu New Media Distribution
Rights"). The amount of the consideration for Gu New
Media Distribution Rights is subject to negotiation and
agreement but shall not be lower than market price;

Mr. Gu will use his best endeavours to provide the
Company (or its designated group member) with
participation rights with respect to investments in
films and programmes not directed by Mr. Gu but he
is either the producer, screenwriter, or other creative
member; and
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Mr. Gu will be appointed to the Company’s Artistic
Advisory Committee and will also, from time to time,
provide consultancy services to the Company in
respect of films and programmes.

The Group contributed a total of RMB40 million for the
development of the first season Gu Internet Series and Mr.
Gu's Productions.

Under the terms of the Zhang Agreement, Mr. Zhang will
provide to the Company (or its designated group member)
certain services, and investment and other rights, relating
to certain film and internet drama series productions as
follows:

(@)

the Company (or its designated group member)
will have priority over others to invest in at least
two of Mr. Zhang's Productions (i.e. a film directed
by Mr. Zhang that is or is intended to become
publicly screened at cinemas in the PRC) during a
term of 6 years from the completion date of the
Zhang agreement (the “Zhang Initial Corporation
Period” ), with no less than 55% of the total investment
amount in each of the Mr. Zhang's Productions (the
“Zhang Film Production Investment Rights”). The
exact investment amount in each of Mr. Zhang's
Productions is to be agreed between the Company and
Mr. Zhang prior to the production of the relevant film;

regardless of the actual amount of investment made
by the Company (or its designated group member)
in Mr. Zhang's Productions, the Company (or its
designated group member) will have priority rights
to purchase exclusive global distribution licenses in
new media with respect to at least two of Mr. Zhang's
Productions (the “Zhang New Media Distribution
Rights”). The amount of the consideration for Zhang
New Media Distribution Rights is subject to negotiation
and agreement but shall not be lower than market
price;
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(c) during the zhang Initial Cooperation Period, the
Company (or its designated group Member) will have
the exclusive right to invest in two seasons of an
internet drama series directed (or co-directed) by
Mr. Zhang (the “Zhang Internet Series”). The exact
investment amount is to be agreed between the
Company (or its designated group member) and Mr.
Zhang;

(d) with respect to the two seasons of the Zhang Internet
Series directed (or co-directed) by Mr. Zhang, the
Company (or its designated group member) will be
granted exclusive global distribution rights in new
media;

(e) Mr. Zhang will use his best endeavours to provide
the Company (or its designated group member) with
participation rights with respect to investments in films
and programmes not directed by Mr. Zhang but he is
either the producer, screenwriter, or other creative
member; and

(f)  Mr. Zhang will be appointed to the Company’s Artistic
Advisory Committee and will also, from time to time,
provide consultancy services to the Company in
respect of films and programmes.

According to the Zhang Agreement, the Group would
contribute a total of RMB100 million for the development of
the Zhang Internet Series and Mr. Zhang's Productions.

On 14 December 2016 (the “Date of Issuances”) the
Company allotted and issued 75,000,000 Shares to
Mr. Gu and 140,000,000 Shares to Mr. Zhang (collectively,
the “Issuances” and the Shares issued pursuant to the
Issuances, the “New Shares”) and that the New Shares have
been vested accordingly. The Issuances were recognised as
share-based payment expenses and charged to the Group's
statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2016. Based on the closing price of the Shares on the Date of
Issuances of HK$2.69 per Share, the fair value of the issue of
New Shares pursuant to the Issuances is HK$578,350,000.
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Such expense is of a hon-cash nature.

Please refer to the two announcements of the Company
dated 6 December 2016 and the announcement dated
14 December 2016 for details.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Interests of the Directors in competing businesses to the Group
as at 31 December 2016 required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
8.10 of the Listing Rules were set out as below:

Companies which
Directors held
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Nature of interest
(including close
associate’s

Directors interests Nature of business interest, if any)
EEME (BEBREHE
= ESEHAEZZAT EEME ATz WA)
Mr. Ning Hao INJO Films Co. Ltd. Movie production Ultimate shareholders
B A (REHAE ﬁxft BRHE RIS R
BEARA
BRI ESE Movie production Ultimate shareholder
ERAER AR B RE AR R
HizEEF 2R 3UE Movie production Ultimate shareholder
BEEARAF B RE S EN
Mr. Xu Zheng Beijing Joy Leader Culture Movie production Ultimate shareholder
RIELE Communication Co. Ltd B RE AR R
JtRELEX
tEHRBERRQA)

The Group is principally engaged in the media and entertainment
and related businesses, advertising agency business, the provision
of property agency and related services and securities trading and
investments. The media and entertainment and related businesses
include, among others, development and/or investment in films
and television drama series.
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Mr. Ning Hao, together with his family, is the ultimate shareholder
of INJO Films Co. Ltd. Mr. Ning Hao is also the ultimate
shareholder of It RERFLEXBEREMR AT and R5GE
BT EEXEEEAR AT . All of the above three companies
(together "Mr. Ning's Companies”) are principally engaged in the
production of films in the PRC. INJO Films Co. Ltd. and the Group
entered into a movie investment agreement on 24 December
2015, as detailed in the announcement of the Company dated 24
December 2015. As at 31 December 2016, none of Mr. Ning Hao or
his close associates was interested in any business in respect of
film production, apart from his and/or his family’s interests in Mr.
Ning's Companies.

Mr. Xu Zheng is the ultimate shareholder of Beijing Joy Leader
Culture Communication Co. Ltd (“BJ Joy Leader”). BJ Joy Leader
is principally engaged in the production of films in the PRC and
is the production company of, among others, the film “Lost in
Hong Kong". On 21 September 2015, BJ Joy Leader entered into
an agreement with the Group to transfer the income right of “Lost
in Hong Kong" to the Group, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 21 September 2015 and circular of the
Company dated 30 November 2015 for details. As at 31 December
2015, none of Mr. Xu Zheng or his close associates was interested
in any business in respect of film production, apart from his
interests in BJ Joy Leader.
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The Directors consider that the Group is capable of carrying on
its businesses independently of, and at arm’s length from, the
movie business of (i) Mr. Ning's Companies and (ii) BJ Joy Leader
((i) and (i) together, the “Other Companies”) as (i) there is a clear
separation between the Group’s businesses and those of the
Other Companies; (i) the Group is not operationally or financially
dependent on any of the Other Companies, or vice versa; and (iii)
the Board operates independently from the boards of the Other
Companies. The Board consists of eight members, comprising of
two executive Directors, three non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. All of the Directors are
aware of their fiduciary duties as a Director of the Company which
require, among other things, that they act for the benefit and in
the best interests of the Company and do not allow any conflict
between their duties as a Director and their personal interest. In
the event that there is a potential conflict of interest arising out
of any transaction to be entered into between the Group and the
Directors or their respective associates, the interested Director(s)
shall abstain from voting at the relevant board meetings of the
Company in respect of such transactions and shall not be counted
in the quorum.

From time to time, the Group may consider possible co-
investment opportunities with Mr. Ning's Companies and/or BJ Joy
Leader in film or other projects. Any such investments and the
definitive terms thereof would be subject to further negotiations
at arm’s length between the relevant parties. If any co-investment
arrangement between the Group and Mr. Ning’s Companies or BJ
Joy Leader were to materialise, it could constitute a connected
transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules. Further
announcement(s) in relation to any such investments will be made
as and when appropriate in compliance with the Listing Rules.
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The Company has entered into the service agreements dated
14 April 2015 (the “Service Agreements”) with each of Mr. Ning
Hao and Mr. Xu Zheng. Pursuant to the Service Agreements, (a)
the Company shall have exclusive investment and production
rights to any films and programmes developed and directed by
Mr. Ning Hao or Mr. Xu Zheng (i.e. the "Director Shareholders’
Productions”), i.e. the Company shall be the sole investor to such
productions; (b) the Company shall have priority distribution rights
to the Director Shareholders’ Productions in the PRC, Hong Kong
Taiwan and Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC; (c)
each of Mr. Ning Hao and Mr. Xu Zheng shall direct one to two
films (being films that shall be publicly released) every three
years in respect of which the Company shall have the exclusive
investment and production rights, and the priority distribution
rights set out in paragraphs (a) and (b) above; (d) Mr. Ning Hao
and Mr. Xu Zheng shall use their best endeavours to provide the
Company with the priority investment, production and distribution
rights for the films and programmes not developed or directed
by them and Mr. Ning Hao and Mr. Xu Zheng are either producer,
screenwriter, lead actor or other creative member (i.e. the “Non-
Director Shareholders’ Productions”); and (e) Mr. Ning Hao and
Mr. Xu Zheng shall actively participate in the promotional activities
of other films and programmes invested or produced by the
Company according to the requirements of the Company. The
Service Agreements and the relevant annual caps have been
approved by the independent shareholders of the Company at the
special general meeting of the Company held on 28 August 2015.
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To avoid any potential direct or indirect competition with the
Group, during the terms of the Service Agreements, save for
the activities and transactions contemplated under the Service
Agreements, unless with the written consent of the Company,
Mr. Ning Hao and Mr. Xu Zheng shall not, directly or indirectly
entrust or authorise any third party to undertake any of the
following activities:

(@)

directly or indirectly (regardless of whether acting in the
capacity of a shareholder, director, employee, partner,
consultant or agent) undertake or participate or benefit from
any business which is the same as, similar or competes
with the business of the Company, including providing any
services that are the same as or similar to the services to be
provided under the Service Agreements;

seize any business opportunity of the Company or solicit any
clients or potential clients of the Company, or interfere or
damage any relationship or contracts between the Company
and any clients or potential clients of the Company; or

assist or support any third person to undertake the activities
set forth in paragraphs (a) and (b) above.

Notwithstanding the above non-compete obligations of Mr. Ning
Hao and Mr. Xu Zheng, Mr. Ning Hao and Mr. Xu Zheng shall,
through companies controlled by them, have the right to:

(@

contract to produce the Director Shareholders’ Productions
which the Company invests in;

operate the Non-Director Shareholders’ Productions;

operate the Director Shareholders’ Productions that the
Company does not invest in;

operate projects that have already commenced operations
by the companies controlled by Mr. Ning Hao and Mr. Xu
Zheng as at the date of the Service Agreements,
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in each case, subject to compliance with any applicable
connected transaction requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The Board will consider allowing Mr. Ning Hao and Mr. Xu
Zheng to engage in the activities mentioned in this section
if, (@) Mr. Ning Hao and Mr. Xu Zheng have completed their
obligations under their respective Service Agreements, and/or (b)
in the view of the Board, the productions which Mr. Ning Hao and
Mr. Xu Zheng wish to undertake would not be profitable or would
otherwise not be suitable for the Company to undertake in light
of the strategic direction of the Company, taking into account the
factors such as (i) the projected cost of the relevant production;
(i) the lead actors or actresses who will participate in the relevant
production; (iii) the projected length of film shooting of the
relevant production; (iv) the estimated box office and popularity
of the relevant production; (v) the genre of the film; (vi) the plot
of the film; (vii) whether undertaking such a production could
lead to other investment opportunities for the Company, such
as exposure to and contact with other reputable and renowned
players in the industry (including actors, actresses, screenwriters,
directors, costume designers, film editors, makeup artists,
visual effect and sound editors and other relevant personnel of
the production team); and (viii) any other fair and reasonable
considerations which the Board may take into account at the time
of consideration of the relevant production.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS'’

As at 31 December 2016, save as disclosed under the section
“Directors’ Interests in Securities” in this Director’s Report of the
annual report, the Company had been notified of the following
substantial shareholders’ interests, being 5% or more of the
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Company’s issued share capital under Section 336 of the SFO.

Approximate
percentage of

Name of shareholders of the Company Capacity Number of Shares shareholding
RABRRRHA 5% RHEE REBABRDL
Newwood Investments Limited (“Newwood") Beneficial owner and interests of a party 1,431,304,354 51.71%
Newwood Investments Limited ([ Newwood ]) to an agreement required to be (Notes 110 2)
disclosed under section 317 of the SFO (F#122)
HREEARBREES RBERAIENTE
ﬁ%ﬁ&%ﬁ'ﬂﬁ%umw}ﬁ%
Numerous Joy Limited (“Numerous Joy") Beneficial owner 92,342,216 3.34%
SZRBEB LT ([HE]) BERBEBA (Notes 1 & 3)
(FI#E1R3)
Dong Ping (“Mr. Dong") Interests of controlled corporation and 1,431,304,354 51.71%
EX(ELE] a party to an agreement required to be (Notes 1to 3)
disclosed under section 317 of the SFO (f#F1%3)
$Eﬁ§ EAERBERIENTRETHEER
et EERBEIT N ER
Pacific Wits Limited (“Pacific Wits") Beneficial owner and interests of a party 1,431,304,354 51.71%
RABRAR([RE]) to an agreement required to be (Notes 1, 2 & 4)
disclosed under section 317 of the SFO (fizET > 2]24)
BERBEBEARBEITNAREESR
BERAENTRETRENER
Ning Hao (“Mr. Ning") Interests of controlled corporation and 1,431,304,354 51.71%
BE(=EE]) a party to an agreement required to be (Notes 1,2 & 4)
disclosed under section 317 of the SFO (fizET > 2]24)
BIEEH R E GG E3176E TR EN TS
EERGEA N ER
Tairong Holdings Limited (“Tairong") Beneficial owner and interests of a party 1,431,304,354 51.71%
REERABR DA ([RE]) to an agreement required to be (Notes 1, 2 & 5)
disclosed under section 317 of the SFO (FfizET > 2]25)
ERBEEARBEESRBEKOIENT7E
ATRENMBZTOAER
Xu Zheng (“Mr. Xu") Interests of controlled corporation and 1,431,304,354 51.71%
HRE(REED a party to an agreement required to be (Notes 1, 2 & 5)
disclosed under section 317 of the SFO (fEaET > 2]25)
BEERRBEEOIEI7EETREOTIE
EE R EAIN T ER
Zhang Xiaoling Beneficial owner 140,000,000 5.06%
R R % ExBEA (Note 6)
(Fr5E6)
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Notes:

Save

On 14 April 2015, the Company and nine subscribers, namely Newwood,
Numerous Joy, Pacific Wits, Tairong, Wise Dragon International Limited,
Gold Shine Investment Company Limited, Dayunmony Investment
Corporation, Concept Best Limited and Reorient Global Limited (the
“Subscribers”) entered into a subscription agreement (the “Subscription
Agreement”), pursuant to which the Company has conditionally agreed
to allot and issue, and the Subscribers have conditionally agreed to
subscribe for, a total of 1,701,416,556 new Shares (the “Subscription
Shares”) at an issue price of HK$0.4 per Share (the “Subscription”).
Details in relation to the Subscription are set out in the Company’s
circular dated 5 August 2015. The Subscription had been approved by
the independent shareholders of the Company at the Company's special
general meeting held on 28 August 2015 and the Subscription Shares
were alloted to the Subscribers on 2 September 2015.

On 14 April 2015, Mr. Dong, Newwood, Pacific Wits, Mr. Ning, Tairong
and Mr. Xu entered into a shareholders agreement (the “Shareholders
Agreement”), which sets forth certain rights and obligations of each
of the parties in respect of the governance of the Company following
completion of the Subscription. Newwood is therefore deemed to be
interested in all the Shares in which Mr. Dong, Pacific Wits and Tairong
are interested by virtue of section 317 of the SFO.

Newwood and Numerous Joy are wholly owned by Mr. Dong. Pursuant to
the Subscription Agreement, Newwood and Numerous Joy subscribed for
461,711,082 and 92,342,216 new Shares respectively upon completion
of the Subscription. Mr. Dong is also a party to the Shareholders
Agreement, is therefore deemed to be interested in all the Shares in
which Newwood, Pacific Wits and Tairong are interested by virtue of
section 317 of the SFO.

Pacific Wits is wholly owned by Mr. Ning. Pursuant to the Subscription
Agreement, Pacific Wits subscribed for 438,625,528 new Shares upon
completion of the Subscription. Mr. Ning and Pacific Wits are also the
parties to the Shareholders Agreement, are therefore deemed to be
interested in all the Shares in which Mr. Dong, Newwood and Tairong are
interested by virtue of section 317 of the SFO.

Tairong is wholly owned by Mr. Xu. Pursuant to the Subscription
Agreement, Tairong subscribed for 438,625,528 new Shares upon
completion of the Subscription. Mr. Xu and Tairong are also the parties to
the Shareholder Agreement, are therefore deemed to be interested in all
the Shares in which Mr. Dong, Newwood and Pacific Wits are interested
by virtue of section 317 of the SFO.

Mr. Zhang Xiaoling was allotted 140,000,000 shares on 14 December

2016 pursuant an agreement entered into among Mr. Zhang, the
Company and one of its wholly-owned subsidiary on 6 December 2016.

as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, there were no

other persons who had an interest or short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or which

were

recorded in the register to be kept by the Company under

Section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTIONS/EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Pursuant to a resolution passed at the annual general meeting
held on 17 June 2014, the Company’s shareholders approved
adoption of a share option scheme which will remain in force for a
period of 10 years from the effective date of its adoption.

Particulars of the share option scheme of the Company are set out
in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements. There were no
outstanding share options as at 1 January 2016 and 31 December
2016 and no share options were granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed during the year ended 31 December 2016.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the percentage of
purchases of the Group attributable to the largest supplier and the
five largest suppliers combined are 66.7% and 75.3% respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the percentage
of turnover of the Group attributable to the largest customer
and the five largest customers combined are 35.7% and 97.7%
respectively.

Save as Mr. Ning Hao (a non-executive Director and a substantial
shareholder of the Company), who is beneficially interested
in RI5H AR LEHEAR2AT (INJO Films Co. Ltd, “INJO"),
being one of the five largest suppliers and one of the five largest
customers of the Group during the year ended 31 December
2016 (please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
24 December 2015 for details on the transaction between the
Group and INJO), as at 31 December 2016, none of the directors,
their associates or shareholders (which to the knowledge of the
directors own more than five percent of the Company’s share
capital) had any interest in the five largest suppliers or customers
of the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of the
annual report the Company has maintained sufficient public float
as required under the Listing Rules.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group encourages staff to save energy, minimize the use of
natural resources and paper products. The existing businesses
of the Group is not expected to create material damages to
the environment. We will continue to take into account the
environmental protection factor in the future when planning
business activities ahead. Please also refer to the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report in this annual report for details.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Board paid attention to the Group’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements. External
compliance and legal advisers are engaged to ensure transactions
and business performed by the Group are within the applicable
law framework. Besides, the Group always maintains a safe
working environment for staff in accordance with relevant safety
policies. There was no incident of non-compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that had a significant impact on the Company
during 2016.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

Our staff is regarded as the most important resource of the Group.
Hence, the Group has been endeavouring to provide our staff with
a fair and harmonious workplace where individuals with diverse
cultural backgrounds are treated equally. We offer a competitive
remuneration package and great opportunities for career
advancement based on employees’ performance.

In respect of the media and entertainment and related
businesses of the Group, the film industry is fragmented and
highly competitive. Following years of rapid development, there
is a vast number of independent service providers providing
various film and television production and distribution services
and there is a number of reputable and reliable independent
service providers who have been engaged by Hong Kong and
overseas film companies for producing and distributing films and
television drama series in the PRC. Mr. Dong Ping, the Chairman
of the Board and an executive Director, Mr. Ning Hao and Mr. Xu
Zheng, both non-executive Directors, have extensive experience,
expertise and connections in the media and entertainment
industries and each of them has noteworthy background,
experience, social status, personal and/or professional
achievements and connections with business partners in the
film industry, their collective knowledge and experience would
enhance the Group to identify appropriate and reliable third
party service providers and negotiate suitable commercial
arrangements with such providers to provide the necessary
services to the Company.
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The Group also places effort to maintain good relationships with
financial institutions and professional advisers to maintain its
continuous growth and operation needs.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of business of the Company
were entered into or exist during the year ended 31 December
2016.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Particulars of the Company’s corporate governance practices are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report of this annual report.

REVIEW OF THE RESULTS

The audit committee of the Company has reviewed with the
management the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and discussed internal control, risk management and
financial reporting matters including the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2016.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five years is set out on page 184 of the
annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016 were audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu. A resolution will be submitted at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as an auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Dong Ping
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2017
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ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group has made efforts to integrate environmental protection
into our daily business operation. It is reflected by our promotion
of pollution prevention, waste reduction and recycling. For all
of our investment decision-making process, as one of the key
assessment criteria, we perform comprehensive assessments and
give due consideration to minimize the potential impact on the
environment.

Throughout the reporting period, the Group complied with laws
and regulations related to air pollution and waste handling
including relevant regulations in the PRC.

Considering the nature of our businesses with the amounts of
waste produced in the course of operation: the efforts that we can
make should not be taken lightly. We from time to time convey
the concept of green office to our employees. For instance, we
remind our staff the advantages of double-sided printing and
energy saving by switching off idle lighting.

The existing business operations of the Group are not expected
to pose a material impact on the environment. However, the
management had nonetheless incorporated the factor of the
potential impact on the environment and natural resources in
business operations planning. The Group hopes that continuous
improvement will make a contribution to the global ecological
environment.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

Employment

Recruitment

It is the objective of the Group to provide employees with a
respectful and fair working environment. We have established
a sound system of human resources management covering the
various aspects such as recruitment and remuneration.

We hire employees based on consideration of experience,
qualifications and knowledge. An employment contract is required
to be signed by the employee prior to employment to ensure
job title, job duties, working hours, holidays, remuneration,
termination process, and benefits are agreed.
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Promotion, compensation, and dismissal

The Group motivates employees by promotion and salary
increment based on results of annual performance appraisal. We
will keep optimizing the remuneration and promotion mechanism
that enables the employees to share the fruitful achievement with
us. Dismissal is based on the Employment Ordinance, relevant
regulations in the PRC including, Labour Law of the People’s
Republic of China and Labour Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China and the requirements as stipulated in the
employment contract.

Working hours, rest periods and benefits

Five-day workweek arrangement is adopted to facilitate work-life
balance. In additional to all public holidays (including Sundays)
as specified in the General Holidays Ordinance, employees are
entitled to annual leaves, and other paid leaves such as maternity
leaves, paternity leave, compensation leave, wedding leave,
examination leave.

Employees enjoy medical benefits, provident fund scheme (if
applicable) and other benefits subject to the Group's policies.

Equal opportunity, diversity, and anti-discrimination

The Group strove to optimize the system of human resources
management to promote fairness and equality within the
workplace, human resources policy has been established to
ensure there is no discrimination on the grounds of age, gender,
marital status, family status, sexual orientation, disability, ethnic
group, nationality or religion. In accordance with our human
resource policy, the above factors are not considered in the
decision-making process of employment, remuneration, and
promotion.

The Group would ensure strict compliance with all relevant
regulatory standards, particularly the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance and Employees’ Compensation Ordinance and the
relevant regulations in the PRC including Labour Law of the
People’s Republic of China, Labour Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China, and Implementation Regulations for the Labour
Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China.

Details of remuneration policy of the Group are also set out
in the "Employees and Remuneration Policies” section in the
Management Discussion and Analysis on page 21.
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Health and safety

We believe that safe working does not only uphold the adherence
to people-oriented principles but also preserve our talents from
exposure to occupational diseases or injuries, no matter severe or
minor.

Safety guides in respect of reducing occupational hazards in the
office working environment were circulated to employee to advise
employees to address more attention to health and safety issues.
The Group adopts a five-day workweek and motivates our staff to
keep a pratical and reasonable work-life balance.

In the meantime, we support our contractors and business
partners placing high emphasis on health and safety issues, in
terms of occupational hazards.

There is a full compliance towards Occupational Safety and Health
Ordinance and relevant regulations that protected employees
from occupation hazards. The Group also complied with Labour
Law of the People’s Republic of China and Law of People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention & Control of Occupational
Diseases. The Group did not experience any lost days due to injury
or work-related fatalities during the reporting period.

Development and training

Apart from providing training materials for Directors as stated
in the Corporate Governance Report, in the face of the dynamic
business environment, employees are strongly recommended to
equip themselves with different branches of knowledge. Subsidies
were given to employees for participation in training courses
which aim at enhancing their job skills. The training covered
the management skill and leadership improvement, company’s
organization strategy and corporate culture, employee’s business
knowledge, orientation and other specific training.

In addition to the professional training courses, we do not neglect
the opportunities of providing our employees with learning
experience gained through work assignments so as to build up
their on-going job skills which benefit career development of our
staff.

HUANXI MEDIA GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

BERZE

HFIHEE - RE2TETENAUAARENRE - 7R
REHMWAT RZEBRANNDHBERBLG S

= o
=& °

HMHEAEERH’Z RIS LR THERZOR
XoE REREZHIBRELZZ2ME - A5H
RESEHMTEARNTY  SBRERERSERM
BIEM TFEAEFE -

R RAXHARBLERBEHSEERBER
ETEMRERRZZRHE

AEE2EET(BER 2 RRFIED) RIAMA
B AREERSEMELEAR  AEETYT
(R ARKTELHE) R(FEARANERE
REAR) » RIS MR AREAYAEERT
$BIMBTERALTEAHER -

R R

BiRtEEARE M RESRHBIERSI » &
MMRNEREEEBENEHBRETZESS
AR - RPASEREA TERMIFIIREZENEER
REED  BIREEBERERBEHHNE -
AR RS R e - BEEBHAE - BRI M
o FIRIF I -

S

\

<

BREXFIIRESN  BRATZEDT - REERM
BERE  NIESEBXE  BRMEENSEERH
RAE & -



73

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Labor standards

Child labor and forced labor are strictly prohibited within
the Group. In accordance with our Human Resources Policy,
background check and reference check are conducted by Human
Resources Department based on the information provided by
applicants before hiring, among other sources. Applicants who do
not meet the legal requirements would not be hired.

There is full compliance towards relevant national and local
regulations that prohibits child or forced labor. During the
reporting period, we did not receive any complaints or reporting
of child labor or forced labor.

OPERATING PRACTICES
Supply chain management

Business contract management is of fundamental concern to
us. We do encourage and expect our contractors and business
partners (i.e. film production companies, film directors and
producers, etc) to uphold a high standard of morality that is
similar to our own. To facilitate the cooperation, thorough
assessment based on a variety of criteria, including but not
limited to attitude towards environmental and social issues, is
conducted to evaluate the quality as well as its moral standards
of our business partners and contractors prior to stepping into
contracting stage.

Product responsibility

The Group engages in the media, entertainment businesses as
well as film investments. It recognizes that proper advertising
of services and products (e.g. films and internet drama series)
provided as well as a timely response is of great importance to
the long-term business development. The Group makes every
endeavor to comply with the relevant legislation.
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Being an investor in the media and entertainment field, the
Group has always placed utmost importance to the safeguard
and protection of intellectual property rights, encompassing
the management of the confidentiality and information sharing.
Clauses are included in the media investment agreements and
other related cooperation agreements to protect the Group's
interests in the films and/or internet drama series which it
invested in, such as the Group’s income rights, distribution rights
and copy rights in the productions.

Anti-Corruption

The Group is committed to preventing bribes, extortion, fraud
and money laundering. A whistle-blowing reporting channel has
been established for employees to report any suspected fraud,
malpractice, corruption, or any other unethical actions. We aim to
maintain high moral standards in the conduct of our business.

The Group has strictly adhered to relevant laws and regulations,
including the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance and the relevant
regulations in the PRC. During the year 2016, there was no legal
case or dispute in respect of bribery, extortion, fraud or money
laundering against our employees and the Group.

community investment

The Group facilitates opportunities for employees to be a part of
our communities. We encourage assistance in and participation
in conventions, conferences, exhibitions and events held by
business communities relevant to our business, with a particular
focus on organizations promoting the development of media
industries and community partnership.
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Deloitte.
=2)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HUANXI MEDIA GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Huanxi
Media Group Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 82 to
183, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Key audit matters

How our audit addressed
the key audit matters

Revenue recognition on film rights investment

We identified the revenue
recognition on film rights
investment as a key
audit matter due to the
involvement of management
judgement to determine
when the amount of revenue
can be measured reliably and
collectability of the entitled
proceeds is reasonably
assured following the films
are exhibited in movie
theatres over the period.

The accounting policy
for revenue recognition
is disclosed in note 3 to
the consolidated financial
statements. The Group
recognised revenue of
HK$5,073,000 from film rights
investment for the year
ended 31 December 2016,
which is disclosed in the
note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Our procedures in relation the
revenue recognition included:

e Obtaining an understanding of
the Group’s revenue business
process regarding film rights
investment;

Understanding and testing on
the entity’s key control over
recognition of income from
film rights investment;

Reviewing the terms set
out in the film investment
agreement; and assessing
whether the amount of income
recognised is in accordance
with the agreement as well as
the other relevant supporting
documents; and

Evaluating the basis adopted by
the management in determining
when the amount of revenue
can be measured reliably and
the collectability of the entitled
proceeds is reasonably assured.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matters

How our audit addressed
the key audit matters

Valuation of prepayment for film and TV rights

We identified the valuation
of prepayment for film and
TV rights as a key audit
matter due to management
significant judgements
involved on assessing the
recoverability.

As set out in note 18 to
the consolidated financial
statements, prepayment
for film and TV rights of
HK$220,814,000 was made
under the agreement
with film directors for the
production of proposed
internet drama series/films,
whereby such prepayment
would form part of the
contribution by the Group
for the production cost of
the proposed internet drama
series/films. Management
performs assessment in
the recoverability of the
prepayment based on
the contract terms on
agreements, estimated
budget of the proposed
production and the progress
on how the prepayment has
been used.

Our procedures in relation to the
valuation of prepayment for film
and TV rights included:

e Assessing the appropriateness
of management’s recognition
of prepayments by reference
to agreements and other
supporting documentation;

e Obtaining an understanding
on the Group’s key control
over the monitoring on
initiation of the prepayment
and progress of utilisation
of the prepayment, if any,
as well as assessment of
the recoverability of the
prepayment;

e Discussing with management
on the status of film and TV
rights investment plan with
film directors and assessing
the management’s basis in
evaluating the recoverability of
the prepayment;

e Assessing the progress of
utilisation of the prepayment;
and

e Obtaining written confirmation
from counter parties as to the
balance of prepayment at the
year end.

RgESTEE(E)

HREITEER
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
35 Sr B R R

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

HUANXI MEDIA GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
35 Sr B R R

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Lau Ngai Kee, Ricky.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 March 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
A 1H g2 M 3 fth &y W g K
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 B E—Z—A~F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2016 2015
—E—XE —E-RF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B &E BT T BT T
Revenue g 5 16,112 266,913
Cost of sales and service rendered SHE RIRMHAR TSR A (20,565) (219,322)
Gross (loss) profit £ (8) 7 (4,453) 47,591
Investment and other income A& REAA 7 5,215 6,888
Other gains and losses Hth Wz N &5 18 8 (10,985) (4,351)
Selling and distribution costs HE K $HRCR (12,112) (921
Administrative expenses TEFAX (110,938) (47,361)
Share-based payments AR B ERE 2 43k 27(b) (1,120,472) (81,000)
Impairment loss on goodwill 7 AR E - (4,395)
Finance costs B%E A 9 - 617)
Loss before tax FRELRIEE (1,253,745) (84,166)
Income tax expense FrigHi il 2 10 - (8,630)
Loss for the year RNEEEE 1M (1,253,745) (92,796)
Other comprehensive expense Htt2EEX
Item that will not be reclassified BT EEF S EE R
to profit or loss: ZIHEA -
Exchange differences arising on B EEBRE B2 WEHE
translation of functional currency EACERZRE
to presentation currency 6,872 -
Item that may be subsequently AEAESER T HE R
reclassified to profit or 10ss: ZIHEA -
Exchange differences arising on BMEGINEREEZIEN =5
translation of foreign operations (8,132) (6,820)
(1,260) (6,820)
Total comprehensive expense for the year AN %@k 4% (1,255,005) (99,616)
Loss for the year attributable to KRB ANELRFEEEIE
owners of the Company (1,253,745) (92,796)
Total comprehensive expense for RAREBABIEARFEE
the year attributable to owners of SHEMSLE
the Company (1,255,005) (99,616)
Loss per share TR EE
- Basic (HK dollar) —H A& (BE) 15 (0.51) (0.08)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

&7 B?J %ok Ol Rk &
AT 31 DECEMBER 2016 B’\ T—RFE+ZA=1+—H
2016 2015
—E—XRE —E—RF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BET T BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FIRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R NERE 16 4,942 1,826
Art work e 17 20,000 -
Trade and other receivables, J7E WK BR 3k N EL b JiE U FR0E
deposits and prepayments e MIEFER 21 5,344 -
Prepayment for film and TV rights B N EREIRETER 18 220,814 -
Available-for-sale investment Al ERE 20 208 -
251,308 1,826
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Film and TV rights B REREIMRE 22 250,958 13,925
Trade and other receivables, J7E Wi B 3 N H i iE UG 08
deposits and prepayments e MIEFR 21 147,459 257,356
Investments held for trading BIEEERE 23 52,768 55,580
Bank balances and cash IRITHEB LIRS 24 309,062 726,598
760,247 1,053,459
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Trade and other payables FE AT BR SR B2 b E < 508 25 175,544 55,243
Tax payable FESTHIE 9,100 9,926
184,644 65,169
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 575,603 988,290
NET ASSETS EEFE 826,911 990,116
CAPITAL AND RESERVES R R G#EE
Share capital RN 27 27,681 23,086
Reserves [ 799,230 967,030
TOTAL EQUITY EREEE 826,911 990,116
The consolidated financial statements on pages 82 to 183 were SHERBEEIBEZGANERRCR T —+EF=

approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27

March 2017 and are signed on its behalf by:

Dong Ping
¥
DIRECTOR
£

A _—i—tEIZ’?é%%@ﬁt}&&f%%%% W NAIE

ERRE=E

A/ﬂv
25E

Xiang Shaokun, Steven

BESREEARAR —T—
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DIRECTOR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

A% 47 HE o 5 B R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 #Z % —

RNFETZA=+—RHIFE

Retained
profits
Share Share Capital Contributed  Translation (accumulated
capital premium reserve surplus reserve losses) Total
REER
k& R EE BAGE EHES Eiffs (RiER) ag
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS 000
BETTL BETT BETT BETT BETT BT BT
(Note)
(RizE)
At 1 January 2015 R-E-1%-f-H 5171 151,481 2,099 149,220 5041 22498 336,110
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - - (92,796) (92,796)
Other comprehensive expense for the year AEEEMH2ER Y - - - - (6,820) - (6,820)
Total comprehensive expense for the year AFE2AEXLE - - - - (6,820) (92,79) 99,616)
Issue of shares upon subscription RRpREmEIRG (WE276)
0f shares (Note 27(a)) 17,015 663,552 - - - - 680,567
Issue of shares t0 a financial mEBEREIRG (Mi2@)
adviser (Note 27(a)) 300 80,700 - - - - 81,000
Share issie expenses RiA%AER - (7.945) - - - - (7,949)
At 31 December 2015 R-E-RF+-R=1-H 23,086 887,788 2,099 149,220 (1,779) (70.298) 990,116
Loss for the year rEEEE - - - - - (1,253,745  (1,253,745)
Other comprehensive expense for the year AEEEM2ERY - - - - (1,260) - (1,260)
Total comprehensive expense for the year A4 E2AEX B8 - - - - (1,260)  (1,253,745)  (1,255,005)
Issue of shares to film directors (Note 27(b)) FIE FEE% AR (K5527(0) 4595 1,087,205 - - - - 1,091,800
At 31 December 2016 R-B-RE+ZB=1-H 27,681 1,974,993 2,099 149,220 (3,039)  (1,324,043) 826,911

Note: The capital reserve arising from the group reorganisation represents the
difference between the nominal value of the share capital issued by the
Company in exchange for the aggregate nominal values of the share

capital of the subsidiaries.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HZaBlaena g

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 B ZE —E—RF+_-_A=1+—HIFE

2016 2015
—E-XEF —ET—hHF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
P RE BYETT BT T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KeEES
Loss before tax BRELATEE (1,253,745) (84,166)
Adjustments for: BMTFEIEFEE -
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERRETE
equipment 1,012 788
Dividend income & B WA (1,433) -
Impairment loss on goodwill R REEE - 4,395
Impairment loss on trade receivables FEM RSk 2 BB EE 30 1,551
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AEHERE 2 REEBE
investment 15,333 -
Share-based payments VARG {7 B EE R 2 3R 1,120,472 81,000

Reversal of impairment loss on trade BBl fE W BR B R BB 1R
receivables (268) (66)
Loss on acquisitions of assets through BB IRER T B A Bl Uk B

acquisitions of subsidiaries BEBE 31 - 1,109
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB QR 2z W 32 (797) -
Finance costs BisE A - 617

Unrealised loss of investments BIEEBEREZ ABREE
held for trading 4,236 1,691
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BEREE

plant and equipment o= 606 87
Interest income FEWA (929) (6,508)
Operating cash flows before EEEBBA L
movements in working capital Hene (115,483) 498
Increase in trade and other receivables & Y BR 3t Kz £ th E U FRIE 38 h (130,522) (294,255)
Increase (decrease) in film and TV rights &5 & &% Bl ML hn Ot 4) (176,719) 170,690
Increase in investments held for trading — #{EE HRE LN (1,424) (57,271)
Increase (decrease) in trade and FEAS BR SR B2 oMb FE S 5B
other payables #Zam Crd) 57,137 (72,832)
Cash used in operations KEEBFTERAR (367,011) (253,170)
Income taxes paid EFTER - (316)
Income taxes refunded BREFEM - 571
Interest paid EATHE - (1,255)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING RETHMEA RS FR
ACTIVITIES (367,011) (254,170)
BEEEEEARLATE —T—AFFR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HmealEeRax
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 BEZEZZE—~"F+ZA=+—HILEFE
2016 2015
—E—XEF —“E—RF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
PR BT BT T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BETE
Net cash inflow on disposals of HEWNBARZRERA TR
subsidiaries 32 1,442 -
Purchase of property, plant and EEME  BE KRB
equipment (4,970) (1,714)
Purchase of art work 8 B 21 m (20,000) -
Purchase of available-for-sale BEAHEERE
investment (15,541) -
Dividend income received AR B 1,433 -
Addition of loan receivable JE U & SR A (3,000) -
Proceed from loan receivable FEUW B SRFT 1B RIR 3,000 80,000
Interest received 2 WF B 929 6,543
Proceed from disposal of property, HEME - BEREE
plant and equipment Fr15 308 26 -
Net cash outflow on acquisitions of BB B A AUk E
assets through acquisitions of EEAZRESRTFE
subsidiaries 31 - (1,200)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM RETEBRM (ER) EE2
INVESTING ACTIVITIES HEEEE (36,681) 83,629
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEH
Proceeds on issue of shares upon A R 1D SR M 32T 2 FT 1S
subscription of shares A - 680,567
Repayment of loan payable EEERNER - (6,000)
Share issue expenses R EITEA - (7,945)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING BMETEFEECRESRE
ACTIVITIES - 666,622
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH H&RRESZEZ (D)
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS #hnHE 5 (403,692) 496,081
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FOZREeRRAEEE
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 726,598 231,917
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE /NEEZSFH o2&
CHANGES (13,844) (1,400)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRZHEERESEZHE
THE END OF THE YEAR,
represented by bank balances and cash {8IR1T4&E% MRS 309,062 726,598
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ol i

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 HiE —Z—RE+_A=+— ElJtiJ*

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the section headed “Corporate Information” in the annual
report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 40.

Change in functional currency

Items included in the accounts of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”).

In prior years, the Company adopted Hong Kong dollars
("HK$") as its functional currency. As the Group changed
its major business operation from provision of property
agency and related services in Hong Kong and the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") to film and TV rights in the PRC
during the year, the Company and a majority of its operating
subsidiaries conducted transactions mainly in Renminbi
("RMB"). As such, effective from 1 September 2016, the
Company has changed its functional currency from HK$ to
RMB. The consolidated financial statements of the Company
are presented in HK$ for the convenience of shareholders as
the Company is a listed company in Hong Kong.

The change in functional currency of the Company was
applied prospectively from date of change in accordance
with HKAS 21 “The effect of changes in foreign exchange
rate”. On the date of the change of functional currency, all
assets, liabilities, issued capital and other components of
equity and profit and loss were translated into RMB at the
exchange rate on that date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& BB A W R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 #Z—%F

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“"HKICPA") for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for acquisitions of

interests in joint operations

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure initiative

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Clarification of acceptable
methods of depreciation and
amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 16  Agriculture: Bearer plants

and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKFRS
10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28

Investment entities: Applying the
consolidation exception

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual improvements to HKFRSS

2012 - 2014 cycle

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group's financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 #Z =& — /X%

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSSs") (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments?

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with
customers and the related
amendments?

HKFRS 16 Leases®

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Clarification and measurement
of share-based payment
transactions?

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
instruments with HKFRS 4

Insurance contracts?

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS Sale or contribution of assets

10 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 7

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKFRSS

between an investor and its
associate or joint venture’

Disclosure initiative’

Recognition of deferred tax
assets for unrealised losses'

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2014 - 2016 cycle®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

or 1 January 2018, as appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& BB A W R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 HE —ZT—R"F+_-_A=+—BItFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities,
general hedge accounting and impairment requirements for

financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the

Group are:

all recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, and that have contractual terms that give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI").
All other debt investments and equity investments are
measured at their fair value at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9,
entities may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity
investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.

HUANXI MEDIA GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R o WA B R WY aE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 HZ —ZE— NF+_A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (Continueq)

. in relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, as
opposed to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS
39. The expected credit loss model requires an entity
to account for expected credit losses and changes in
those expected credit losses at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In
other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event
to have occurred before credit losses are recognised.

Based on the Group's financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 December 2016, application
of HKFRS 9 in the future may have a material impact
on the classification and measurement of the Group’s
financial assets. The Group's available-for-sale investments,
including those currently stated at cost less impairment,
will either be measured as fair value through profit or loss
or be designated as FVTOCI (subject to fulfillment of the
designation criteria). In addition, the expected credit loss
model may result in early provision of credit losses which
are not yet incurred in relation to the Group's financial
assets measured at amortised cost.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers”

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15
will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction
contracts” and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& BB A W R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 HE —ZT—R"F+_-_A=+—BItFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers” (Continued)

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically,
the standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

. Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

. Step 2 . Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

° Step 3. Determine the transaction price

° Step 4 . Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

° Step 5. Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity

satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures
are required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued clarifications to HKFRS 15 in
relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing
application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more disclosures,
however, the directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of HKFRS 15 will have a material impact
on the timing and amounts of revenue recognised in the
respective reporting periods.

HUANXI MEDIA GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 #Z =%

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede
HKAS 17 “Leases”, introduces a single lessee accounting
model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and
liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months,
unless the underlying asset is of low value. Specifically,
under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to recognise a right-
of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying
leased asset and a lease liability representing its obligation
to make lease payments. Accordingly, a lessee should
recognise depreciation of the right-of-use asset and interest
on the lease liability, and also classify cash repayments of
the lease liability into a principal portion and an interest
portion and present them in the consolidated statement
of cash flow. Also, the right-of-use asset and the lease
liability are initially measured on a present value basis. The
measurement includes non-cancellable lease payments
and also includes payments to be made in optional periods
if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option to
extend the lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate
the lease. The accounting treatment is significantly different
from the lessee accounting for leases that are classified as
operating leases under the predecessor standard, HKAS 17.
In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those
two types of leases differently.

As set out in note 33, total operating lease commitment of
the Group in respect of office premises, retail premises and
photocopying machines as at 31 December 2016 amounted
to HK$34,237,000. Upon the adoption of HKFRS 16, the
directors of the Company expect that the commitments in
future will be required to be recognised in the statement of
financial position as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
and it may have financial impact to the results of the Group.
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of the effect on the Group’s results until the Group
performs a detailed review.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& BB A W R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 HE —ZT—R"F+_-_A=+—BItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO").

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technigue. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based
payment”, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36
“Impairment of assets”.

HUANXI MEDIA GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 &&= =& /\¢+_H =+— ElJtiJ*

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date,

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee

if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& BB A W R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 HE —ZT—R"F+_-_A=+—BItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it has power over the investee when the
voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an
investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

. the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

° potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

° rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

° any additional facts and circumstances that indicate
that the Group has, or does not have, the current
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that
decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at
previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

HUANXI MEDIA GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 HZE —ZT—RF+_-_A=+—BILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable
to the owners of the Company. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKAS 39, when applicable, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint
venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 “Income taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee benefits”
respectively;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 HE —ZT—R"F+_-_A=+—BItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 at
the acquisition date; and

. assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current
assets held for sale and discontinued operations” are
measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any)
over the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition-date. If, after
re-assessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess
is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting
a business

When the Group acquires a group of assets that do not
constitute a business, the Group identifies and recognises
the individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed by allocating the purchase price first to the
financial assets and financial liabilities at the respective
fair values, the remaining balance of the purchase price
is then allocated to the other individual identifiable assets
and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the
date of purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise to
goodwill or bargain purchase gain.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 HZE —ZT—RF+_-_A=+—BILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is presented
separately in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups
of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently when
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or l0ss on disposal.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for services provided in the normal course of business, net
of discounts and sales related taxes.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Film rights investment income represents the Group’s share
of box office sales from films exhibited in movie theatres,
after the payment by the movie theatres of taxes and other
governmental charges, deductions by movie theatres and
the monies payable to National Film Industry Development
Special Fund. The Group’s share of profit is determined
in accordance with the profit sharing ration set out in the
respective film rights investment agreements.

Revenue from film rights investment is recognised when (i)
the films are exhibited in movie theatres over the period, (ii)
the amount of revenue can be measured reliably and (iii) the
collectability of the entitled proceeds is reasonably assured.

Revenue from the production and distribution of film rights
is recognised when (i) the production of films and internet
drama series is completed; (i) the Group’s entitlement to
such payments has been established which is upon the
delivery of the master copy or materials to the customers,
and; (iii) the collectability of proceeds is reasonably assured.

Agency commission and service income from property
agency is recognised in the accounting period in which
the services are rendered, which is generally the time
when a formal agreement among the transacted parties is
established.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as
a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on
the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& BB A W R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 #Z—%F

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the year, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve.

The functional currency of a group entity is changed only
if there is a change to the underlying transactions, events
and conditions relevant to the group entity. The group
entity applies the translation procedures applicable to the
new functional currency prospectively from the date of
the change. At the date of the change, the group entity
translates all items into the new functional currency using
the prevailing exchange rate at that date and the resulting
translated amounts for non-monetary items are treated as
their historical cost.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 HZE —ZT—RF+_-_A=+—BILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or 10ss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 HE —ZT—R"F+_-_A=+—BItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Payments made to state-managed retirement benefit
schemes are dealt with as payments to defined contribution
schemes where the Group’s obligations under the schemes
are equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution
retirement benefits scheme.

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present value of
the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made
by the Group in respect of services provided by employees
up to the reporting date. Any changes in the liabilities’
carrying amounts resulting from service cost, interest and
remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that another HKFRS requires or permits their
inclusion in the cost of an asset.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 HZE —ZT—RF+_-_A=+—BILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
parties other than employees are measured at the fair
value of the goods or services received. The fair values of
the goods or services received are recognised as expenses
unless the goods or services qualify for recognition as
assets.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on the taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax” as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary difference to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises
from the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets
(Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable
that the Group will be required to settle that obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the
time value of money is material).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Art work

Art work is shown at historical cost less any identified
impairment loss.

Film and TV rights

(a)

(b)

(c)

Film and TV rights

Film and TV rights represent films, television
programmes and television drama series produced
by the Group or acquired by the Group. Film and TV
rights are stated at cost less any identified impairment
loss. Costs of film and TV rights comprise fees paid
and payable under agreements, direct costs/expenses
incurred during the production of films and Tvs, for
the reproduction and/or distribution of films and TVs.
The costs of film and TV rights are recognised as an
expense in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income based on the
proportion of actual income earned from a film and TV
during the year to the total estimated income from the
distribution and/or broadcasting of film and TV rights
for that film and TVv.

Film and TV under production

Costs of film and TV under production include all direct
costs associated with the production of films and Tvs
are transferred to film and TV rights upon completion.

Impairment

At the end of each reporting period, both internal and
external market information are considered to assess
whether there is any indication that assets included in
film and TV rights (including film and TV in production)
are impaired. If any such indication exists, the carrying
amount of such assets is assessed and where relevant,
an impairment loss is recognised to reduce the asset
to its recoverable amount. Such impairment losses are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

3.

TEEHBE(E)

£ 9i fm

BT 53 1R S pAS R (] R & BRI R (B S
BARK -

== =5y

BN ERBMRE

(@)

(b)

(©

EXLEGBIREE AN RERERWE
ZEY BREOBLERE - -EXRE
15 B Hr 128 75 12 PR AR A AR A & 28 IR (E
B - EFNERBIREZKAER
EREHELEZ RERBRIEBES
BWERN/RBETEYRERBIFELEZ
BEAAR/ A RENZER -
EYNERBREZRARBEY RE
BENFAMSERKRAGZEZRE
BB 2 BT RSB TS fh 5T 48
WAZLS Rt BRakEtEmEk

RIFFZEZRERE

SUFR 2B RNERBNKABE S &
EXNERBRIEEBOMBEEK
Ao REREEREEY NERBINRE

b24/]

REEBEBMR - LB2E R RSN
MI5ER  FHEER NERBARES H
BE(BREETFZEZLERE) RS
TFHEEADRERR - 17 £ AR E B
R AMEABEEEZREME  ARE
EEBR T HERBEEBRAGEERR
EEAINEERE - EAREBESRE
EERLEMEERERPER -

BESREBARLT —TFFM



110

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& BB A W R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 HE —ZT—R"F+_-_A=+—BItFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Film rights investments

Film rights investments represent films invested by the Group.

Film rights investments are stated at cost less any identified
impairment loss. The costs of film rights are amortised as
an expense in cost of sales based on the proportion of
actual income earned from a film during the year to the total
estimated income from the exhibition of the film attributable
to the Group, according to the profit sharing ratio specified
in the film rights investment agreements.

The Group reviews and revises estimates of total projected
revenue of film rights at the end of each reporting period. If
estimates are revised, the Group adjusts the amount of total
projected revenue (denominator) from the period when such
changes in estimates take place and re calculate the ratio
for amortisation of film rights. The effect from changes in
estimates is recognised on a prospective basis.

Internet broadcasting rights

Internet broadcasting rights represent films and television
drama series internet broadcasting rights invested by the
Group. Internet broadcasting rights are stated at cost less
any identified impairment loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

HUANXI MEDIA GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

3.

TEEHBE(E)

BYIRRA
BEYMERARKEHAKRERAEZEY °

BRI B A AR T ) 7] & 3R R B &
B - REBEEZHRIERE HZE A ZME
DRLED - ERRERAIZRFRNEZRE
ERBRAERBRASENEZ MR G
WAL DI SE IR SHE R AR -

AEBRZRE B RIe REFTHEZRE
Rt B W R A - MIERT (A REEK
FHEFTEMERERG ARk (D) 2
BOUBHAEETRE B X - EX
A EEZEBEIFBPELRER

s TR AR

BRERBEAEERENEY NEREMS
AR TR BRBE o 4845 HR R AR IR AR R A B A
BB ER B ER -

E@WMIA

MBEEMIBRABIN —HEEERKS
TRHEHBXZ - TREREMBRAREK
R -

MBEERMBABDVSHAFEFE -
W ETHBEE MM AE (BAFER
ANBm 2 B EERVBRERIN) BEES
ZRPRARNFEREFFARAMBHEE
SV HEREZIRXIFECAGEERE) MK -
WERAFEFABGS M BEEXTHA
BEEERLHZXZRANBRIBENER



111

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ol i

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 &&= =& /\¢+_H =+— ElJtiJ*

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets comprise of investments held
for trading, available-for-sale investment and loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time
of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or l0ss (“FVTPL")

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
asset is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or l0ss (“FVTPL")
(Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets and is included in the other losses line item. Fair
value is determined in the manner described in note 30(c).

Available-for-sale ("AFS”) investment

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a)
loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or (c)
financial assets at FVTPL.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale (“AFS”) investment (Continued)

Equity securities held by the Group that are classified as
AFS financial assets and are traded in an active market are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in the carrying amount of AFS monetary financial
assets relating to interest income calculated using the
effective interest method, are recognised in profit or loss.
Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised in profit
or loss when the Group's right to receive the dividends is
established. Other changes in the carrying amount of AFS
financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed of
or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation
reserve is reclassified to profit or 10ss.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to
and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
investments are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each reporting period.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade and other receivables and
bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there
is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period of
30 to 90 days, as well as observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets except for
trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in
the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment losses was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investment
revaluation reserve.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables) are

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’'s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or 10ss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The followings are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Revenue recognition on film rights investment

The directors of the Company considered whether it was
appropriate to recognise the revenue from the film rights
investment of HK$5,073,000 in the current year, which is in
line with the Group's general policy of recognising revenue
from film rights investment when (i) the films are exhibited
in movie theatres over the period, (i) the amount of revenue
can be measured reliably and (iii) the collectability of the
entitled proceeds is reasonably assured.

In making the judgment, the directors of the Company
considered the detailed criteria for the recognition of
revenue from film and TV rights set out in HKAS 18 and, in
particular, whether the Group had received the revenue
breakdown from the vendor, the directors of the Company
are satisfied that the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably and collectability of the entitled proceeds is
reasonably assured following the films are exhibited in movie
theatres over the period.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Estimated impairment of prepayment on film and TV
rights

At the end of the reporting period, the management of the
Group assesses the impairment on prepayment on film and
TV rights with reference to its utilisation of prepayment.
The assessment would be made on a film-by-film basis.
During the year ended, the Group is still negotiating with film
directors for the film and TV rights investment plan, there is
no any acceptance for any investment in film and internet
drama production.

Based on the management assessment’s on the
recoverability of prepayment of film and TV rights, the
directors of the Company determined that no impairment
provision to be charged to prepayment of film and TV rights
during the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: nil).

Estimated impairment of film and TV rights

At the end of the reporting period, the management of the
Group assesses the impairment on film and TV rights with
reference to its recoverable amount. The assessment was
made on a film-by-film basis. The recoverable amount of
the film and TV rights was determined based on the present
value of the expected future revenue generated from the
film less future cost of sales and service.

If the recoverable amount is lower than the carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the film and TV rights will
be written down to its recoverable amount. The Group's
estimation of impairment provision of film rights reflects the
management’s best estimate of future cash flows expected
to be generated from film and TV rights.

Based on the management assessment’s on the
recoverability of film and TV rights, the directors of the
Company determined that no impairment provision to be
charged to cost of sales and services rendered during the
year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: nil).
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Bl & 88O IR B B R E £ 2 FRHIR R et B R
KHERRBERAZREFTE -

A EeRERKEE IEXRERE
REZEHESBREETKEESHE A&
EHEXRERERB AT RREEE
BEXLEGBRBEENELEZRAKRERE
Z B fEMRE -

RIFEEEEMEZ NEABREAIKEEZ
Al ARBEFRR RBE-_FT—RF
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BESREBARLT —TFFM



120

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& BB A W R
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Cost of film rights investments recognised as an expense

The costs of film rights are recognised as expenses based
on the proportion of actual income earned from a film right
during the year to the total estimated income from the
exhibition of the film attributable to the Group, according to
the profit sharing ratio specified in the film rights investment
agreements. The Group is required to estimate the projected
revenue of the film which requires the use of judgement
and assumptions with reference to the prevailing and
future market conditions. Changes in these estimate and
assumptions could have a material effect on the cost of film
rights to be recognised as expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the cost of film
rights investments recognised as an expense included in
cost of sales and services rendered is HK$13,723,000 (2015:
HK$184,615,000).

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the
Group takes into consideration the estimation of future
cash flows. The amount of the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’'s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e. the effective interest rate is computed at initial
recognition, where applicable). Where the actual future cash
flows are less than expected, or being revised downward
due to changes in facts and circumstances, a material
impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2016, the
carrying amount of trade receivables was HK$6,199,000
(net of allowance for doubtful debts of HK$2,278,000) (2015:
carrying amount of HK$238,090,000, net of allowance for
doubtful debts of HK$7,557,000).
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RAXHEZRERSTERBEATE -
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— R F : B%184,615,0007T) °
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REVENUE

An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as follows:

i =

FR - AEBMNREHTOT

2016 2015

—EB-REF —E-hF

HK$’ 000 HK$" 000

BETT BT

Film rights investment income net of tax BB E WA (FOBRFTE) 5,073 217,701
Property agency commission and service REARFENYERERE

income in Hong Kong and the PRC KRR 7 WA 11,039 49,212

16,112 266,913

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
entered into agreements with R5M A AL EER
BT (“EEER A"), a company in which Mr. Ning Ho
(“Mr. Ning"), a non-executive director of the Company,
has beneficial interest, to invest in income right of a
film at a consideration of RMB11,800,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$13,722,000) (note 37(a)), whereby
the Group can share 20% of net income of box office
sales income from exhibition in movie theatres less
taxes and other governmental charges, deduction by
movie theatres, payment for industrial development
fund as well as other payment in relation to production
and distribution of the film, royalty income on copyright
on the internet, royalty income on copyright on game
of using the content and income from placement
marketing. During the year ended 31 December 2016,
the film was released and the entire firm and TV rights
was recognised as cost of sales.

The amount of RMB5,414,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$6,296,000) (note 37(a)) represented
the share of such net income of box office sales
income from exhibition in movie theatres including tax,
royalty income on copyright on the internet, royalty
income on copyright on game of using the content,
income from placement marketing, and the respective
film rights investment cost was recognised as cost of
sales accordingly.

RIEB-—RAFE+-RA=+—HILFE"
AEBEEMEELELE(TERLE] AR
AIFATES) EREANRERAR
BXLBREERRR (TREWRA DA
Mg o AR E AR 11,800,0007T (48
R 478 #513,722,0007T) (Ff 5537(a))
RE-BEZ WS Bt AEEA
HEZRMRAMEREHERA N
BREREMERFRE EXEIDE
TEERESNEBEREEZRERE
TTHENEMER  BEBEMRESTE
WA~ BEERATRERFERA
AT 5 #E WAL PO EKRAF
HH20%  REBE-_FT—XR"F+_-HA
=t—HLEHFE REXCET 82
BEZNERFRED R REEKRE

AR ®5,414,0007T (HE R & B
6,296,0007T) (Bt 5E37(a)) A0 fh £t &
EXRRBAEEEZHERAFHE
(PIEHE) - GBARESTFERA -
FEEFERARRERFTBRA - BAR
miGHERERA - AR E R RERE K
AEHEIFER AEERA -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 HE —ZT—R"F+_-_A=+—BItFE

5.

REVENUE (Continued)

(b)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
entered into agreements with Beijing Joy Leader
Culture Communication Co. Ltd. (Jt RE L8 {L&F
BARRAR) ("dERELE"), a company in which Mr.
Xu zZheng (“Mr. Xu"), a non-executive director of the
Company, has beneficial interest, to acquire film rights
at a consideration of RMB150,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$184,615,000) (note 37(a)), whereby
the Group can share 47.5% box office sales income
from exhibition in movie theatres less taxes and
other governmental charges, deduction by movie
theatres, payment for industrial development fund as
well as other payment in relation to production and
distribution of the film.

The amount of RMB188,173,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$231,597,000) (note 37(a))
represented the share of such net box office sales
income from exhibition in movie theatres including
tax, and the respective film rights investment cost was
recognised as cost of sales accordingly.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by operating and reportable segments, based
on information provided to the chief operating decision
maker (“CODM") representing the executive directors of
the Company, for the purpose of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance on types of services
provided and goods sold. This is also the basis upon which
the Group is arranged and organised.
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RRARFATES) EnEANILIRE
LENLEEERAR ([IERELE])
ISR AR E A R 150,000,000
JC (FRE 7 497 #184,615,0007T ) (M 3E
37()) WHEB b i - Bk - NEE A
REZRMEMAEREHE WA (K0
BERIERHEMBTRE  EXRNE -
TEBRRESNBUNREEFRERS
THRBEMEMERE) R HE47.5% °

A R #188,173,0007T (15 E i 4978 %
231,597,0007T) (F#¥37(a)) A5 16 Lt
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEER (&)
The Group's operations are currently organised into three REBEZEBERSA=EKERAZ2HD
operating and reportable segments as follows: B FBEIT
Film rights investment - Film rights investment and B MRERE - BEEREREREY
investment in film and TV & ERBIRIERE
rights
Property agency in Hong -  Provision of property BEAERFEZ - REBRTEREED
Kong and the PRC agency and related mERE FRIERAERE
services in Hong Kong
and the PRC
Securities trading and - Securities trading and BHEERIKE — BHBEERRERE
investments investments
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and REBRKERAZEHRIHE S 2 W R E
results by operating and reportable segments: BEATwT :
Property agency Securities
Film rights in Hong Kong trading and
investment and the PRC investments consolidated
EY EBRVEZ RHEE
RERE NERE kiE G

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
“E-RF “FT-0F ZB-AF “T-nfF CR-RF —T-1F ZE-RF “F-nf
HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
BRI B¥TT  E®TR  EETn BRI BT BETn  EETx

Segment revenue P Elas
- External sales net —NBEHE

of tax (MBHE) 5073 217701 11,039 49212 - - 16112 266913
Segment (loss) profit A3 (B8) &7 (1,191,294) 33170 (1,193) 9,690 (2,816) (1,832) (1,195,303) 21,648

Unallocated corporate kA E 2 AEUWA

income 9,211 4513
Unallocated corporate RAE 2 0ERT

expenses (67,653)  (28,710)
Share-based payments  EHEERMRG B

toafinancial adviser ~ EBZHH - (81,000)
Finance costs FBER - (617)
Loss before tax BEAER (1,253,745)  (84,166)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& BB A W R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 #Z—%F

6.

—RFETZA=+—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. 7HEHR (&)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and REBRKERUZEHRSHE S 2 W R E

results by operating and reportable segments: (Continued) BOWT : ()

Property agency Securities
Film rights in Hong Kong trading and
investment and the PRC investments Consolidated
EY EERTERZ RHEE
RERE NERE kEE Ga
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
ZE-XE -“I-RE ZE-XE -“I-RE ZE-XE -I-RE ZE-XE -—I-1fF
HK$' 000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$' 000
BETT AETr BMTIx AETr A%Tn AT B%Tn B%Tx
Other information Higs
(included in measure (3t A% (F#)
of segment (loss) =)
profit)
Loss on change infair ~ HEEERE 2 AFE
value of investments ~ 2F5518
held for trading - - - - 4,236 1,691 4,236 1,691
Investment and other & REMUA
income 2,674 2,237 312 127 1,433 " 4,419 2,375
Depreciation of property, % - BERREZNE
plant and equipment 359 4 89 605 - - 448 609
Loss on disposal of WENE  BERNE
property, plant and pd !
equipment - - 23 84 - - 23 84
Impairment loss on HEERE RESS
available-for-sale
investment 15,333 - - - - - 15,333 -
Impairment loss on ERER RERR
trade receivables - - 30 1,551 - - 30 1,551
Impairment loss on BELRERS
goodwill - - - 4,395 - - - 4,395
Share-based payments ~ MEEE R D AER
to film directors AR 1,120,472 - - - - - 1,120,472 -
All of the segment revenue net of tax on film rights FREZIRERE A D (OB
investment above is from a related party (note 37(a)). All of IE) BHRE—BEEALT (HE370) o £t

the segment revenue on property agency reported above are
from external customers.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 &&= =& /\¢+_H =+— ElJtiJ*

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note
3. Segment (loss) profit represents the (loss) profit from
each segment without allocation of unallocated corporate
income (which mainly includes loan interest income, bank
interest income, gain on disposal of subsidiaries, exchange
gain and sundry income), unallocated corporate expenses
(which mainly include administrative expenses), share-based
payments to a financial adviser and finance costs. This is the
measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and
liabilities by operating and reportable segments:

TEHER (&)

RED BT SRt R BN 3 AL E
SETBEMAR - D (BR) BB E
W (B 1R) &N - B |HRARD AL ERA
(FEBREEFRMBYA - BITAMEWA - H
EMBARZ W - R WEREERA) -
APECEFAZ(EEBREITRAR) ~ R
BEBABRNDRERZARRYBER - 1t
TR ERDERFEREMREEZLER
REEFBNEER -

Property agency Securities
Film rights in Hong Kong trading and
investment and the PRC investments Consolidated
E¥ EERTER REEE
RERE NERE kiE &

2016 2015 2016
“R-XE CF-IF SB-XF
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000
BT BETL  AMTR

2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

“T-n% ZB-RE ZT-1F ZB-Rf _T-1F

HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
AETT  BRTR  A%TT  RRTR  ERTR

ASSETS BE
Segment assets DHEE 734,966 265839 8,015
Unallocated assets ANEBE - - -

21,287 52,768 5,418 795,749 343,544
- - - 215,806 711,741

Cconsolidated GREESE
total assets

LIABILITIES BE
Segment liabilities AEHEE 165,624 38,574 9,492
Unallocated liabilites A2 EE(E - - -

1,011,555 1,055,285

19,855 1,628 2,582 176,744 61,011
- - - 7,900 4,158

Consolidated total GREREEE
liabilities

184,644 65,169
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& BB A W R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 #Z—%F

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

- all assets are allocated to operating and reportable
segments other than certain property, plant and
equipment, art work, certain other receivables and
certain bank balances and cash; and

- all liabilities are allocated to operating and reportable
segments other than certain other payables and certain

tax payable.

Entity-wide disclosures

Geographical information

The Group’s current operations are mainly located in the

PRC and Hong Kong.

Information about the Group’s revenue net of tax is
presented based on the location of the operations.
Information about the Group’s non-current assets (excluding
financial instruments) by geographical location of the assets

are detailed below:

—RFETZA=+—HIFE

\

DR E R (E)
THMEEREE(E)

REEDBERAREDHBEANEER

- ﬁﬁ*ﬂ_ﬁﬁ" LEEERA] 2RO ED
ETWE BELSEE BliH BT
HEMERFERE TIRITEREE SR
oh s R
- FEBEIRELERTZ@mMHE -
AT HAEMNFIERE TEMATIERRIN
ERSEARE
B

AEERBNEBTIBUNTEALEES -

AEE 2z W (MRRIE) ERREFIIZE
P - WEEMAEMEI D 2 AKHEIERBEE
(TEERER TR ERFBOT

Revenue Non-current assets
Wz FRBEE
2016 2015 2016 2015
—E—RF —hFE ZEB-RF —hF
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
BET T BT T BT T BT T
Hong Kong BA 10,288 48,480 125,689 1,682
PRC i 5,824 218,315 125,411 144
Others EAh - 118 - -
16,112 266,913 251,100 1,826
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 ai_ = /\¢+_H =+— ElJtEJ*

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DWEHR (&)
Information about major customers FEEXEFER
For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, revenue BE_Z—AR"ENTE—RHF+A=1+—

BIEFE - EME)?’E%iE%}EﬂZK%@%H&Zm
(HIBHIE) W EBE10% 2 WA T

from customers of the corresponding years contributing
over 10% of the total revenue net of tax of the Group are as

follows:
2016 2015
—E-REF —T-hF
HK$’' 000 HK$' 000
BT T BT T
Customer A EEA 5,756 -3
Customer B2 BFB? 5,073 -3
Customer C? EPC? -3 217,701
! Revenue from property agency in Hong Kong. 1 EEMERBUES -
2 Revenue from film rights investment in the PRC. 2 R B SRR A A o

3 The corresponding customer did not contribute over 10% of the 3
total revenue of the Group.

MR PR BRI ERE AR E RS2 10% ©

INVESTMENT AND OTHER INCOME 7. BERHEMUYA
2016 2015
—E-XE —HF
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
BT T BT T
Interest on bank deposits HRITIFRFE 907 2,335
Interest on loan receivable R E KA B 22 4,173
Dividend income fi% 8. A 1,433 -
Government grant (note 36) BT 7 B (BT 5E 36) 2,245 -
sundry income EAET PN 608 380
5,215 6,888

BEEEEEARLATE —T—AFFR
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 HE —ZT—R"F+_-_A=+—BItFE

8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

8. HiblimKREHE

10.

2016 2015
—E—RF —ZE—RF
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
BETRT BT T
Loss on change in fair value of investments #H{EEERE 2 A FEEBEE
held for trading (4,236) (1,691)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 32) HEMH B ARz M (MEE32) 797 -
Impairment loss on trade receivables JEWBR R 2 BB BB (30) (1,551)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale ARPERE 2 REBE
investment (15,333) -
Exchange gain b H s 7.817 -
Loss on acquisitions of assets through EBRWENBARMKBEE
acquisitions of subsidiaries (note 31) 2B (MEE31) - (1,109)
(10,985) (4,351)
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. MEEH
2016 2015
—E—RF —ZET—RF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BETT BT T
Interest expense on loan payable FERERFEREZ - 617
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FREHBAX
2016 2015
—E—XE —E—hF
HK$' 000 HK$" 000
BET T BT T
The tax charge comprises: MIERZBE -
Current Tax AREAFR IR
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BBNER - 371
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") — B EMSH
(TEEEMBE) - 8,282
- 8,653
Overprovision in prior year T FEEREEE
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BEFEHR - (23)
- 8,630
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 HZE —ZT—RF+_-_A=+—BILFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 10. FRBHiBEX (&)
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated M E 4 2 2 BB S B IR ik 51 e SR B% A
assessable profit for both years. LATR R 16.5%:1 & -
Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT BIEFRSEMSHE([EEMERE]D R
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the TEMEGHEBRKS BT N\F—A
tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 —B#& PEHER R ZHREE25% -
onwards.
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to REEZFGHRATEEGEEEaREMER
the loss before tax per the consolidated statement of profit WamE BB ABEHEREAT

or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

2016 2015
—E—XE —E—RF
HKS$’' 000 HK$" 000
BT T BT T
Loss before tax B 750 Al B 18 (1,253,745) (84,166)
Tax at the applicable rate of 25% IRERAT R 25% 8 2 Fi1E
(2015: 25%) (Note) (ZZ—RF : 25%) (KisE) (313,436) (21,041)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for TN RENRAY BT E
tax purpose 190,568 23,313
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BARBBRAZHEZE
purpose (7,343) (900)
Tax effect of temporary difference not RERGEREB 2 HBTE
recognised (183) (115)
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised RERBBEBE BB E 26,759 5,066
Overprovision in prior year FFEBEEE - (23)
Utilisation of tax loss previously not FRERARERHIEEE
recognised - (41)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries ~ EH A AEERREE 2 B
operating in other jurisdictions ANCIRN GRSl -7 103,635 2,371
Income tax expense for the year REFZEHA - 8,630
Note: The domestic income tax rate is changed to 25% as the Group's W& - ARAEBMEFE 2 EBRBIHURTE -
operations are substantially based in the PRC for both years. HUZS b BT 15 50 B 26 R 25% ©
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 HZ —ZE— NF+_A=+—HILFE

11. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 1. xXFEEBHE
2016 2015
—E—XE —hF
HKS$’' 000 HK$" 000
BETRT BT T
Loss for the year has been arrived at after  ZNEEBHELNE (GTA)
charging (crediting): T7&I18
Directors’ remuneration, including EEWE (BIFRNENFEI M0
retirement benefits scheme (PfFEE12)
contributions (note 12) 18,054 6,546
Other staff costs Htp B T A 23,501 15,865
Other staff’s retirement benefits scheme Hith 8 T 2 RIREF SR
contributions 1,941 539
Total staff costs 8 TR ALEER 43,496 22,950
Auditor’s remuneration ZEENEN & 1,726 1,280
Depreciation of property, plant and Y BEREEZITE
equipment 1,012 788
Reversal of impairment loss on trade BB E W IR R 2R EEE
receivables (268) (66)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BEREHZEE
equipment 606 87
Operating lease payments for office MAEWE B REEHEE
premises, shops and photocopying MEFA
machines 13,629 5,236
Commission expense on property agency  WEREBHEE ZAX 6,843 34,645
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 HZE —ZT—RF+_-_A=+—BILFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND EXECUTIVE'S 12. ESERTHAEME
EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ and executive’'s emoluments for the vyear, BIEEA ETRANRRAREFIIFEE 2 AFE
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and CO, EERITHRABZME0OT :

are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE-_ZFE—XRE+=-A=+—RHL
FE
Salaries Retirement
and Performance benefits
other related scheme Total
henefits bonus contributions  emoluments
Fees BER  BERBEN BHER 3
ik Rt 2R HE LS L]

HKS$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
AR AR AR AR ERTR

(Note )

GET)
Executive Directors (Note b) BTEE (WD)
Mr. Dong Ping ("Mr. Dong") ETRE(EEE]) 262 1,452 2,510 - 4,224
Mr. Xiang Shaokun, Steven (“Mr. Xiang") BRELE([BEE]) - 9,664 2,510 18 12,192
Sub-total NGt 262 11,116 5,020 18 16,416
Non-Executive Directors (Note ¢) FATESE (o)
Mr. Ning =k 243 - - - 243
Mr. So Chak Kwong (Note h) BEg i (Mih) 180 - - - 180
Mr. Gao Zhikai BEdiE 243 - - - 243
Mr. Xu it 243 - - - 243
Sub-total it 909 - - - 909
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUHTES

(Note d) (Fsxd)

Mr. Li Xiaolong FERE 243 - - - 243
Mr. Su Tuong Sing, David RERRE 243 - - - 243
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen BERTE 243 - - - 243
Sub-total g 729 - - - 729
Total @zt 1,900 1,116 5,020 18 18,054

BEGRKEBEARAT —TR"FFH



132

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 HE —ZT—R"F+_-_A=+—BItFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND EXECUTIVE'S 12.BEERITHRAEMNE (&)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE-_ZEZ—HEF+-A=+—HL

HUANXI MEDIA GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

FE

Salaries Retirement
and  Performance benefits
other related scheme Total
henefits bonus  contributions  emoluments
Fees Hek  RERBENW RIEER e
we AftriEF LI HE 5 s
HKS' 000 HK$'000 HKS' 000 HKS' 000 HK$' 000
BB BB BB BETR BB
(Note a)
(Wita)
Executive Directors (Note b) BrES ()
Mr. Dong (Note ) ERnk (Mg 86 176 1,000 - 1,562
Mr. Xiang (Note g) Bk (g - 2791 1,000 b 3797
Mr. Lei Hong Wai (Note €) iEERE(Mie) - 101 - 5 106
Mr. Ng Kai Man (Note f) RERAE (M) - 108 - 1 112
Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan (Note €) REBEE(Hie) - 101 - 5 106
Sub-total NG 86 3,577 2,000 20 5,683
Non-Executive Directors (Note ) FHTES(Mic)
Mr. Ning (Note g) Bfk(Hitg) 79 - - - 79
Mr. So Chak Kwong (Note @) HEREE(WHY 79 - - - 79
Mr. Gao Zhikai (Note @ BEAEE (M) 79 - - - 79
Mr. Xu (Note g BEE (Mg 79 - - - 79
Sub-total N 316 - - - 316
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIFYTES
(Note ) (Frsxd)
Mr. Li Xiaolong (Note @) ZNEREE (MsEg) 79 - - - 79
Mr. Su Tuong Sing, David (Note g) REELE (Mg 79 - - - 79
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen BEREE 180 - - - 180
Ms. Chio Chong Meng (Note ) HirsE L (fe) 101 - - - 101
Mr. Man Kong Yui (Note f) SRS 7 5 (I f) 108 - - - 108
Sub-total It 547 - - - 547
Total @it 949 3,577 2,000 20 6,546
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND EXECUTIVE'S

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

(a) The performance related bonus is determined by reference to
individual performance of the directors and approved by the
Remuneration Committee.

(b) The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group.

(c) The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for
their services as directors of the Company or its subsidiaries.

(d)  The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were for their services as directors of the Company.

(e) Mr. Lei Hong Wai, Mr. Cheung Kwok Fan and Ms. Chio Chong Meng
have resigned as directors of the Company on 2 September 2015.

(f) Mr. Ng Kai Man and Mr. Man Kong Yui have resigned as directors
of the Company on 18 September 2015.

(g Mr. Dong, Mr. Xiang, Mr. Ning, Mr. So Chak Kwong, Mr. Gao Zhikai,
Mr. Xu, Mr. Li Xiaolong and Mr. Su Tuong Sing, David have been
appointed as directors of the Company on 2 September 2015.

(h)  Mr. So Chak Kwong has resigned as a director of the Company on
30 September 2016.

Mr. Dong was appointed as the Chairman of the Company on
15 January 2016 and an executive director on 2 September
2015. Mr. Xiang was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer
("CEQ") of the Company on 18 September 2015 and an
executive director on 2 September 2015 and his emoluments
disclosed above included those services rendered by him as
CEO.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, other benefits
included housing allowance and salary tax paid by the
Group. For both 2016 and 2015, no emoluments were paid
by the Group to any of the directors as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office. No directors waived any emoluments for both 2016
and 2015.

12. EBERITBRAEME (&)

() WMERBPEMZIEADREBEESEARBREE
BEFmMEZESutE -

) EEXARZATEZFSIHRNRERERAE
RERAKEEGT B REEORT

(©) J:i%ﬁfrmZiF%ﬂﬁ%% e YN IREEER
RESEWBARERAIRAERE -

d) EERAMRZBAIFPNTESHESHHERNEEE
EARRBEEER AR -

() ZFHREL REDELERBHRALEIER
Z-RAFNAHBEARFES -

H REEREERXBIHELEN _F-0LFNA
TNAEHBERARRESE -

(@ ERAE REL BRL #HENELE ST
EfReE S FOEEERGERELEER
TE-RFNAHEZEREALNAES -

(h  BHEARLEER -_Z-—RFNALA=ZTHBEAR
ARESE-

ERAER T RF-ATRAEZERN
RAEFE TR -_ZT-—HAFAA-_RAEERE
RATEF BARER-_ZT-RAFAATAN
AEZERARRITHRAS ([TTHRAE]) -
YARZZE-—RAFNA_BEZERATE
T MEXAEEZHSEBEREEITR
REFTIRUIRE MBS 2 S -

BE_Z-R"F+-_A=t—-HLFE H

MMﬂ@ﬁE$EI§HZ%E$%& %
Beoe —E—RER_Z-HAFMEAFEAN

AEEBEAEFNEENEAME  ER
MAREEHMAKREE R 2 RE A SRE
BwE —T-A"ER-_FT-LFMEFE
AMEBEEERETAWE -

BESREBARLT —TFFM
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13. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 13.

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, two (2015: two) were directors of the Company,
whose emoluments are included in note 12 above. The
emoluments of the remaining three (2015: three) individuals
were as follows:

BEMS

AEERAGESHEALEEME(ZF—1
FMB)ARAESR P FBHN LEX
M2 E=2(ZF—0%F : =&)AL
ZEE T

2016 2015

—E—XRF —E—RF

HK$' 000 HK$' 000

BT T BT T

Salaries and other benefits FehHMmEH 6,348 4,303
Retirement benefits scheme contributions iR #R4& Fl5+ 21 £ 7 21 41
6,369 4,344

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

BEMEBR TIIEHE :

Number of employees

EEAR
2016 2015
—E-AF e
Nil to HK$1,000,000 ZE%% 1,000,000 7T - 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 781,000,001 L=
71,500,000 7T - 1
HK$1,500,001 or above 7% 1,500,001 7Lk A L 3 1
3 3
14. DIVIDENDS 14. K2

No dividends were paid, declared or proposed for the years
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, nor has any dividend
been proposed since the end of both reporting periods.

HUANXI MEDIA GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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15. LOSS PER SHARE 15. 8RB
The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to the RARHEABGEERAERBEIRENAT
owners of the Company is based on the following data: IR E
2016 2015
—E—XE —E—RF
HKS$’' 000 HK$" 000
BET T BT T

Loss for the year attributable to owners AU ESREAREIE 2 ARF

of the Company for the purpose of basic HEAEBLAFEEE
loss per share (1,253,745) (92,796)
Number of ordinary shares
ZEREE
2016 2015
—E-RE —ZT—0fF
000 000
TR F &
Weighted average number of ordinary AU ESRAREIE
shares for the purpose of basic loss B IR
per share 2,451,399 1,151,121

No diluted loss per share is presented in both years, as there
were no potential ordinary shares outstanding during the
years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

HEEAKEERLF

HRBE_ZE—RNEFR_ZEZ—AF+=A
B FETED BT 2BELTRE
Ei I & 25 MEFE 2 B8 EERE -

B REER
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. ¥ - BERRME

Furnitures,
Leasehold fixtures and
improvements equipment Motor
e RE-#£E vehicles Total
MELE S RE @ct
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HKS$' 000
BB BETT BETT BETT
COST A
At 1 January 2015 R-E-h¥—-HA—H 2,001 617 560 3178
Additions i 769 157 788 1,714
Disposals HE (218) (62) - (280)
Acquisitions of assets through FRUBHELAMKEEE

acquisitions of subsidiaries - - 91 91
Exchange realignment SNEFE (67) (33) - (100)
At 31 December 2015 RZB-hF+-A=+—-H 2,485 679 1,439 4,603
Additions 1B 3,343 1,107 520 4,970
Disposals HE (864) (140) - (1,004)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBEAR (H3320)

(note 32(a)) (1,066) (82) (560) (1,708)
Exchange realignment SNERE (118) (46) - (164)
At 31 December 2016 RZB-RE+ZA=t-H 3,780 1,518 1,399 6,697
DEPRECIATION ik
At 1 January 2015 R-E-h%—fA—H 1,456 346 466 2,268
Provided for the year REEERE 496 155 137 788
Eliminated on disposals 8 (144) (49) - (193)
Exchange realignment IMEFE (58) (28) - (86)
At 31 December 2015 RZB-hF+-A=+—-H 1,750 424 603 2,777
Provided for the year KEERE 551 180 281 1,012
Eliminated on disposals B R 3 (255) (117) - (372)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 32(a)  HEMER R (H532()) (1,020) (43) (560) (1,623)
Exchange realignment SNERZ (24) (15) - (39)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-RE+ZA=1+-H 1,002 429 324 1,755
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2016 RZE-RE+=A=1+-H 2,778 1,089 1,075 4,942
At 31 December 2015 RZZE-RF+-A=+—H 735 255 836 1,826

HUANXI MEDIA GROUP LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 #Z =%

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17.

18.

(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per
annum:

33% or the term of
the lease, if shorter
20% - 33%

20%

Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Motor vehicles

ART WORK

During the year, the Group acquired certain art work for a
cash consideration of HK$20,000,000. In the opinion of the
directors, having considered that substantial portion of art
work was purchased during the year from sizable auction
houses and the positive result of the valuation of art work
assessed by another sizable auction house, there was no
indication of impairment as at 31 December 2016.

PREPAYMENT FOR FILM AND TV RIGHTS

CRAE R &3

/\¢+_H =t+t—HIFE

»‘ﬂ‘

16. Y13 - BMER&RE (E)

17.

L% - BERREEBRAEREEN

THERFE:

HEMEEE 33% A E HR
(AR E RE)

RE -KEMEZE 20% - 33%

HE 20%

29l mm

FR - AEER K EE%20,000,0007T7
EETEMR -BEFRL ERAEMEN
an Jy PR AR B K EY IR B 1T M B 1l a0 7F 4 5
FTHARAZ - BARRETHERH -
R -_ZE—RFE+_-_A=+—H ¥ERE
PR -

= 2y
BN

RERB REREMNK

2016 2015
—RE —E-RE
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
BET T BT T
Master China Films Limited Master China Films Limited
(“Master China") (Note a) (['Master Chinal) (MtzFa) 111,161 -
Mr. Chan Ho Sun Peter (“Mr. Chan”) FRA]=F R ([FREE]D)
(Note b) (BIsEDb) 100,000 -
Rui Zhi Workshop Company EEIEBBRAR(EES])
Limited ("Rui Zhi") (Note ¢) (MfsEc) 9,653 -
220,814 -
BEEEEEBRAT —ZT—RFFR
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18. PREPAYMENT FOR FILM AND TV RIGHTS
(Continued)

(@)

The prepayment was paid to Master China, a company
owned by Mr. Wong Kar Wai (“Mr. Wong"), for the
production of the proposed internet drama series
pursuant to an agreement entered, details of which
are set out in note 27(b)(i). The prepayment will
form part of the contribution by the Group for the
production cost of the proposed internet drama series
(which is subject to acceptance by the Group before
investment), of which the budget production cost will
be provided to the Group and the related payment
terms of such production cost will be further agreed
between the respective parties.

Upon commencement of the production of the
internet drama series, the amount will be transferred
to film and TV rights. The Group paid an amount
of RMB100,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$111,161,000) during the year ended 31 December
2016 in relation to the production of the internet drama
series. As at 31 December 2016 and the date of this
report, the Group is still negotiating with Master China
for the film and TV rights investment plan, there is no
any acceptance for any investment in internet drama
series.

The prepayment was paid to Mr. Chan for the
production of the proposed films pursuant to an
agreement entered, details of which are set out in
note 27(b)(ii). The prepayment will form part of the
contribution by the Group for the production cost of
the proposed films (which is subject to acceptance
by the Group before investment), of which the budget
production cost will be provided to the Group and the
related payment terms of such production cost will be
further agreed between the respective parties.

HUANXI MEDIA GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

18.

EXRERBIRERMNRKE)

(@)

RE—HERI 2 SRERTER
BRI RE (GBS EE270)(0) 2
FE 4 B X FMaster China (— & &
ITREEE(NIREDHFEZRR) °
TERF BB AEBRE R TERS R
RE(BEASEEREFSELRE) R
ERAZ B HE - AEBEFERHR
TER AR 2 TEE - A BRIER A 2 A8
RGBT ESHE—FHTE -

ZREBRER RN EEI MR R
BEBREEYRERERE HE-T
—RNEFE+_A=Z+—BALFE £&
2 % ff A R #100,000,0007T (8% %
#76%111,161,000L) - AR B X5
FRBEIRERBZRIE - RZT—XF
TZA=+T—HARAREAE  AEE
B Master Chinagh E & & B 18 B i A %
BErBDIERHA T - WEEMRTAELE
RINEBRITE -

RIBE—HORI ML 2% - BERESE
# (FHBER M EE27 (b)) Z B FAD
XA FREE - AN FEHBKA S B Y
REEY (AEAKBEREST LR
B)BUERAZ D HE - NEEKE
RHBIERANZBHE - A BERIEKA
ZHEBNTIERE RS T E—FHE
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18. PREPAYMENT FOR FILM AND TV RIGHTS
(Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

Upon commencement of the production of the films,
the amount will be transferred to film and TV rights.
The Group paid an amount of HK$100,000,000 during
the year ended 31 December 2016 in relation to the
production of the films. As at 31 December 2016 and
the date of this report, the Group is still negotiating
with Mr. Chan for the film and TV rights investment
plan, there is no any acceptance for any investment in
film production.

The prepayment was paid to Rui Zhi for the production
of the proposed films pursuant to an agreement dated
28 September 2016. Rui Zhi would provide exclusively
to the Group within a period of 3 years proposals
for at least 4 films to be produced by Rui zhi for the
Group to invest (not less than 60% interest) in the
production of such proposed films. The Group would
be granted a right to acquire an exclusive distribution
right through new video platform for the proposed
films at consideration to be further determined at fair
market price. When the Group decides to invest in the
proposed films, the Group is required to contribute
its share of production cost (base on its respective
percentage of investment on the films), of which such
terms would be subject to another agreement to be
further entered. The prepayment will form part of the
contribution by the Group for the production cost of
the proposed films (which is subject to acceptance
by the Group before investment), of which the budget
production cost will be provided to the Group and the
related payment terms of such production cost will be
further agreed between the respective parties.

Upon commencement of the production of the films,
the amount will be transferred to film and TV rights.
The Group paid an amount of HK$9,653,000 during
the year ended 31 December 2016 in relation to the
production of the films. As at 31 December 2016 and
the date of this report, the Group is still negotiating
with Rui Zhi for the film and TV rights investment plan,
there is no any acceptance for any investment in film
production.

18. EXRERBMERANK(E)
(b)  (#)

ZHRERREYHEREREREE
TREGERE BE_T-RFt=
A=Z1T—HALFE AEEEXNEE
100,000,0007T - MR EF EEHER 23R
BH-RZE-—RE+-A=+—HER
BEAH  AEEEREERETRE
BEIRERE SN AE AT - WEE
TR EZRUFRE -

RE-HBHA-_T-—R"EALA=-TN
B2 EFEREEY 2BMNRA
EXNHTEE BEBR=FARED
MEAEERENEZRAKBEIRMHE
KB  NEAEERE (T DR60%
MEDS) NBERBREEZEIE MAK
BEERTREEY CBRARAF
BRITHE REAFE-TRAFHE
BE - HEAKRBRTRERBRARTE
B AKEAREBEHEMEBEZREL
5] B AERR D RAERA - AR
B — PRIV m —ARRRETE - B
NHRBEBRAEESREER (RREA
SERETESFELRE) BIERARZE
DHE - NEEGERERIEKRARZTE
8 A BRIER A Z RN AR
HETE—FIHE -

ZHEBREYRRREREBEREEY
REBEGBINRE RANEERBE-T—X
FH+_A=Z+—BHULEFEEXMEE
9,653,000t - AR BEFRIERBZR
H-RZE—ARF+ZA=+—HER
WMERH AEBESEHREFZRER
BRI B st BIDE A AT - W
ERELRIERE -

BESREBARLT —TFFM
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19. GOODWILL

19. B8

Property agency

WMERE
Hong Kong PRC Total
5B ey et
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
BT T BT T BT T
COST R
At 1 January 2015 R-_E—HF—H—H 428,515 116,867 545,382
Exchange realignment SNGE S B - (6,482) (6,482)
At 31 December 2015 R-ZZE—RF+=-_A=+—H 428,515 110,385 538,900
Exchange realignment SN EE F B - (6,395) (6,395)
At 31 December 2016 R-ZE—XRE+=-A=+—H 428,515 103,990 532,505
IMPAIRMENT WA
At 1 January 2015 RN-_ZE—HF—H—H 424,120 116,867 540,987
Impairment loss recognised AFEEWRZREESE
in the year 4,395 - 4,395
Exchange realignment HINEE 5 B - (6,482) (6,482)
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RF+=_A=+—H 428,515 110,385 538,900
Exchange realignment HNEE SR - (6,395) (6,395)
At 31 December 2016 R-B—RE+=ZA=+—H 428,515 103,990 532,505
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2016 R-E-RE+=-B=+—H - - -
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RAF+-_A=+—H - - -

Goodwill is allocated to the groups of cash generating units
identified according to operating segment. The goodwill
allocated to the property agency segment in the PRC was
fully impaired in 2012 whereas the goodwill allocated to the
property agency segment in Hong Kong was fully impaired
during the year ended 31 December 2015.

HUANXI MEDIA GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT 20. IHHERE
2016
ZEB-KF
HK$’ 000
BT T
At 1 January 2015 and 31 December 2015 RZE—RAF—HA—ARZZT—H%F
+=-—A=+—A” -
Additions bl 15,541
Impairment loss on available-for-sale investment At X &% & FEEE (15,333)
At 31 December 2016 R=ZB-—XR"F+=HA=+—H 208
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the management HE-T—XF+-_A=Z+—HILFE " K
of the Group decided to invest in a private entity located in SEETREATRER —HMLNEEHFL
United States of America for obtaining the technical know- EER LNESHZEESKRETaNRiTHA
how for developing an online video platform with amounting 4 & E I8 A£2,000,000% 7T (FE R KB
USD2,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$15,541,000), #15,541,000T)  BE T — A F+ = A
an impairment loss of HK$15,333,000 was recognised in =T —HILEFERERSPBRAREEBEBE
profit or loss to write down the carrying amounts of the 15,333,0007T JA 4% & AR H B 7 = H AT ]
investment to its recoverable amount for the year ended 31 il

December 2016.

BEGRKEBEARAT —TR"FFH
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, 21. BRI R HMEWRIE - &&
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS KA
2016 2015
—E—XE —E—RF
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
BT T BT T
Trade receivables JESTBR R 8,477 245,647
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts A REREEE (2,278) (7,557)
6,199 238,090
Prepayment on film script fee BYBEABRHZEMNK 2,440 73
Other deposits paid Bz EMEZES 5,844 9,365
Prepayments AT 14,981 1,676
Other receivables H b W GRIE 12,178 8,152
Secured deposit BT S 111,161 -
152,803 257,356
Less: Amounts due within one year W FME—F N EI AR
shown under current assets RBEEZ TR (147,459) (257,356)
Amounts shown under non-current assets  FI{EIEREBEE 2 & %8 5,344 -

Trade receivables from film rights investment income
are usually received within 60 days after the completion
of release of the film in movie theatres according to the
timing for settlement schedule stipulated in the investment
agreement.

For property agency segment in Hong Kong, the Group
allows an average credit period of 60 to 90 days to property
developers whilst the individual customers are obliged
to settle the amounts upon completion of the relevant
agreements and generally no credit terms are granted.
For property agency segment in the PRC, the Group allows
an average credit period of 30 to 60 days to property
developers.

HUANXI MEDIA GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 HZE —ZT—RF+_-_A=+—BILFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
(Continued)

The aged analysis of trade receivables, net of allowance for
doubtful debts, presented based on the invoice date at the
end of the reporting period is as follows:

21. BRERR K EMBEWRRE &S

RBENRK(E)

FE U B R (40 RAR B RIS AR IR B
AE5ZERAFMT -

2016 2015
—E—XE —E—RF
HKS$’' 000 HK$" 000
BETRT BT T

Trade receivables JE W BR 5K
0 - 30 days 0&30H 76 1,402
31 - 60 days 312 60H 29 221,794
61 - 90 days 61£290H 60 2,282
91 - 180 days 9MTHZE180H 3,805 3,684
Over 180 days 180 HIA £ 2,229 8,928
6,199 238,090

These receivables relate to a number of independent
customers that have a good payment track record with
the Group. The management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit risk and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group will assess
and understand the potential customer’s credit quality
and defines its credit limits. Credit limits attributed to
each customer are reviewed regularly. All of the accounts
receivables that are neither past due nor impaired have no
default payment history.

As at 31 December 2015, trade receivables included an
amount of HK$222,059,000 from JdtmE %%, which is
wholly-owned by Mr. Xu, a non-executive director of the
company.

ZERBAAEL ZRASEE R FHRE
MLz BYEFER BEEEMRE #A
PREREKELRERE  RARGEERR
TEEANE BARXFERDEE/ATEHK
Yem - REEY E iz F AR B EMER

[}
og °

AEBERWNERFEPA - SEFHLTH#
BEEPZEEERRETHEEERSE
HAEFPZEERBHGERRT - AALE
8 HA SR (B 2 FE W B 09 B R R 4D 8% o

RZZE-—RF+A=+—H0 EBEEXS
RARBUERELE (AARRERITESRSRE
ER2EWA) 2 FKIA B %222,059,0007T °

BESREBARLT —TFFM
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21.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2016, Group’s trade receivable balance
included debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$254,000 (2015: HK$9,670,000) which are past due as at
the reporting date for which the Group has not provided for

21. EWRR K EMBEWRRE &S
RAEMKE)

RZZT—RNE+_A=+—H8 KEBEZE
W EHBERRE BB afRREmE
JE#5254,0000T (—Z — R F : 7B #9,670,000
T0) 2 FEWRRE R - ANEE I E R E L RES

impairment loss.

Aging of trade receivables which are past

due but not impaired

BEE -

€ 781 20 B 42 Rl {8 2 B WU K 2 AR iR

2016 2015
—E—XREF —ZE—RF
HK$' 000 HK$" 000
BT T BT T
Overdue by: B HE
1-90 days 1£290H 96 5,378
91 - 180 days 91THZE180H 29 3,861
Over 180 days 180 B £ 129 431
254 9,670
Movements in the allowance for doubtful REREES
debts
2016 2015
—E—XE —E—RF
HK$' 000 HKS$' 000
BEET T R T T
At 1 January mn—H—H 7,557 6,551
Impairment losses recognised TR FE W SR IA 2R B 18
on receivables 30 1,551
Amounts written off during the year as FRFIEEEIRE 258
uncollectible (5,041) (479)
Amounts recovered during the year FRYE S (268) (66)
At 31 December BRt+-—A=+—H 2,278 7,557
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
(Continued)

Movements in the allowance for doubtful
debts (Continueq)

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the allowance
for doubtful debts included individually impaired trade
receivables with an aggregate balance of HK$2,278,000
(2015: HK$7,557,000). The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

As at 31 December 2016, prepayments mainly represented
the prepayment of HK$12,000,000 which was paid to
an independent third party for development cost on an
established online video platform for the Group. The
development of the online video platform has been
processed during the year, and the management estimated
the online video platform will be launched in year 2017.
Accordingly, the prepayment was classified as a current
asset.

As at 31 December 2016, other receivables included legal
claim receivable of approximately HK$12,089,000 (equivalent
to RMB10,875,000) (2015: HK$7,891,000) as set out in note 38
and such amount was fully settled in January 2017.

As at 31 December 2016, secured deposit represented
the deposit paid to third parties to secure the repayment
of a short-term cash advance from the third parties
of RMB100,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$111,161,000), details of which set out in note 25.

21. BRERR K EMBEWRRE &S

RBENRK(E)

RIRBESE (F)

BHE-_Z—RE+A=+—BILFE "
RERBREANCRERKERR  HE8
BEE BB 12,278,000 (Z T —HF B
7,557,0007T) - AEEW BB Z ZHEBFF BT
{a] $E 4 G o

RZZE—XRNE+-A=+—0 BENREE
ERBEIASE —EEREBETAZRAE
RALINF—EBILE=HZ2BAREE
12,000,0007T ° ZIEFIRBF & 2B TED
REANRF EEEGMTZEREETAH
RZZE—LFHE - Al BARSEAE—
BERBEE -

R-Z—RE+-A=+—8 HtbEKX
TE B HE P 538 HP B il A 7 122 R B I R FRIA AV
75 #12,089,0007T (18 & 7 A K #10,875,000
T (=T —F4F - B17,891,0007T) * A K%
REERZ-_ZE—tFE—A2I&5 -

RZT—R"FE+ZA=+—0 FEAR:
BOE=Z XN ZREUKREZEE=TH
%5 HATR & B0 A R #5100,000,0007T (FHE A
B #111,161,0007T) ZEFIEEIR - BRAFIE
O RE25

BESREBARLT —TFFM
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22. FILM AND TV RIGHTS 22. E¥REHRBEIRRE
2016 2015
—E—XE e
HK$' 000 HKS$' 000
BT T BT T
Film and TV rights B R EHRBIMRE
— Under production —IEESUE 122,985 -
— Film rights investments —BERRERE 81,286 13,925
— Internet broadcasting rights — B TR 46,687 -
250,958 13,925
HKS$' 000
BT I
At 1 January 2015 and —hF—H—BLK
31 December 2015 —E—hF¥+=-A=+—H 13,925
Additions 188 262,544
Recognised as an expense included in BERAS L (FFAHEENAE)
cost of sales (13,723)
Exchange realignment HNEE 5 B (11,788)
At 31 December 2016 R-ZB—XRE+=-HA=+—H 250,958

As at 31 December 2016, production in relation to film and
TV rights has not been completed. The management of the
Group considered the expected future income of certain
film and TV rights is able to recover the film and TV rights.
Accordingly, no impairment was recognised.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group entered
into an agreement with &8 5, a company in which Mr.
Ning (defined in note 5), a non-executive director of the
Company, has benefit interest, to invest 20% income right
of the film of RMB11,800,000 (equivalent to HK$13,925,000)
which was recognised as film and TV rights. The Group
is entitled to recover its investment amount and a return
of 20% of the profit to be derived from the release of the
film in any media and in any format less distribution cost,
production cost and promotion expenses. The amount of
RMB5,000,000 (equivalent to HK$5,900,000) was not settled
at 31 December 2015 and was recognised as film rights
investment payable (note 25).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 #Z =%

CRAE R &3
AEAZAZ AL

»‘ﬂ‘

FILM AND TV RIGHTS 22. E¥REGRBEIRRE
The comparative of film rights investments has been BEXREREZLERENE S  WEFD
re-presented and reclassified to film and TV rights in order to HEAEXLRERBEIRE UFEAFEEHR
conform with the presentation adopted in current year. The Mz 2 ERERENE R RERE R
changes in the presentation of film rights investments and S §IJZEE& HAREE ZREMBHRERL
film and TV rights do not have any impact on the Group's mAEMTE
consolidated financial statements.
INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING 23. FIEEERE
Investments held for trading at the end of the reporting RBEBRRFEEEREBR
period included:
2016 2015
—E—RE —RF
HK$' 000 HKS$' 000
BEET T BT T
Listed securities: FWES
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REE LT 2 RAE
(Note) (BFEE) 52,768 55,580

Note: As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the investments held for
trading represented the investments in shares of Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited which is listed in Hong Kong.

The fair value was based on the quoted prices of the security
in an active market.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprised of cash held by the
Group and short-term bank deposits that are interest-
bearing ranging from 0.01% to 0.3% (2015: 0.01% t0 4.9%)
per annum and have original maturity of three months or
less.

24.

M : R-T—AFR-ZT-—AF+-A=+—8"

FIFEEERAENRERERGRBERERR
A(RERLT) ZBRMNEE -

RFEDRBEFNERT S BREAH -

RITERRBAS

RITEBEASPEAEEMFERES REN
F0.01%£0.3% (ZZF—HF : 0.01%%4.9%)
ZEFMEFEBERINBAA=ZM@ANKUANZ
RERITER -

BEGRKEBEARAT —TR"FFH
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25.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

25. BB R EMBEMNKE

2016 2015

—E-XEF —E-hF

HKS$’' 000 HK$" 000

BETRT BT T

Trade payables FERTER R 41,461 17,394
Other payables H b B 50E 14,408 16,021
Accruals [EsT & F 8,514 4,586
Short-term payable (Note 21) EHAEA (B EE21) 111,161 -
Film rights investment payable B EEMRIERE - 5,900
Provision for losses on litigation (Note 38)  FFaRABRER 2 # & (FI5E38) - 11,342
175,544 55,243

As at 31 December 2016, trade payables of HK$33,349,000
(2015: nil) represented the internet income rights payable to
an independent third party for a film directed by Mr. Lu Yang.
And the remaining HK$8,112,000 (2015: HK$17,394,000)
represented mainly the commissions payables to property
consultants and cooperative estate agents, which are due
for payment only upon the receipt of corresponding agency
fees from customers.

As at 31 December 2016, other payables mainly comprised
of receipts in advance, service fee for developing an online
video platform, accrued directors’ and staff costs and other
sundry creditors.

As at 31 December 2016, short-term payable represented
advances from third parties of RMB100,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$111,161,000) for the movie investment
activities in the PRC and will be settled in year 2017. The
advance is secured by a deposit of HK$111,161,000 paid by
the Group to the third parties.
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R-ZE—XRNE+-_A=+—8 BENEKS
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26. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

26. EEFHIBEBE B

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax R¥RE R - ANE B HEHEE RN 2R
losses of HK$227,007,000 (2015: HK$119,971,000) available AT B k518 A8 1 227,007,000 (ZF— 1
for offset against future profits that may be carried forward & E1119,971,0007T) - ZERM BB E
indefinitely. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in PR ER 4585 o E PO B DA BT 2R 0 A SRR - i
respect of such tax losses due to the unpredictability of WEMZERBEEERELECHIBEE -

future profit streams.

27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. B
Number of Share of
shares capital
BRAEE B
HK$' 000
BET T
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares LR
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015 RZE—RE—H—AH"
and 31 December 2016, at HK$0.01 each —E-hE+-RB=+—AK
—E-XE+ZRA=+-8H"
BREEEE0.01T 50,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BRITRARE
At 1 January 2015 BNZE—RF—A—H 577,138,852 5,771
Issue of shares upon subscription ARER D MEITRD
of shares (Note a) (MisEa) 1,701,416,556 17,015
Issue of shares to a financial BEEEEGE IR
adviser (Note a) 30,000,000 300
At 31 December 2015 RZE—AF+-A=+—H 2,308,555,408 23,086
Issue of shares to film directors (Note b) AEREEETRG (HiED) 459,500,000 4,595
At 31 December 2016 R-E-R"E+=ZA=+—H 2,768,055,408 27,681
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 HE —ZT—R"F+_-_A=+—BItFE

27. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

@)

Pursuant to the subscription agreement and an amendment
agreement dated 14 April 2015 and 13 May 2015 respectively,
1,701,416,556 subscription shares were allotted and issued on 2
September 2015 at a subscription price of HK$0.40 per share and
30,000,000 shares were allotted and issued on 2 September 2015
to a financial adviser of HK$2.70 per share, being fair value of the
date of issuance, for settlement of the financial advisory services
rendered to the Company. The net proceeds from the subscription
of shares was approximately HK$672,622,000, which was intended
to be used for (i) providing the Group with an opportunity to
leverage on the extensive experience, expertise and business
connection of the subscribers, particularly Mr. Dong, Mr. Ning and
Mr. Xu (defined in note 5 and 12), to develop existing and new
business in the advertising, media and entertainment industry;
and (ii) the Group's general working capital. For the details of the
subscription of shares and issue of shares to a financial adviser,
please refer to the Company’s circular dated 5 August 2015.

During the year, the Group entered into an agreement
("Agreement 1") with Master China, whereby the Company issued
100,000,000 ordinary shares to Mr. Wong, Mr. Wong would provide
exclusively to the Group within a period of 6 years proposals
for internet drama series with two seasons to be produced by
Master China as well as partially directed by Mr. Wong for the
Group to consider to invest in the production of such internet
drama series, and an exclusive internet distribution through new
media platform would be granted to the Group after investment is
decided to be made by the Group in such internet drama series.
When the Group decides to invest in the internet drama series,
the Group is required to contribute fully the production cost, of
which such terms would be subject to another agreement to be
further entered. A prepayment of RMB100,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$111,161,000) in relation to the development of
the production was required to be paid by the Group to Master
China, details of which are set out in note 18(a). The 100,000,000
ordinary shares were issued on 17 June 2016 at HK$2.10 (being
the fair value on the date of issuance, with a total value of
HK$210,000,000). According to the Agreement 1, these shares
were vested with the holder(s) of the shares once issued and the
total fair values of the shares issued were recognised as share-
based payments in the profit or loss during the year.
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27. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b))

(b)(iii)

During the year, the Group entered into another agreement
("Agreement 2") with Mr. Chan, whereby the Company issued
144,500,000 ordinary shares to Mr. Chan, Mr. Chan would provide
exclusively to the Group within a period of 6 years proposals for
at least 2 films to be directed or co-directed by Mr. Chan for the
Group to invest (not more than 60% interest) in the production
of such proposed films, and the Group would be granted a right
to acquire an exclusive distribution right through new media
platform for the proposed films at consideration to be further
determined at fair market price. When the Group decides to
invest in the proposed films, the Group is required to contribute
its share of production cost (base on its respective percentage of
investment on the films), of which such terms would be subject
to another agreement to be further entered. A prepayment of
HK$100,000,000 in relation to the development for the production
was required to be paid by the Group to Mr. Chan, details of which
are set out in note 18(b). The 144,500,000 ordinary shares were
issued on 17 June 2016 at HK$2.10 (being the fair value on the
date of issuance, with a total value of HK$303,450,000). According
to the Agreement 2, these shares were vested with the holder(s)
of the shares once issued and the total fair values of the shares
issued were recognised as share-based payments in the profit or
loss during the year.

During the year, the Group entered into another agreement
("Agreement 3”) with Mr. Gu Changwei (“Mr. Gu"), whereby
the Company issued 75,000,000 ordinary shares to Mr. Gu, Mr.
Gu would provide exclusively to the Group within a period of 6
years proposals for at least 2 films to be directed by Mr. Gu for
the Group to grant a right to acquire an exclusive distribution
right through new media platform for the proposed films at
consideration to be further determined at fair market price. Mr.
Gu will use his best endeavours to provide the Group with priority
rights to invest in his productions. The exact investment amount
in each of his productions is to be agreed between the Group and
Mr. Gu. When the Group decides to invest in the proposed films,
the Group is required to contribute its share of production cost
(base on its respective percentage of investment on the films), of
which such terms would be subject to another agreement to be
further entered. Furthermore, Mr. Gu would provide exclusively
to the Group within a period of 6 years proposals for internet
drama series with two seasons to be directed or co-directed by
Mr. Gu for the Group to consider to invest in the production of
such internet drama series, and an exclusive internet distribution
through new media platform would be granted to the Group
after investment is decided to be made by the Group in such
internet drama series. When the Group decides to invest in the
internet drama series, the Group is required to contribute fully the
production cost, of which such terms would be subject to another
agreement to be further entered.

27. BRA& (&

GEE
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27. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)(iil) (Continued)

(b)iv.

The 75,000,000 ordinary shares were issued on 14 December
2016 at HK$2.69 (being the fair value on the date of issuance, with
a total value of HK$201,750,000). According to the Agreement
3, these shares were vested with the holder(s) of the shares
once issued and the total fair values of the shares issued were
recognised as share-based payments in the profit and loss during
the year.

During the year, the Group entered into another agreement
("Agreement 4") with Mr. Zhang Xiaoling (“Mr. Zhang", also
known as zZhang Yibai), whereby the Company issued 140,000,000
ordinary shares to Mr. Zhang, Mr. Zhang would provide exclusively
to the Group within a period of 6 years proposals for at least 2
films to be directed by Mr. Zhang for the Group to invest (not less
than 55% interest) in the production of such (i) proposed films and
(i) two seasons of internet drama series.

The Group would be granted a right to acquire an exclusive
distribution right through new media platform for the proposed
films at consideration to be further determined at fair market
price. When the Group decides to invest in the proposed films, the
Group is required to contribute its share of production cost (base
on its respective percentage of investment on the films), of which
such terms would be subject to another agreement to be further
entered.

Furthermore, Mr. Zhang would provide exclusively to the Group
within a period of 6 years proposals for internet drama series
with two seasons to be directed or co-directed by Mr. Zhang for
the Group to consider to invest in the production of such internet
drama series, and an exclusive internet distribution through new
media platform would be granted to the Group after investment is
decided to be made by the Group in such internet drama series.
When the Group decides to invest in the internet drama series, the
Group is required to contribute fully the production cost, of which
such terms would be subject to another agreement to be further
entered.

The 140,000,000 ordinary shares were issued on 14 December
2016 at HK$2.69 (being the fair value on the date of issuance, with
a total value of HK$376,600,000). According to the Agreement
4, these shares were vested with the holder(s) of the shares
once issued and the total fair values of the shares issued were
recognised as share-based payments in the profit and loss during
the year.
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Information about the statement of financial position of the

ol i

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 HZE —ZT—RF+_-_A=+—BILFE

28. ARTZMBMRRBERER

REEER - ARRZHBRRBREN D

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: ™
2016 2015
—E—XREF —E—RF
Note HK$' 000 HK$' 000
e BT T BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries BB RRZKE 40,218 41,913
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries S C I ENGIE S 46,255 182,025
Other receivables E b pE W R IE 56,085 3,265
Bank balances and cash RITER AR S 182,528 650,508
284,868 835,798
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Other payables H M E A IR 6,708 4,156
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 278,160 831,642
NET ASSETS BEFAE 318,378 873,555
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAREE
Share capital (Note 27) A& A (£ 27) 27,681 23,086
Reserves & (a) 290,697 850,469
TOTAL EQUITY R 318,378 873,555
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28. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT

OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

Notes:

(a) Reserves

MAE

(a) =&

Share Contributed

Translation Accumulated

28. ARBZMBRRBREN (&)

HUANXI MEDIA GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

premium surplus reserve losses Total
R EE ERRH ERRE 2iER g
HKS$' 000 HKS$' 000 HK$' 000 HKS$' 000 HK$' 000
BETL BETT BETT BETT BETT
(Note b)
(Fi3zEh)
At 1 January 2015 RZE-1%F—-A-H 151,481 199,168 - (108,643) 242,006
Loss for the year and other TEEFBRATE
comprehensive expense Hin2HEFAY
for the year - - - (127,844) (127,844)
Issue of shares upon BERBROMETRR
subscription of shares 663,552 - - - 663,552
Issue of shares to a financial W BT BRI TR
adviser 80,700 - - - 80,700
Share issue expenses RNETER (7,945) - - - (7,945)
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-1%+=A
=f+-H 887,788 199,168 - (236,487 850,469
Total comprehensive expense  AFE2EF A
for the year - - 22,921 (1,669,898)  (1,646,977)
Issue of shares to film directors BEEEETRH 1,087,205 - - - 1,087,205
At 31 December 2016 RZB-Rf
+=ZA=+-H 1,974,993 199,168 22,921 (1,906,385) 290,697
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 HZE —ZT—RF+_-_A=+—BILFE

INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b) Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus represented reduction in issued share
capital pursuant to a capital restructuring in 2004, capital
reorganisation in 2011 and capital reorganisation in 2012. Under
the Company Law of Bermuda, the contributed surplus of the
Company is available for distribution. However, the Company
shall not declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
contributed surplus if:

(i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(ii) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital
and share premium accounts.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, net
of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital and
various reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associates with each class
of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure through
new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt or reduction in capital.

8. ARAzUBMRBRESR (&)

M (&)

(b) BEHAR

BHBHRERE_STNERAERE - —T——
FR-IFB-_FRAESEFIEIR 2 B EHTR
K REBARERRE  ARABZEHARA
Tk - RAMMAE TINER  ARBETFUE
BEBTRIRMNRE LRSI -

)y HEBTEIARIKMEGEDEEEH
B

(ih HAEZAERBEESEAMEREAR
REDBITEAERODEBREZ &M -

29. EXRERERE

AEBEERHEN  UERAKEZERS
REMBERELE  RERBKES L ES
EHREL BERRTREALDH - NEE 2
ERRBEFEEFMER -

AEBZEARBEABEHFE(NRELR
ReFERB)RARAERAREREZ (8
HREBITRARSEAHR) °

ARREFTEHMENEARRE - FRUILERN
THEZ—BD EFERELARAREENR
BRIZHEBERAR AEEBREESRLZ
B BRBITHEO RBITHERIER
RBEEHEIHRES  FEHEBBEARARE -

BEGRKEBEARAT —TR"FFH
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

30.&® T A

a. Categories of financial instruments a. ST AEEEA
2016 2015
—E—RE —Z—AF
HK$ 000 HK$" 000
BET T ok aubiv
Financial assets MEEE
Loans and receivables (including cash and ERNMEWKZE (BIER$ MR
cash equivalents) ©EEIEBER) 327,439 972,840
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABR HBEE
profit or loss
— Held for trading -FHEERE 52,768 55,580
Available-for-sale investment AHEERE 208 -
380,415 1,028,420
Financial liabilities B S =K
Amortised cost 3D 167,031 50,657
b. Financial risk management objectives b. BMKXEBREEEEREEK

and policies

The Group’s management monitors and manages the
financial risks relating to the operations of the Group
through internal risk reports which analyse exposures
by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include LR R
market risk (including foreign currency risk, interest

rate risk and equity and other price risk), cred
liquidity risk.

There has been no change to the types of the Group’s

exposure in respect of financial instrumen
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AEBETEEZRANDRRL RS (LR
EHRRARZEERBAEDIT) BEER
EREBASRERE CHMERR - %
BIETIZER (BEINER
@~ MERERRRAREMERRR)
it risk and EERBEREESER -

AEETRTAmMBERELSEE

ts or the BREERREZ AN BN
manner in which it manages and measures the risks.



157

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ol i

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 HZE —ZT—RF+_-_A=+—BILFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk
Foreign currency risk management

The Group operates in Hong Kong and the PRC with
most of the transactions denominated and settled in
RMB, the functional currency of relevant group entities.

The Group is mainly exposed to the HK$, British
Pounds Sterling ("GBP"), Singapore Dollars (“SGD")
and United State Dollars ("USD"), arising from foreign
currency available-for-sale investment, trade and
other receivables, investments held for trading, bank
balances and cash and trade and other payables.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency

30. & T A (&)

b. MEEKREEEEREE (&)

% 3 g

S B e B

AEEERAERTEKERS AKX
DRZEYARBEEBEER ZDEEEA

REIIEMEH -

i

AEEEBAZBINEAHEERE
FEM IR R S A R WG TR~ HIFEER
B RITESRMEREMENERLE
MEMNRBERMEEZEBE  RE ([F
1) M (TFMmETl) RET
(I=xl) 2Bk -

AEBERHERARAINENEZERE

denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities ErMEEAGZEEENT
at the end of reporting period are as follows:
Liabilities Assets
=L BE

2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-XEF —E-REF —E-XRE —ET-RF
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
BET T BETT BET R BT T
HKD ot (10,046) - 234,098 -
RMB AR - (30,988) - 234,940
usD =Y - - 483 8,754
GBP HEE - - 7 8
SGD T (108) (109) - -

HEEAKEERLF

B REER
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Foreign currency risk management (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
5% (2015: 5%) increase and decrease in the functional
currency of each group entity against the above
foreign currencies. 5% (2015: 5%) is the sensitivity rate
used when reporting foreign currency risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items other than the items
denominated in USD as the directors consider that the
Group's exposure to USD is insignificant on the ground
that HKD is pegged to USD, and adjusts their translation
at the year end for a 5% (2015: 5%) change in foreign
currency rate. A positive number below indicates a
decrease in loss where the above foreign currencies
strengthen 5% (2015: 5%) against the functional
currency of each group entity. For a 5% (2015: 5%)
weakening of the above foreign currencies against the
functional currency of each group entity, there would
be an equal and opposite impact on the loss and the
balance below would be opposite.

30 &@ T A (&)

MBEBREEBRERBER (&)

% Jm B ()
SRR E T ()
BRE DT

TRAAKEREREER 2R
R L IMNEER FI K T RE5% (—F
—HF5%) ZHEE 5% (ZF—H
F:5%) HAEEEEABRIMNER R
EREHERFRA2BRELLE - KK
EEEINEERAEHRAZAEE
MR 2 fF i - BRB T R TT#EE
EERRAKEEEITZRARTK
HtBUREN MEBBAETIAING R
FIfEZ REEIIEERIRE - WRFR
IASMNESTE R5% (—F — R4 : 5%) 2 &
BETHRERAE - TRPLHERTEL
MINE R S EEER 2 EETTES%
(ZT—0%F 5% KERZMD - H
HiSNE R EREBERZERERE
5% (—ZFE—HF:5%)  AEHEEE
RRFEE 2 HRBR - ME T 24
HEAERBR -

2016 2015

—E—XKF —E—RF

HK$' 000 HK$" 000

BT T BT

Loss for the year RFEEE 8,416 7,644
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 #Z =%

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk management

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to variable-rate bank balances because
these balances carry interest at prevailing rates and
they are of short maturity.

Sensitivity analysis

Regarding the cash flow interest rate risk, the
sensitivity analysis below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative
instruments at the end of the reporting period. For
variable-rate bank deposits, the analysis is prepared
assuming the amount of the relevant asset outstanding
at the end of the reporting period was outstanding
for the whole year. A 50 basis points (2015: 50 basis
points) increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2015: 50
basis points) higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s loss for the year
ended 31 December 2016 would decrease/increase by
HK$1,268,000 (2015: HK$889,000).

Equity and other price risk management

The Group is exposed to equity and other price
risk through its investments held for trading. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risks. The
Group’s equity and other price risks are mainly
concentrated on listed equity quoted in the open
markets.

ol i
A=At Etif

30. ¢TI A(Z&)

b.

BBEREEBRERBEEK (&)

A (E)
FI 3 & i & #E

AREBE VAT ET SIRTTHE KA 2R
TRENEXER - HARZFERART
MEFFBRREHAETIE -

HRED T

Wﬁémiﬂﬁmﬁﬁé-TK@@E
DI TIRIBER R E ARATEAS 2 IEHTAE
IﬂﬂTﬂ 2T - L7 BRITIER
mE @ A HBRERREHRZABEE
ESERBEEFERSEFEMIEL - &
sk D50E E B (ZF — A 4 - 501@
HE)RKXEBEAMTEFERATELE
ZEEER -

i ) = 3 o0, A SO0EE B (ZF —
FS0fEER)  MAAHME %IZ’H%

T8 AKREBRE_FT-R"E+=-A
:-I-—EI&EEZJ’E?T%H%?@ZQ\/i?JD
V511,268,000 (ZE— R F B
889,0007T) °

R R E M (B 18 )7 2 B 7

AEERARFFEEREAHRARE
ﬁﬂ{ﬁ%ﬂ[ﬁﬁ CEEERBERES TR

BZIEMAESIRR - NEEZK
$&E@ET§HE§£E%$E@DE§W%
HEZE EWEA -

BESREBARLT —TFFM
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 #Z—%F

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Equity and other price risk management (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity and other price risks
of investments held for trading at the reporting date.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, if the prices of
the respective equity investments had been 5% higher/
lower, loss would decrease/increase by HK$2,203,000
(2015: HK$2,320,000) as a result of the change in fair
value of equity securities held by the Group which was
based on the quoted prices of the security in an active
market for identical assets.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation
by the counterparties is arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assets
as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual debt at the end of the reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.
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BBRAREEBRERBER (&)

% Jm B ()
RAREMBIEEREFE (F)
BRE DT

TXEREDTIRER IS B R
BEEREMEY 2 BRAREMERERR
METE e

BHE_Z-—RF+A=+—HLLF
B imiAEREREZEBR AT
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EEH(RESTFNAREEZER
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2,320,0007T) °
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 #Z =%

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 93%
(2015: 93%) of the total trade receivables was due from
the Group's largest customer and 36% of the property
agency income was from the Group’s largest customer
with the property agency in Hong Kong and the PRC
segment in 2016. As at 31 December 2015, 82% of the
film rights investments income was from the Group'’s
largest customer with the film rights investments
segment.

The Group has concentration of credit risk on its
unlisted AFS investment as 100% (2015: nil) of its
equity interests held by the Group are issued by one
(2015: nil) independent third party. The management
of the Group considers that the credit risk on the
AFS investment in equity interests held is limited as
the directors of the Company took into consideration
of the discounted cash flow calculation of the
investment. During the year ended 31 December 2016,
an impairment loss of HK$15,333,000 (2015: nil) was
recognised in profit or loss.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities based
on the agreed repayment terms. For non-derivative
financial liabilities, the table has been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows
are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived
from interest rate at the end of reporting period.
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A=At Etif

30. ¢TI A(Z&)

b.
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FEmE (&)
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)

30 &@ T A (&)

MBEBREEBRERBER (&)

Liquidity risk (Continued) HEELERE (E)
Liquidity tables HEE 2 &K
Carrying
On demand amount
or at
Weighted less than Total ~ 31/12/2016
average 1 month 1-3 3 months undiscounted R=B-~E
interest rate BEER months  to 1year  cash flows +ZR
il AHR -z =R  AEBEES =t-H
FH7%= -8 =f8A E-F RERE ZBEE
% HK$' 000 HKS$' 000 HK$' 000 HKS' 000 HK$' 000
% BT BT BETR BETR BETR
2016 “E-RE
Non-derivative HTEMBEE
financial assets
Available-for-sale investment  ATEHERE - 208 - - 208 208
Trade and other receivables e R E MR - 12,432 5,840 105 18,377 18,377
Bank balances and cash BEBRRS - 309,062 - - 309,062 309,062
Investments held for trading BESERE - 52,768 - - 52,768 52,768
374,470 5,840 105 380,415 380,415
Non-derivative financial FTENKERE
liabilities
Trade and other payables ERTERR Rt ENE - 167,031 - - 167,031 167,031
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (Continued)

30. & T A (&)

MHEAREEREERBE(#Z)

Liquidity risk (Continued) FEELERE (E)
Liquidity tables (Continued) HBEL &K ()
Carrying
On demand amount
or at
Weighted less than Total  31/12/2015
average 1 month 1-3 3months undiscounted W=E-H%E
interest rate BEEX months toTyear  cashflows +-R
il AOR -z ZEHR  AEERZ =1+-H
Tigf| %= —fiA =fEA E-F mEBE LEEE
% HKS' 000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
% BETT BETT BETT BB BB
2015 “E-If
Non-derivative HTERBEE
financial assets
Trade and other receivables e R At e RR - 17,822 5,224 223,19 246,202 246,20
Bank balances and cash BiTHEBRAS - 726,598 - - 726,598 726,598
Investments held for trading FEEERE - 55,580 - - 55,580 55,580
800,000 5,224 223,196 1,028,420 1,028,420
Non-derivative financial HTERBEAE
liabilities
Trade and other payables ERER R ENTE - 50,657 - - 50,657 50,657
BEEEEEAERLAT T FFH
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

C.

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions and
traded in active liquid markets are determined with
reference to quoted market bid prices and ask prices
respectively.

The fair values of other financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis.

The following table gives information about how the
fair values of these financial assets are determined
(in particular the revaluation technique(s) and inputs
used), as well as the level of the fair value hierarchy
into which fair value measurements are categorised
(level 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements is observable.

o Level 1 fair value measurements are those
derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
market for identical assets or liabilities.

. Level 2 fair value measurements are those
derived from inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

. Level 3 fair value measurements are those
derived from valuation techniques that include
inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 HZE —ZT—RF+_-_A=+—BILFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

C.

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

Fair value as at
ATH
31 December 2016 31 December 2015
Financial assets RZB-RE RZF-1%
BBEE tZA=1+-H tZB=1-8

30. & T A (&)

c. EMIAZAFEFEE)

Relationship of

unobservahle

Significant  inputs to fair

unobservahle value

Fair value Valuation technique(s) and input(s) BiBRY
hierarchy key inputs BLBZ, BABBRAY
DTEEE HEFIRIZRAEE EXBAHE LA

Held for trading non-derivative financial ~ Listed equity securities ~Listed equity securities
assets classified as investments held for — in Hong Kong - in Hong Kong -
trading in the consolidated statement of  HK$52,768,000 HK$55,580,000
financial position

RERIBHRRRZAEAREREE WER LR WER LT
RECHEEEFTEHBER BH-RE KE5- A%

52,768,000 55,580,000

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of other financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their
fair values.

Fair value measurements recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial
position

As at 31 December 2016

Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an N/A N/A
active market
£ EETSPNEARE 1R Mg

ARBEERR  BWEHKXANRAY
BRERARNEGBHBEEERTBAE
ZHEEERIEQTE-

d. REAHBRAREERZAT
e

R-ZB-R"E+ZRA=+—8H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E— BR B=R =E
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
BET T BETT BET T BETT
Financial assets B%EE
Fair value through profit 1B F(EE A Bz
or loss
- Investments held —BEEE
for trading BE 52,768 - - 52,768

BEGRKEBEARAT —TR"FFH

N
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

d.

Fair value measurements recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial
position (Continued)

As at 31 December 2015

30 &@ T A (&)

RGAMBRRAEERZ AT
xR ()

R-ZZE-—RF+-_A=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—H E-H F=M &5t
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
BT T BT BT T BT
Financial assets MBEE
Fair value through BRFEFA B
profit or 10ss
- Investments held for —F{EEE
trading BE 55,580 - - 55,580

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 in
the current and prior years.

The board of directors of the Company has set up an
investment team, which is headed by the directors and
designees (the “Investment Officers”) of the Company,
to engage in securities trading and investment
operation.

In estimating the fair value of an asset, the Group uses
market observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
engages independent professional qualified valuer to
perform the valuation. The Investment Officers work
closely with the qualified external valuers to establish
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the
model. The Investment Officers report the findings to
the board of directors of the Company semi-annually to
explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the
assets.

Information about the valuation technigues and inputs
used in determining the fair value of investments held
for trading are disclosed above.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 HZE —ZT—RF+_-_A=+—BILFE

31. ACQUISITIONS OF ASSETS THROUGH
ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(@)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, Wiz
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with an
independent third party, Ms. Ko Wei Fong, for the
acquisition of the entire equity interest in and the
shareholder’s loan of State Talent Limited ("State
Talent”) at a consideration of HK$200,000. State Talent
is an investment holding company.

The acquisition was completed on 31 July 2015, on
which date control of State Talent was passed to the
Group.

The acquisition has been accounted for as an
acquisition of assets and liabilities. The effect of the

acquisition is summarised as follows:

Net assets acquired:

. ZBREHEARMBBEE

(@)

HE-_T—AF+-_A=+—HLF
B EZ2MBERAR(KARAIZEHBA
AEBYE=FREFKIIVESE
e LNIEBEBR QG ([HBED)
MEBBREMBRIER REAEE
200,0007T - BET A —HEEZRA
ﬁ] °

ZEWBR -_T-—RAFEtA=1T—H%
X FREERIE R TN % A T AKHE -

R R A BE B PR M B 1 M
BORERAMT

EWBEEFE

2015
—E—RF
HK$' 000
BET I

Property, plant and equipment
Shareholder’s loan

Sales of shareholder’s loan i

Consideration paid:

M - BB MEE 91
BERER

ENRE:

2015
—ET—hF
HK$' 000
ook e

Consideration paid

BERRE

200

BEGRKEBEARAT —TR"FFH
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31. ACQUISITIONS OF ASSETS THROUGH
ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

(@)
(@) (Continued)

Loss on acquisition of assets through

acquisitions of a subsidiary:

31.%2%4&&%%%’&%@4&&%%3%

(%)

ZBRE-—HNEBLAAMKBEEZE
b=

2015

—T—HF

HK$' 000

ok eI

Total consideration BRAE 200

Net assets acquired BB EEFE 91
Loss on acquisition of assets through 7B U EE — P B A )

acquisition of a subsidiary miiE & E 2 518 109

Cash outflow arising on acquisition of assets
through acquisition of a subsidiary:

ZBWBE-HNEBARIMUBEEEE
MRERE -

2015
—E—RF
HK$' 000
BT T

Cash consideration paid ENBEeRE

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the (b)
Company through its wholly-owned subsidiary, State

Talent, entered into a sale and purchase agreement

with an independent third party, Shanghai Allied

Cement Limited, for the acquisition of the entire

equity interest in Interform Strategic Holdings Limited
(“Interform”) at a consideration of HK$1,000,000.

Interform is an investment holding company.

The acquisition was completed on 31 October 2015,

on which date control of Interform was passed to the
Group.
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HE-_Z—hRAF+_A=+—AL
FE ARRAIBEBRHEZENE R T
HERBIE=F LB A KER
MBRRARBIELEERZE LKER
Interform Strategic Holdings Limited
(Mnterform]) B2 &k %E - REREE
1,000,0007T © InterformJy & — % &
/NI
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31. ACQUISITIONS OF ASSETS THROUGH . EBUEMBEATIMKEBEE

ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES (&)
(Continued)
(b) (Continued) (by (%)

The acquisition has been accounted for as an ERBEARIMERBEEREE - K

acquisition of assets and liabilities. The effect of the BrgaganT
acquisition is summarised as follows:
Net assets acquired: ERBEETFE:
2015
—ET—HF
HK$" 000
PR T T
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB &E -

WE - BERRBLA—#WIE  RK
BHH2BIE -

Property, plant and equipment is a motor vehicle which
was fully depreciated at the acquisition date.

Consideration paid: 2RRE:

2015
—E—RF
HK$' 000
BET T

Consideration paid BRRE 1,000

Loss on acquisition of assets through acquisition ERWE—BfEATMKBEEZE

of a subsidiary: B

2015
—E-RF
HK$' 000
BT T
Total consideration BRE 1,000
Net assets acquired BN EE TR -

Loss on acquisition of assets through BRUWE—FWEB AR
acquisition of a subsidiary mikiE & E 2 518 1,000

BEGRKEBEARAT —TR"FFH
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31. ACQUISITIONS OF ASSETS THROUGH
ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

Cash outflow arising on acquisition of assets
through acquisition of a subsidiary:

31.%2%4&&%%%’&%%4&&%%3%

(%)

ERWRE-—EHNELAAMKBEEEE
MBRERE :

2015
—E—RF
HK$’ 000
BT T

Cash consideration paid BENRERE

32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(@)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with Hong Kong Bridge Investments Group Limited
("HKBI") for the disposal of the entire equity interest
in Huge Allied Development Limited (“Huge Allied")
and the shareholder’'s loan due by Huge Allied of
approximately HK$833,000 at a consideration of
HK$10,000. Huge Allied was inactive. The disposal was
completed on 5 January 2016, on which date control of
Huge Allied was passed to HKBI.

The net liabilities of Huge Allied at the date of disposal
were as follows:

(1,000)

32. HEHWE AR

(@)

BHE-_Z—AF+-_A=Z+—HIHF
B ARAEBEBREASEFRADA
([BREEDIVESEHZE NAEH
H EHuge Allied Development Limited
(I'Huge Allied ]) 2z % B i% # KkHuge
Allied#t & 2 B% 3 B 3 49 7% 833,000
7T R A&7 810,000t © Huge Allied

F— AR BT - Huge Allied .z ¥ i1
RZABTERKE -

RHEEER - Huge Alliedz B & F5 0
T

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which KEEHFHEZEERABEIN:
control was lost:

2016
—E—-XF
HK$’ 000
BET T
Other receivables e IR 820
Shareholder’s loan AR E R (833)
Net liabilities disposed of FrtEa@EFsE (13)
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32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 32. HEMB LT (&)

(@)

(Continued) (@) (#&)
Consideration received: TR 2 18 :
2016
—E-REF
HK$' 000
BT T
Consideration received in cash and NIRE FREeEFEYMWRER 2 RE
cash equivalents 10
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HE— R ARz W
2016
—E-REF
HK$' 000
BT T
Total consideration BRE 10
Net liabilities disposed of FrbEaEFeE 13
Waiver of remaining liabilities HEBRTAE (13)
Gain on disposal g 2 W 10
Cash flow on disposal of a subsidiary: HE-BHEBEAREEZEERE
2016
—E-REF
HK$’' 000
BT T
Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents AR & RIREEEMRE 2 K E 10

BEGRKEBEARAT —TR"FFH
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32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with Kwong Chi Fai, Gorman (“Gorman”) for the
disposal of the entire equity interest in Asset Expert
Limited, 21 Group Limited and Richy Fame International
Limited ("Disposed Companies”) at a consideration
of approximately HK$1,825,000. Disposed Companies
were investment holding companies and their
subsidiaries were inactive. The disposal was completed
on 8 July 2016, on which date control of Disposed
Companies was passed to Gorman.

The net assets of Disposed Companies and their
subsidiaries at the date of disposal were as follows:

32. HEKB AT (&)

(b)

HE-_ZT-—R"F+-A=+—RHLF
B ARAHEBEE ([BEE]) L
BEEWiE - N AR EEAsset Expert
Limited + 214%[% B IR 2 & &Richy Fame
International Limited ([T E AR ]) 2
2 EARHE - RIEX) BBEE1,825,0007T °
FIELR AR AREERAR - KB
NAWEER - HEFHERZ_Z—RX
FEANBTEK - FTEE QR A E I
NMRZBETEBERE -

RHEEER  FEHARREMEB AR
ZEEFEWT

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which REEFIEZEEREEBD I :
control was lost:
2016
—E-RF
HK$’ 000
BET T
Property, plant and equipment W - BB NEE 85
Trade and other receivables JFE K BR SR % L A R W R IR 2,110
Cash and cash equivalents RehkReEEY 393
Trade and other payables JE AT B R K% L A JE A< SR IR (375)
Tax payable eI RRIR (374)
Net assets disposed of FTHE&EFE 1,839
Consideration received: P B 2 18 -
2016
—E-REF
HK$’ 000
BT T
Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents LR & KRS EEMRE 2 KE 1,825
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32. HEKB A A (&)

(Continued) (by (%)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: HEMB AR 2 :
2016
—E-REF
HK$' 000
BT T
Total consideration wRE 1,825
Net assets disposed of & B EF5E (1,839)
Cumulative exchange differences in respect REEMB AR 2 IEHIERRERE
of the net assets of the subsidiary reclassified FolEEBEREcWBAREEFTE
from equity to profit or loss on loss of control EAZRETIERZERE
of the subsidiaries 801
Gain on disposal & 2 W es 787
Cash flow on disposal of subsidiaries: HEMBRARAELEZRERE
2016
—E-XF
HK$' 000
BT T
Consideration received in cash and cash IR e RIReFEMKRER 2 KE
equivalents 1,825
Less: Cash and cash equivalents disposed of B FTHERSRREEEY (393)
Net cash inflow BReMmAFHE 1,432
BEEEEEERAT —Z— R FF®H
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33. OPERATING LEASES 33. R&EHE
The Group as lessee KEERAEA
The Group made minimum lease payments paid under REEGMAEYE - B REHNEBEL
operating leases in respect of office premises, shops and EHE v SIEBELN K ALE13,629,0007T
photocopying machines of approximately HK$13,629,000 ZE—RF : B¥E5,236,0007T) °

(2015: HK$5,236,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RBMERR AEERTAIRE 2 LELRE
commitments for future minimum lease payments under T 5 HA B H PR AN 2 R 2R S AR A A9 A5 SR
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows: T
2016 2015
—E—XE —E—RF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
BT T BT T
Within one year —FR 15,899 12,132
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EZERF (RIEEEMSE) 18,338 17,847
34,237 29,979
Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for lease terms g e N —ERERPRNTEES (=
of one to five years (2015: one to five years). T—hHF: —FERF) o
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34. SHARE OPTIONS

Pursuant to the resolution passed at the annual general
meeting held on 17 June 2014, the Company’s shareholders
approved the adoption of a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”). The Scheme became valid and effective for
a period of 10 years commencing on 20 June 2014. The
Company operates the Scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who have
made or may make contribution to the Group. The eligible
participants of the Scheme include the Company’s or
its subsidiaries’ directors, employees, and any business
consultants, agents, financial or legal advisers and any other
persons whom the board of directors of the Company may
determine, at its sole discretion, will contribute or have
contributed to the Group.

The share options may be exercised in accordance with
the terms of the Scheme at any time within the period
commencing from the date of grant of the share options and
expiring on the date determined by the Company’s directors,
but in any event such exercise period shall not be more than
10 years from the date of grant of the share options. The
amount payable on the acceptance of a share option is HK$1
(or such other nominal sum in any currency as the board of
directors of the Company may determine). The period open
for acceptance of the share option and the minimum period
for which the share option must be held before it can be
exercised are determined by the board of directors of the
Company at the time of grant.

The exercise price of the share options shall be determined
by the board of directors of the Company, but shall not be
less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the date of grant, which must be a business day; (ii)
the average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(ili) the nominal value of the Company’s share.

4. BB IR HE

BER-_ZE-NFAATERRTZRERA
FRELBBZREAR  ARABRMER
W—EEARAEE 8 ([R&T &) - %588
TE-MFERAZTRERAEREEN - RE
TF - RRARRIULZATE - LB RED
RAAEEHAKEFLERZAERZ
HE ZiBzAERZEERBRARARK
HEHMBRARZES RBE  AREREBE
B REA MBIEZERERRARTES
SNERERNBEAR/EAKRERELERKCE
FRBEBZEREBAL -

BERETARHIBREZAEEARAES
BEE 2 A Lk B A BE B R AR IR 5% 5T 8 B9 15K
FTUAITE - X T ERBEEFBERTTE
HER L AAREARE Z ARG T F - ZRE
BRERNEBABEIT(XARFERTGA
BT HMEMEREZSE) - ATHE
MERRSERBRRITEZAM L ARTER
REHR  SHARFAEFTENRLAK T U
BE-

BREZITEERARREZTSETE  ET
BERRTZESE () AARRORELA
HI(WAREER) BB AARKAE 2K
ME: (NARBRMOREZE L AR A E
EERAEBRABRERME ZFHEHE
KRR R Bty 2 EME »

BESREBARLT —TFFM
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34.

SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

The maximum number of shares in the Company in
respect of which the share options may be granted under
the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company is not permitted to exceed 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of approval of
the Scheme by the Company’s shareholders (the “Scheme
Mandate Limit"), or, if such 10% limit is refreshed, as at the
date of approval of the renewal of the Scheme Mandate
Limit by the Company’s shareholders. Notwithstanding the
foregoings, the maximum number of the Company’s shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding share
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company shall
not exceed 30% of the Company’s shares in issue from time
to time. As at the date of this report, a total of 230,855,540
shares of the Company (representing approximately 8.34%
of the total number of issued shares of the Company) are
available for issue under the Scheme. No share options were
granted under the Scheme during the year.

The total number of shares of the Company already issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all the share options
granted to each participant in any 12-month period up to
and including the date of such new grant is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the total number of the Company’s shares in
issue as at the date of such grant. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this 1% limit shall be subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders in general meeting.
Each grant of share options to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company or
any of their respective associates in excess of 0.1% of the
Company’s shares in issue and with an aggregate value
in excess of HK$5,000,000 in any 12-month period up to
and including the date of such grant must be approved in
advance by the Company’s shareholders.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the
schemes are held separately from those of the Group, in
funds under the control of trustees. The Group contributes
the lower of HK$1,500 or 5% of relevant payroll costs to the
scheme monthly, in which such contribution is matched with
each employee.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme
operated by the government of the PRC. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute 20% of payroll costs to the retirement
benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is
to make the specified contributions.

GOVERNMENT GRANT

Government grant of RMB1,931,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,245,000) (2015: nil) from Tianjin
Government for the purpose of enhancing the development
of Tianjin. There was no condition attached to such
government grant and it was recognised as other income as
at 31 December 2016 as set out in note 7.

35.

36.

iR k48 A 5 &

AEBRMETEAERER LSRR
HREDEE - ZAEZEERARBEE
DHERE  FHRREEAMES 2ESA -
REEIRE 11,5007 1R B AR R # &K AE%
ZBRIEERARZAEELHK 8REE
TREL SRR -

AREERPEMERR2EE BT ERFE
EZBZRRBHMEIKE - BREANE R A
AR ZERBEHNAEEFTAERENES
HRERLERARZ20% ° FZRIKEF 2
ME AEBEZE-—BERELEEMHRK -

B A 8 BY

RSB 5 2 BT 6 B AR #51,931,0007T
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37. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(a)

(b)

(c)

Related party transactions

During the year, the Group entered into the following

37V.BEALTHEE

(a) HEEALTZRS
ERAEEEBEATITIINTRS

transactions with a related party: =S
2016 2015
—E—REF —ZE—RF
HK$’' 000 HK$" 000
BT T BT T
Film rights investment income BEREEERA (BEFTE)
including tax (Note) (B #E) 6,296 231,597
Film rights investment cost B RIERE KA
including tax (Note) (BIEHE) (M) 13,722 184,615

Note: Such transactions constituted connected transactions
under the Listing Rules during 2015. The details of the
connected transactions are disclosed under the section
headed “"Company’s Contracts of significance/Connected
Transaction/Continuing Connected Transaction” items C
and D in the Directors’ Report of the 2015 annual report.

Related party balances

Details of the Group’s outstanding balances with
related parties are set out in notes 21, 22 and 25.

Compensation of key management
personnel

B MR - LR B TR
EF2HERS BEXBRHER T
—REFRERRE[AAZEALL,
5, RERES 5 | —HCHKDHA
W -

(b) HEEANL Z&ER

AEEERBBA L ZEHOREEERE
FBIEE21 ~ 22 /%25 ©

(c) TEEBABZHE

The remuneration of directors who were considered iﬁqﬁ%$%@$g%@/\525$%
as key management personnel of the Group during the ERUNNE
year is as follows:
2016 2015
—E—XE —E—RF
HK$' 000 HKS$' 000
BET T BT T
Short-term benefits S HIE A 18,036 6,526
Post-employment benefits RRAEF 18 20
18,054 6,546

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the Remuneration Committee having
regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.
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LITIGATION

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group's
subsidiary, Guangdong Sinofocus Media Limited (EXRF
BEHEAR AT ("Guangdong Sinofocus”) initiated a legal
proceeding against EEEFERESHRAF ("Liaoning
Radio”) for recovering a prepayment of advertisement of
RMB9,611,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$11,342,000),
which the amount was paid by a third party, /&8s EEE
AR A7) on behalf of Guangdong Sinofocus.

After seeking legal advice, the Group considered the
amount of claim to be able to recover from Liaoning Radio is
RMB6,687,000 (which amount is also guaranteed by Frontier
Services Group Limited (being an independent third party)
pursuant to the terms of sale and purchase of the interest
in Sinofocus Media (Holdings) Limited ("Sinofocus Media”),
the intermediate holding company of Guangdong Sinofocus,
by the Group). On November 2016, the decision was issued
made by the court, Liaoning Radio need to pay back the
Group an amount of RMB9,611,000 with interest plus the
litigation fee of RMB79,000. The maximum receivable
amount will be RMB10,875,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$12,089,000) (2015: RMB6,687,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$7,891,000)) which was recognised as
other receivable as at 31 December 2016. The amount of
RMB10,875,000 was settled in January 2017.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Group signed a 5-year framework agreement with
an independent third party (“Investor”) in January 2017,
pursuant to which the Investor has the rights to invest
on film and TV rights under an agreed list of film and TV
rights. The maximum amount of the investment portfolio is
RMB1,000,000,000.

38.

39.

#F B

HE-_Z-NFE+_A=+—HLEE K
SEMBARERTEEEERAF ([EXR
FH)MBEEERERESARAR ([EE
B REZEEFD - BZRKREIESTERN K
AR #9,611,0007T (A8 E 7 #4748 111,342,000
L) cENFMEZ AL SERESEEAR
NAREERPE LN -

EHWRERERE ASERATEHEER
Bl EBARGEBARES687,0005T ° 1R
BASEREBERRTEFINERAAFE
B ER) ARAR ([PEEE]) 2#E%
el 263K - BERIETTHLERESE
BERAB (ABYE=F)EHER R =_F
—RE+—A ERQMATE  EEEREA
EEAREB A RE9,611,0007T 27 F B 0k
ABAREET,000T - BERFEZEZAAR
#10,875,0007T (18 & 7 #)74 #12,089,0007T.)
—T—RF: ARM6,687,0007T (FBE R
75 #7,891,0000L)) F AN ER T — X F
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BEHREE
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40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40. KRBT T EMB D A
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
Place of Issued and
incorporation/  paid up Percentage of Proportion of
establishment/  share capital/ ownership interest held  voting power held
operation registered capital by the Company by the Company
Name of subsidiaries /L BRIRARRE/ RAARE ARFfE Principal activities
il PNEES BeEny ZMER BEREDL ZRLA TEER
2016 2015 Directly Indirectly
ZE-3f —Z-1F B 54
Beijing Huan Sheng Xiao Yu PRC RMBB0,201,750 100% - - 100% Film rights investment
Culture Media Company i registered capital EYMERE
Limited & @ ARH80.201,750C
IREBRELEEERAR VR0 AR
Century 21 (HK) Group Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% 100% - 100% Investment holding
Limited A of HK$ RERR
221 (B8 £ B TREESE T
BRAR LEBR
Century 21 Property Agency Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares 100% 100% - 100%  Provision of property agency
Limited A 0f HK$1 each and related services in
e MEERAR 2REREERET Hong Kong
BRI ERBRENERER
RERE
Century 21 Surveyors Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares 100% 100% - 100% Provision of property project
2 BETERAT A 0f HKS1 each consulting, property agency
100 RERAE and related services
BB T BRIk RENZEEZH
NEREREBRS
Gain Flow Developments BVI/Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% 100% - 100% Online platform development
Limited RBERRES  of USDY BETRER
BEERARAT Vi REE1ET
BRI
Graceful View Holdings Limited BVI/HongKong 1 ordinary share 100% - - 100% Investment holding
RREARES of USD1 RABR
Ve 1REE1ET
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40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40. KRR EEMBEARFE (Z)
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)
Place of Issued and
incorporation/  paid up Percentage of Proportion of
establishment/  share capital/ ownership interest held  voting power held
operation registered capital by the Company by the Company
Name of subsidiaries #M/RY/  ERARERRA/ ALREE ALRME Principal activities
il PNEES SEwy ERER REREAL ZRLA TEEHR
2016 2015 Directly  Indirectly

ZE-Rf _Z-1f E& }:3

Guangdong Sinofocus 4@ PRC RMB50,000,000 100% 100% - 100% Film rights investment and
BRTRE 0 i registered capital advertising agency services
AR 50,000,000 EYMERER
HMER RERERK
Huanxi Entertainment (HK) Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares 100% 100% - 100%  Investment holding and
Limited B3 of HK$1 each advertising agency services
BERZ () ERAR 10,000 kB REE REBRE
BB LAk REREER
Huan Huan Xi Xi (Tianjin) PRC - 100% - - 100% Film rights investment
Culture Investment Company B EYMERE
Limited (1&@

BREE(RR) LR

g
BRAT 00

HX Investment (HK) Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% - - 100% Film rights investment
BERE(ER)ERLT 53 of HK$1 EYMERE
1REERS 1T
Kingbox Investments BVI/Hong Kong 48,137 ordinary shares 100% 100% 100% - Investment holding
Limited RRERRES of USD1 each RAERR
/EE 18,137 BEREE
1% ERk
Mansford Holdings Limited BVI/HongKong 1 ordinary share 100% 100% 100% - Investment holding
ZBSRREE of USD1 REER
/& 1REE1ET
ZERR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& BB A W R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 HE —ZT—R"F+_-_A=+—BItFE

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40. KRR EEMBEARFESE (Z)
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)
Place of Issued and
incorporation/  paid up Percentage of Proportion of
establishment/  share capital/ ownership interest held  voting power held
operation registered capital by the Company by the Company
Name of subsidiaries #M/BY/  ERARMRRA/ ALREE ALRME Principal activities
il PNEES LEwy ERER BEREAL REELH TEEHR
2016 2015 Directly  Indirectly

ZB-Rf _ZT-1fF E% 3

Power Thought Investments BVI/Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% - - 100% Film rights investment
Limited AEERRES of USD1 EEMERE
NEREERAR /EE REE1ET
Sinofocus Media BVI/Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% 100% 100% - Investment holding
PEER AEERRES 0f USD1 RARR
/BR REE1ET
LERER
Wiz Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% 100% 100% - Provision of management
ZMERAT A 0f HKS 1 services to the Group and
1REERS 1T securities trading and
LEBR investments
AASEREEERE
WRESEERIRE
Notes: T 5
(1) These subsidiaries are registered as wholly foreign owned (1) ZEMBRARABREFEEAGZMAINEGEE R
enterprises under PRC law. ¥o
(2)  The English names of these PRC companies are translation of their 2 ZERERRZAXNEBIRNAEPXEREZ
respective Chinese names for information only and are not their Y EH2E WIHEEARTE-

official names.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company as at ERMVDEERRBEAEE L XELEE
31 December 2016 and 2015 which, in the opinion of the BEFEFEZARNIR_ZE—RFRF
directors, principally affected the results or assets of the —hAF+—A=+—BZHBRAR - EER
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the B REHMMB AR ZFBEHEIRERRA
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive RILEK °

length.

None of the Company's subsidiaries had issued any debt BERATNMMNE RN EFEREITE
securities at the end of both years. AEBES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ol i

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 HZE —ZT—RF+_-_A=+—BILFE

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40. X ABREEM B R BRFE (E)
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)
At the end of the reporting period, the Company had other RMEHR  AARBEEMEHAERME
subsidiaries that were not material to the Group. A majority TERZMBAR - ZEMBRAAKRTD R
of these subsidiaries operated in Hong Kong (2015: Hong BAE(CE—AF BB KEER %S
Kong). The principal activities of these subsidiaries are BARIZEEXBHMNOT
summarised as follows
Place of incorporation/
Principal activities establishment Number of subsidiaries
FEEK FEf BRI i B MEBARRE
2016 2015
—E—-XE —E—RF
Investment holding BVI 4 9
BEZER EBERRES
Hong Kong 1 5
B
Inactive Hong Kong 5 5
BT B
PRC - 1
A
BVI - 2
EBERRES
10 22
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
S B BE

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is as follows:

AEEREREMBRFE X6  BERAGERD
LU

For the year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=t-HLEE

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
ZE-Z% ZE-=f ZZ-mF ZZ-nF ZEB-ix%§
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$' 000
BB BETT BETT BETT BETR
RESULTS B4
Continuing operations FEREEY
Revenue Iz 112,711 98,763 203,803 266,913 16,112
(Loss) profit before tax BREi A (E18) & T (64,462) 27,762 (12,796) (84,166)  (1,253,745)
Income tax credit (expense) B (FR) 8,801 8,552 (348) (8,630) -
(Loss) profit for the year from continuing TEERBLEEBL
operations (B8E) &7 (55,661) 36,314 (13,144) (92,796)  (1,253,745)
Discontinued operations BRLEREER
Loss for the year from discontinued AFEBRIERER BE
operations (1,398) (1,120) - - -
(Loss) profit for the year AEE(EBR)EF (57,059) 35,194 (13,144) (92,796)  (1,253,745)
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to: [EEAEE (BR)&EH -
Owners of the Company KAREBA (56,500) 35,642 (13,144) (92,796)  (1,253,745)
Non-controlling interests FRRER (559) (448) - - -
(57,059) 35,194 (13,144) (92,796)  (1,253,745)
At 31 December
R+=A=1+-H
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
“E2--f Z2-=f C—Z-NF —T-nF ZB-X %
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$' 000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEKEE
Total assets BEGE 301,521 265,529 472,981 1,085,285 1,011,555
Total liabilities BRER (147,038) (57,846) (136,871) (65,169)  (184,644)
Total equity BnEs 154,483 207,683 336,110 990,116 826,911
Attributable to; fEfh
Owners of the Company ADAREEA 159,734 207,683 336,110 990,116 826,911
Non-controlling interests RS (5,251) - - - -
154,483 207,683 336,110 990,116 826,911
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